PAJARO/SUNNY MESA

COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
136 San Juan Road,Royal Oaks, CA 95076
O (831) 722-1389 | Fax (831) 722-2137

Www.pajarosunnymesa.com

AGENDA
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
DISTRICT CONFERENCE BOARD ROOM
136 SAN JUAN ROAD, ROYAL OAKS,CA 95076

JUNE 24, 2021
5:30 P.M.

“Notice of Teleconferenced Meeting”

Pursuant to Governor Newsom’'s March 17, 2020 Executive Order N-29-20
regarding COVID-19, members of the Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Services
District Board of Directors and staff may participate in this meeting by
teleconference.

To reduce the spread of COVID-19, members of the public may join the meeting
from their computers via Zoom Meeting by entering the following link:
https://zoom.us/j/93708363904?pwd=T 1VtL2dHaTRMT2hiSWhWb3ZhdEh3QT09
or by calling 1 (669) 900-9128 and when prompted, enter meeting ID: 937 0836
3904# and passcode 179080#. There will be no in-person participation in the
meeting under the authority of Governor Newsom’s Executive Order N-29-20.
You may also submit written comments in writing either at District Offices in
person or by email by 2:00 pm on June 24, 2021.

To submit a comment by email, please send to info@pajarosunnymesa.com and
write "Public Comment” in the subject line. Include the item number and/or title of
the item in the body of the email and your comments. All comments received by
2:00 pm will be emailed to the Board members and included as an “Add to Packet”
on the District's website before the meeting. Those comments received after 2:00
pm will be added to the record of the meeting and shared with Board members at

the meeting.”

The Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Services District welcomes you to its meetings
regularly scheduled on the fourth Thursday of each month, and your interest and
participation is encouraged and appreciated.

Contact the District office at the email address or telephone number above if you believe
you require any modification or accommodation for any disability which might impair your
ability to participate in the meeting.

P.

1



P/SMCSD BOARD MEETING AGENDA — June 24, 2021

Documents provided to the District after the agenda has been published will be available at the District office
and available for photocopying during ordinary business hours as Public Records at the cost set by resolution
by the Board from time to time. This is ordinarily $.25 per page. Documents provided to the Board for agenda
items will ordinarily be placed on the District website if time permits. Otherwise, late documents will be provided
to the Board at the meeting and a copy placed with the agendas available to the Public at Board meetings.

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT: In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need
special assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact the Pajaro Sunny Mesa Community Services
District ar (831) 722-1389 before the meeting to allow the District to make reasonable accomodations.

1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

2. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL
o (11/21) President Sanford Coplin
(11/23) Vice President Robert Moody

(o]
o (11/23) Secretary Darlene Lamboley
o (11/21) Assistant Secretary Michael Moore
o (11/21) Treasurer Harry Wiggins
ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF: General Manager Don Rosa
Bookkeeper Amy Saldate
Recorder Judy Vazquez-Varela
DISTRICT COUNSEL: Attorney Alan Smith

3. ADDITIONS TO AGENDA [SUBDIVISION (b), GOVERNMENT CODE § 54954.2]

The Board may act on items of business not appearing on the posted agenda if (1) three members
determine that an emergency (as defined in Section 54956.5 exists), (2) two-thirds vote of the members
present, or, if less than two-thirds of the members are present, a unanimous vote of those members present,
determine that there is a need to take immediate action and that the need for action came to the attention of
the District after the agenda was being or (3) the item was posted for a prior Board meeting not more than
five calendar days before the date action is taken, and at the prior meeting the item was continued to the
meeting at which action is taken. Before discussing any item pursuant to this subdivision, the Board will

publicly identify the item.

4. COMMENTS FROM PUBLIC OR MEMBERS OF BOARD ON ITENMS NOT ON AGENDA

Any person may address the Board on any item not on the agenda when recognized by the
Board President.

Any Board member may comment on any item not on the agenda.

ACTION ITEMS

Consent Agenda

Any person may comment on any item on the consent agenda.

1. DRAFT MINUTES OF MAY 27, 2021 REGULAR MEETING

Approval of draft minutes for regular meeting on 5/27/2021

Motioned by: Director ' Seconded by: Director
Ayes: Noes: ; Absent: Abstained:
Motion passed: Motion Failed: Motion Tabled:

P.

2



P/SMCSD BOARD MEETING AGENDA — June 24, 2021

Roll Call Vote:

o (11/21) President Sanford Coplin
(11/23) Vice President Robert Moody
(11/23) Secretary Darlene Lamboley
(11/21) Assistant Secretary Michael Moore
(11/21) Treasurer Harry Wiggins

© 00O

Old Business:

1. NONE

New Business:

1. REVIEW AND MOTION TO APPROVE DRAFT FINANCIAL REPORTS FOR MAY 2021

-Clarifying and Technical Questions to Staff

-Public Input

-Motion/Second

-Board Deliberation

-Motion to Approve Draft Financial Reports May 2021

Motioned hy: Director Seconded by: Director

Ayes: Noes: Absent: Abstained:
Motion passed: Motion Failed: Motion Tabled:
Roll Call Vote:

(11/21) President Sanford Coplin
(11/23) Vice President Robert Moody
(11/23) Secretary Darlene Lamboley
(11/21) Assistant Secretary Michael Moore
(11/21) Treasurer Harry Wiggins

o]

o O0CoOo

2. REVIEW AND MOTION TO APPROVE CHECKS AND DIRECT STAFF TO SIGN
CHECKS (CHECK LISTING)

1. General Fund 605: Check # through check # for a total of $
2. Water Account: Check # through check # for a total of $
3. Holding Acct: Check # through check # for a total of $
4. Street Maint. Acct: Check # through check # for a total of $
5. Reorganization Acct: Check # through check # for a total of $
6. Construction Acct: Check # through check # for a total of §
7. Acct: Check # through check # for a total of $

- Clarifying and Technical Questions to Staff

- Public Input

- Motion/Second

- Board Deliberation
- Motion to Approve checks and direct staff to sign checks



P/SMCSD BOARD MEETING AGENDA — June 24, 2021

Motioned by: Director Seconded by: Director

Ayes: Noes: Absent: Abstained:

Motion passed: Motion Failed: Motion Tabled:

Roll Call Vote:

(11/21) President Sanford Coplin
(11/23) Vice President Robert Moody
(11/23) Secretary Darlene Lamboley
(11/21) Assistant Secretary Michael Moore
(11/21) Treasurer Harry Wiggins

cC O O0O0O0

3. REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATION STATEMENTS (RFQ)

o Local Hazard mitigation plan preparation

- Clarifying and Technical Questions to Staff
-Public Input

-Motion/Second

-Board Deliberation

-Motion to Approve advertising and posting of RFQ

Motioned by: Director Seconded by: Director

Ayes: Noes: Absent: : Abstained:
Motion passed: Motion Failed: Motion Tabled:
Roll Call Vote:

(11/21) President Sanford Coplin
(11/23) Vice President Robert Moody
(11/23) Secretary Darlene Lamboley
(11/21) Assistant Secretary Michael Moore
(11/21) Treasurer Harry Wiggins

0 ¢ 0 Q.

RESOLUTION NO. 06-02-21

Appointing Consultants for authorization, issuance of 2021 Bonds
Attached agreements and Debt Service schedule

Trust Agreement with US Bank Global Corporate Trust

Bond Purchase Agreement with Stinson Securities, LLC

Continuing Disclosure Agreement with NBS Government Finance Group
Bond Counsel Agreement with Robert M. Haight

o

- Clarifying and Technical Questions to Staff

- Public Input

-Motion/Second

-Board Deliberation

-Motion to Approve adoption of Resolution No. 06-02-21

Motioned by: Director Seconded by: Director

Ayes: Noes: Absent: Abstained:
Motion passed: Motion Failed: Motion Tabled:
Roll Call Vote:

(11/21) President Sanford Coplin
(11/23) Vice President Robert Moody
(11/23) Secretary Darlene Lamboley
(11/21) Assistant Secretary Michael Moore
(11/21) Treasurer Harry Wiggins

OcCcocCco

P

4



P/SMCSD BOARD MEETING AGENDA — June 24, 2021

5. RESOLUTION NO. 06-03-21

e Authorizing and directing execution of agreements and approval of documents
e Attached agreements and schedules

- Clarifying and Technical Questions to Staff

- Public Input

-Motion/Second

-Board Deliberation

- Motion to Approve adoption of Resolution No. 06-03-21

Motioned by: Director Seconded by: Director

Ayes: Noes: Absent: Abstained:
Motion passed: Motion Failed Motion Tabled

Roll Call Vote:

(11/21) President Sanford Coplin
(11/23) Vice President Robert Moody
(11/23) Secretary Darlene Lamboley
(11/21) Assistant Secretary Michael Moore
(11/21) Treasurer Harry Wiggins

o 00O

6. FINAL BUDGETS 2021-2022: APPROVAL AND ADOPTION

e Copies of all final Budgets
e Notes to Operating budget

- Clarifying and Technical Questions to Staff

- Public Input

- Motion/Second

-Board Deliberation

-Motion to Approve and adopt all budgets for the 2021-2022 fiscal year

Motioned by: Director Seconded by: Director
Ayes: Noes: Absent: Abstained:
Motion passed: Motion Failed: Motion Tabled:

Roll Call Vote:

(11/21) President Sanford Coplin
(11/23) Vice President Robert Moody
(11/23) Secretary Darlene Lamboley
(11/21) Assistant Secretary Michael Moore
(11/21) Treasurer Harry Wiggins

©CC O O0O0

7. PAJARO PARK FUNDING:

o Discussion: Thoughts and ideas on how to fund the Pajaro Park operation and
maintenance in the future years

Annual cost to operate Park = $59,000

Cash on hand as of 6/18/2021 = $84,000

County contribution (year to year decision) = $25,000

Funds will carry us through 3 years

-Clarifying and Technical Questions to Staff
-Public Input

- Motion/Second

-Board Deliberation

-Motion to Approve ??7?

Pa

5



P/SMCSD BOARD MEETING AGENDA — June 24, 2021

Motioned by: Director Seconded by: Director
Ayes: Noes: Absent: Abstained:
Motion passed: Motion Failed: Motion Tabled:
Roll Call Vote:

o (11/21) President Sanford Coplin

o (11/23) Vice President Robert Moody

o (11/23) Secretary Darlene Lamboley

o (11/21) Assistant Secretary Michael Moore

o (11/21) Treasurer Harry Wiggins

8. RESOLUTION NO. 06-04-21: WATER SYSTEM ACQUISITION POLICY

e Copy of Resolution
o Copy of Exhibit A “Policy”

-Clarifying and Technical Questions to Staff

- Public Input

-Motion/Second

-Board Deliberation

-Motion to Approve adoption of Resolution No. 06-04-21

Motioned by: Director Seconded by: Director

Ayes: Noes: Absent: Abstained:
Motion passed: Motion Failed: Motion Tabled:
Roll Call Vote:

(11/21) President Sanford Coplin
(11/23) Vice President Robert Moody
(11/23) Secretary Darlene Lamboley
(11/21) Assistant Secretary Michael Moore
(11/21) Treasurer Harry Wiggins

O 0000

STAFF/COMMITTEE REPORTS: (INFORMATION ONLY, NO ACTION)

This part of agenda is for the Staff to report to the Board on District operations however no action is
agendized and no action may be taken other than asking for an action item to be brought to the

Board at a future meeting.

1. Water Conservation:
o Staff is currently preparing flyers/ notices to be sent out with water bills in the future.
o Water conservation tips, for indoor and outdoor usage
e Currently, all voluntary, no conservation mandates or orders

2. District Operations Update: changes due to COVID-19 and “Shelter in Place” order

Report from General Manager

o All District facilities are fully open and operating, following CDC and State guidelines

F.

6



P/SMCSD BOARD MEETING AGENDA — June 24, 2021

3. District Operations Report

4. Usage Comparison Report 2013/2021

CLOSED SESSION:

A. NONE

MOTION TO ADJOURN

Next Board meeting date:

Motioned by: Director
Ayes: Noes:

Motion passed: Motion Failed:

(11/21) President Sanford Coplin

Seconded by: Director

Absent: Abstained:

Motion Tabled:

(11/23) Vice President Robert Moody

(11/23) Secretary Darlene Lamboley

(11/21) Assistant Secretary Michael Moore
(11/21) Treasurer Harry Wiggins

OO0 0CQCO0

Adjournment Time: p.m.

P.

7



MINUTES "8

The regular meeting of the Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Services District Board of Directors via
Zoom videoconferencing was called to order at 5:32 pm on May 27, 2021.

ROLL CALL: President Sanford Coplin
Vice President Robert Moody
Secretary Darlene Lamboley
Treasurer Harry Wiggins

ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF: General Manager Don Rosa
Bookkeeper Amy Saldate
Recorder Judy Vazquez-Varela

ABSENT DIRECTOR(S) & STAFF: Assistant Secretary Michael Moore

DISTRICT COUNSEL: Robert Haight-Bond Counsel
Lonnie Odom-Underwriter

ADDITION(S) TO AGENDA: None

PUBLIC IN ATTENDANCE:

1. Brian Birkeland from Langley/Valle Pacifico WS
PUBLIC COMMENTS: None
Action ltems
1. Consider and approve the Minutes of the April 22, 2021, Regular Board Meeting

Motion was made by Director Lamboley and seconded by Director Moody to approve the
Regular Board Meeting Minutes of April 22, 2021. Motion carried.

Roll Call Vote:  Ayes: S. Coplin; R. Moody; D. Lamboley; H. Wiggins
Noes: None
Absent: M. Moore
Abstain: None

OLD BUSINESS: None

NEW BUSINESS: (Action ltems)
1. Review and consider approving the Financial Reports for April 2021

Bookkeeper Saldate presented the financial report stating the District's current cash on hand
for April 2021 is $473,800. April's total income surpassed total expenses by $231,226. April's cash
surpassed March's cash by $16,910.

Motion made by Director Wiggins and seconded by Director Moody to approve the April 2021
Financials. Motion carried.

1



MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING ~- May 27, 2021

Roll Call Vote:  Ayes: S. Coplin; R. Moody; D. Lamboley; H. Wiggins
Noes: None
Absent: M. Moore
Abstain: None

MONTHLY EXPENDITURES REPORT FOR REVIEW
APPROVAL OF CHECKS:

2,

1y

2.

Review and consider approving of checks and directing Staff to sign checks

General Fund 633: Total of $0.00

Operating Account: Check No. 24700 through Check No. 24728 for a total of $188,917.36

Reserve Account: Total of $37,855.56

Street Maintenance Account: Check No. 535 for a total of $1,056.20

Pajaro Park Account: Total of $1,466.10

COP 2010 Account: Total of $4,935.35

Debt Service Reserve Account: Total of $0.00

Motion was made by Director Wiggins seconded by Director Moody fo approve the April 2021
checks, and direct Staff to sign checks. Motion carried.

Roll Call Vote:  Ayes: S. Coplin; R. Moody; D. Lamboley; H. Wiggins
Noes: None
Absent: M. Moore
Abstain: None

Consider approving selling Bonds for $1,817,718.85 for the sole purpose of purchasing and
installing 16 Emergency, Back-up generators

Robert Haight and Lonnie Odom discussed the Bond details and debt service schedule for 25
years, they will be working with General Manager Rosa to generate documentation for Bond
Sale.

Mr. Birkeland asked if the bond process is approved in June meeting, documents are provided
by July and close by mid-August will all generators be up and running in two years? General
Manager Rosa responded no, the purchase and installation of all generators could take up fo
5 years once the bond is secured. Three (3) to Four (4) generators would be up and running
per vear, the first three being operations centfer, Langley booster station and well station.
Langley is the only water system that all connections are supplied water via pressure system.

Motion tabled.

PL

9



MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING - May 27, 2021 P.

4. Consider submitting proposal to Monterey County to acquire surplus property

The Board was provided with a notice received from Monterey County Public Works of
availability of surplus property with a deadline submittal of interest of June 22, 2021, and a copy
of the letters previously sent to Monterey County of District interest in the surplus property. The
District will respond by resubmitting an updated cover letter to reflect Director Coplin as
President and to clearly state that the property be transferred free of cost to the District, along
with the previously sent packet.

Motion made by Director Wiggins and seconded by Director Lamboley to approve submitting
proposal to Monterey County to acquire surplus property. Motion carried.

Roll Call Vote:  Ayes: S. Coplin; R. Moody; D. Lamboley; H. Wiggins
Noes: None
Absent: M. Moore
Abstain: None

5. Consider approving the Capital Improvement Plan-10 year look-ahead

The Board was provided a 2021-2022 Work Plan, 2022-2031 Capital Reserves and Expenses
Summary, and 10 Year Capital Improvement Plan.

Motion made by Director Wiggins and seconded by Director Lamboley to approve the Capital
Improvement Plan 10 year look-ahead and 2021-2022 Work plan. Motion carried.

Roll Call Vote:  Ayes: S. Coplin; R. Moody; D. Lamboley; H. Wiggins
Noes: None
Absent: M. Moore
Abstain: None

6. Consider approving the 2021-2022 Pajaro Street Lighting Preliminary Comparison Budget

The Board was provided with the 2021-2022 Pajaro Street Lighting Preliminary Comparison
Budget.

Motion made by Director Wiggins and seconded by Director Lamboley to approve 2021-2022
Preliminary Pajaro Street Lighting Budget and publication. Motion carried.

Roll Call Vote:  Ayes: S. Coplin; R. Moody; D. Lamboley; H. Wiggins
Noes: None
Absent: M. Moore
Abstain: None

7. Consider approving the 2021-2022 Street Maintenance/Subdivision Maintenance Budget

The Board was provided with the 2021-2022 Street Maintenance/Subdivision Maintenance
Budget.

10



MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING - May 27, 2021 P

Motion made by Director Moody and seconded by Director Lamboley to approve 2021-2022
Street Maintenance/Subdivision Maintenance Budget and publication. Motion carried.

Roll Call Vote:  Ayes: S. Coplin; R. Moody; D. Lamboley; H. Wiggins
Noes: None
Absent: M. Moore
Abstain: None

8. Consider approving the 2021-2022 Pajaro Community Parks/Public Area  Preliminary
Comparison Budget

The Board was provided with the 2021-2022 Pajaro Community Parks/Public Areas Preliminary
Comparison Budget.

Motion made by Director Moody and seconded by Director Lamboley to approve 2021-2022
Preliminary Pajaro Community Parks/Public Areas Budget and publication. Motion carried.

Roll Call Vote:  Ayes: S. Coplin; R. Moody; D. Lamboley; H. Wiggins
Noes: None
Absent: M. Moore
Abstain: None

9. Consider approving the 2021-2022 Pajaro Park Preliminary Comparison Budget

The Board was provided with the 2021-2022 Pajaro Park Preliminary Comparison Budget. Board
directed Staff to add Pajaro Park fund raising discussion to next months meeting agenda.

Motion made by Director Moody and seconded by Director Wiggins to approve 2021-2022
Pajaro Park Preliminary Comparison Budget and publication. Motion carried.

Roll Call Vote:  Ayes: S. Coplin; R. Moody; D. Lamboley; H. Wiggins
Noes: None
Absent: M. Moore
Abstain: None

10‘. Consider approving the 2021-2022 Operating/Water Preliminary Comparison Budget

The Board was provided with the 2021-2022 Operating/Water Preliminary Comparison Budget
and the notes to the budget

Motion made by Director Moody and seconded by Director Lamboley to approve 2021-2022
Operating/Water Preliminary Comparison Budget and publication in The Pajaronian and on
the District website. Motion carried.

Roll Call Vote:  Ayes: S. Coplin; R. Moody; D. Lamboley; H. Wiggins
Noes: None
Absent: M. Moore



MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING - May 27, 2021 P

Abstain: None

STAFF/COMMITTEE REPORTS: (Informational Only)

1. 2009 Service Truck-Engine failure

New engine ordered, should have the service truck back by June 4-2021. The cost for
the repairs is $2,000.00.

2. District Operation: changes due to COVID-19 and “Shelter in Place” order

e @ @ o o o

Planned re-opening of Pajaro Park on June 7, 2021/District office on June 14, 2021.
Temporary fencing will be removed for opening of the Pajaro Park and Summer Lunch
Program will begin June 7, 2021.

District office will remain open with strict guidelines.

District Parks Playgrounds are open at Pajaro and Cayetano Parks

Copies of notice at District office and list of duties for office.

No Vendors or members of the public are allowed into office.

Payments are being received; no change given.

District has a verbal agreement in place for Mutual Aid with both Castroville CSD and
Aromas WD District Counsel is working on a written agreement.

President Wiggins and Vice President Coplin conducted a conference call with
General Manager and Operations Manager to plan for “worst case scenario”

o President now has District office keys and alarm codes and has advised Staff to
have Operations Manudls, keys to facilities and system maps readily available
on the conference room table.

o Contact information for all Board Members, employees and vendors are
available in binder.

o On the January 28, 2021 Regular Board Meeting, election of officers occurred,
Director Wiggins will provide current President Coplin with office keys and alarm
codes. Director Wiggins has given keys to President Coplin.

Notices mailed to customers with May bills indicating that their water is safe and
unaffected by COVID-19.

Office remains closed to public; continuing to take payments by phone or drop-off.
Office will be at % staffing beginning January 4, 2021 with physical distancing
requirements met and health screening protocols in place; masks or face coverings to
be worn always while indoors.

All field personnel to work from home (stand-by) when air quality is bad.

3. District Operations Report

Springfield Planning Grant

Contract with MNS Engineers has been finalized, we received the contfract today and
have forwarded it to the State for upload to the Construction Grant Application.

Hazard Mitigation Plan

District Engineer is preparing a Request for Proposal for Professional Engineering
Services.

12



MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING — May 27, 2021 P."18

4, Usage Comparison Report 2020/2021
e The report has been changed to reflect year 2013 as the State Water Boards will utilize

this year as a base for conservation. The water usage is down in most systems except in
Moss Landing and Springfield water systems compared to this month in 2013.

NEXT BOARD MEETING:

The next Regular Board Meeting is to be held on Thursday, June 24, 2021, at 5:30 pm via Zoom
videoconferencing.

There being no further business, the Regular Board Meeting of the Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community
Services District was adjourned at 7:42 pm with motion made by Director Lamboley seconded by
Director Moody. Motion carried.

Respectfully submitted by:

Sanford Coplin, President

Robert Moody, Vice President

Judith Vazquez-Varela, Recorder



P

FINANCIAL NOTES - May 2021

Account No: Account Name: Decrease Description

4001-4015

ot il e S R i b S

Total Income

Increase /

+

Water sales 6% above projected monthly budget

5165 Computer Software + Annual Renewal of Intuit QuickBooks Software
£970 Automotive- Repair N Remanufactured engine for 2009 Chevy and new
& Maintenance tires for several fleet vehicles
COP Debt Service-
6577 + Biannual Interest Payment: Pajaro Water Bond

Interest

Water System-
Repair &
Maintenance

Hydrant Sales

Leak Repairs: Moss Landing & Pajaro
Locating Service: Pajaro

Steady usage from temporary hydrant meter rentals

14




9:22 AM

June 21, 2021
Accrual Basis

Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Services District

Balance Sheet
As of May 31, 2021

P. 15

ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
1001 - SCCB - Operating Account
1002 - SCCB Reserve Account
1003 - SCCB - Sick Leave Account
1004 - SCCB - Street Maint Acct
1006 - SCCB-GF 633
1007 - SCCB - Debt Service Reserve
1032 - SCCB-COP Acct (aka Const. Acct)
1036 - PSM Pajaro Park Acct
1050 - Cash in County Treasury - DS
1051 - Cash in County Treasury - GF
1066 - Union Bank Vega 2303
1068 - Union Bank Vega 2301
1069 - Union Bank Vega-2302
1095 - Union Bank Wtr Bond-Res 2204
2201 - Union Bank-2015 Wtr Rfd Bd 2201

Total Checking/Savings

Accounts Receivable
1110 - Invoice Accounts Recv
1231 : Grants Receivable-A/R

Total Accounts Receivable

Other Current Assets
1080 - Petty Cash
1100 - Water Customer Accounts Recv
1101 - Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
1115 - Prepaid Expenses
1153 + Receivable from Montery County
1251 - Assess. Rec. - Lighting
1252 - Assessments Rec. - Street Maint
1253 - Assessments Rec. - Water bond
1253.1 - Assess Rec - Water Bond - Count
1254 - Advanced Pay - Spec. Asses - WB

Total Other Current Assets
Total Current Assets

Fixed Assets
1084 - CIP-Springfield/Struve
1500 - Land
1510 - Land Improve (Non-office)
1520 - Land Improve (Office)
1521 - AID - Land Impr (Off)
1522 - Land - Parks
1530 - Wells
1540 - Pumping Plant Bldg
1541 - AID - Pumping Plant Bldg
1550 - District Office Building
1551 - AID - District Office Building
1555 - Office Equipment/Furniture
1556 - A/D - Office Equip/Furniture
1657 - Equipment - Lighting
1559 - AID - Lighting and Parks
1560 - Electric Power to Sheds
1561 - AID - Electric Power to Sheds
1570 - Equipment - Pumping Plant
1571 - AID - Equipment - Pumping Plant
1580 - Distribution Mains [P]
1581 - AID - Distribution Mains
1590 - Meters
1591 - AID - Meters
1600 - Hydrants

May 31, 21

186,575.82
245,137.35
14,451.84
219,841.17
118,000.06
28,121.50
237,382.87
85,354.02
61,303.75
272,245.25
147,541.11
0.60
10,533.41
147,826.01
0.13

1,774,314.89

920.00
1,472,874.30

1,473,794.30

400.00
225,724.13
-9,135.09
1.31
860.00
1,907.14
2,903.00
223,000.00
914.43
-16,561.65

430,013.27

3,678,122.46

18,967.36
139,676.30
314,656.67
66,721.46
-51,675.40
248,000.00
162,488.25
191,044.92
-191,045.00
144,062.43
-125,704.73
30,573.05
-30,572.90
8,980.18
-8,980.18
2,598.59
-2,599.00
510,984.21
-443,661.87
1,487,948.01
-1,090,371.68

86,141.13

-85,271.11
7,422.43

Page 1



9:22 AM

June 21, 2021
Accrual Basis

Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Services District

Balance Sheet
As of May 31, 2021

P.18

1601

1610 -
- AID - Automotive Equipment
1620 -

1611

1621

1622 -
1630 -

1631

1640 -

1641

16560 -

1651

1670 -

1671

1680 -

1681

1804 -
1806 -

- AID - Hydrants
Automotive Equipment

Utility Trans/Distr Plant

+ A/D - Utility T&D Plant

AID - Moss Landing

Utility Plant

+ AJD - Utility Plant

Source of Supply Plant

+ AID - Source of Supply Plant
Trans & Distr Plant

- AID - Trans & Distr Plant
Small Tools/Equipment

+ AID - Small Tools/Equipment
ALCO Water Project

+ AID - ALCO Water Project
CIP-Springfield

CIP-Vega Imprvtmnt Project

1805.1 - AID - Vega

1806
1807

* Moss Landing Bridge Project
- CIP-Langley/VP

1807.1 - AID - Langley/VP .

1808

+ CIP-Normco

1808.1 -+ A/D - Normco Tank

1811

: CIP-Vierra Estate

1811.1 - AID - Vierra Estates

1812

+ CIP-Moss Landing Water System

1812.1 - AID - Moss Landing Water

1813
1814
1816
1817

+ CIP-Normco Water System

+ CIP-Pajaro

» Land - Pajaro Park

- Improvements - Pajaro Park

1817.1 - AID - Improvements -Pajaro Park

1818

+ Buildings - Pajaro Park

1818.1 - AID - Buildings-Pajaro Park

1819

+ Equipment - Pajaro Park

1819.1 - A/D - Equipment-Pajaro Park

1820

* Normco Treatment Facility

1820.1 - AID-Normco Treatment Facility

1821
1822
1823

 CIP-Sunny Mesa
- CIP-Vega
- CIP-Blackie

Total Fixed Assets

Other Assets

1120 -
 Due From SC Grant Acct
* Due from Maint Account
1220 -
1900 -
1950 -
- Deferred Amt of Ref-Vega Bds15

1141
1151

1951

Due From Gen Fund

Spl Asmnt Reve-Long Term
Due From Other Funds
Deferred amount on refunding

Total Other Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable

2000 - Accounts Payable
2500 - Due to Other Funds

Total Accounts Payable

May 31, 21

-4,704.72
221,662.12
-156,041.31
115,702.65
-93,257.77
-169,582.31
107,992.45
-107,992.00
54,616.59
-17,732.73
139,408.08
-72,965.30
10,773.67
-8,794.51
155,809.38
-101,276.45
393,244.44
4,620,002.33
-2,186,481.90
251,233.09
247,543.58
-78,160.74
296,974.74
-127,796.73
175,238.16
-50,658.72
301,793.12
-79,020.55
4,520.00
2,253,930.99
781,632.00
4,717,110.00
-1,296,951.63
796,400.00
-178,569.26
43,381.00
-27,474.89
127,374.00
-92,120.85
-0.39

-0.19

0.04

12,357,142.60

0.66
100.00
157.19

3,636,801.72

159,690.92

66,557.60
85,015.09

3,948,323.18

19,983,588.24

23,368.47
159,693.06

183,061.53

Page 2



9:22 AM

June 21, 2021
Accrual Basis

Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Services District

Balance Sheet
As of May 31, 2021

P11

Credit Cards
2900 - Wells Fargo- 6120
2910 - Elan

Total Credit Cards

Other Current Liabilities
2005 - Accrued Liabilities
2050 - Accrued Payroll
2100 - Payroll Tax Liabilities
2121 - Customer Security Deposits
2122 - Future Water Conn. Deposits
2123 - Hydrant Meter Deposits
2225 - Accrued Vacation Liability
2230 - Accrued Sick Leave Liability
2263 - 457b EE Plan Payable
2264 - Employee Insurance Payable
2265 - EE Aflac Insurance Payable
2320 - Due to 64 Original Sewer Accts
2324 - Payable to Customers
2325 - Payable to P.V.W.M.A.

Total Other Current Liabilities
Total Current Liabilities

Long Term Liabilities
2256 - Vehicle Loan Payable
2257 - Reorganization Loan
2267 - Pajaro Tank Loan-0190
2268 - Generator Loan Payable
2333 - COP Bonds Payable
2350 - Bonds Payable - Water Bond
2360 - Bonds Payable-2015 COP Wtr Rf
2361 - Bonds Payable-2015 Vga Witr Rf
2400 - Unamortized Discount on 2015
2401 - Unamorized Discount-2015 Vega

Total Long Term Liabilities
Total Liabilities

Equity
3000 - Fund Balance
3001 - Restricted-Street Maintenance
3040 - Contributed Capital
3045 - Restricted for Debt Service
3050 - Retained Earnings
3999 - Suspense
Net Income

Total Equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

May 31, 21

909.08
163.71

1,072.79

62,567.00
3,006.82
1,199.13

18,478.70

36,600.00

25,050.00

39,058.86

47,322.88
3,224.28

-804.09
835.07

29,169.90
2,347.79
9,248.30

277,304.64

461,438.96

48,735.32
215,000.00
507,110.63

75,260.70
-70,000.00
193,000.00

1,945,000.00
3,502,899.67
-31,095.01
-12,514.72

6,373,396.59

6,834,835.55

219,540.85
192,425.80
248,000.00
4,575,060.23
6,006,426.85
13,037.78
1,894,261.18

13,148,752.69

19,983,688.24

Page 3



9:24 AM

June 21, 2021
Accrual Basis

Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Services District

Profit & Loss
May 2021

P. 18

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

4001 - Route 1 - Pajaro

4002 - Route 2 - Pajaro

4003 - Route 3 - Commercial
4004 - Route 4 - Trailer Park
4005 - Route 5 - San Juan Rd Apts
4006 - Route 6 - Sunny Mesa
4007 - Route 7 - CSA 73

4008 - Route 8 - Vega

4010 - Route 10 -Springfield
4011 - Route 11 - Moss Landing
4012 - Route 12 - Blackie Road
4013 - Route 13 - Normco

4014 - Route 14 - Vierra

4015 - Route 15 - Langley/VP

Total Income

Gross Profit

Expense

INDIRECT

5000 -
5005 -
5030 -
5040 -
5050 -
5070 -
5090 -
5130 -
5140 -
5145 -
5150 -
5160 -
5165 -
5170 -
5245 -
5250 -
5255 -
5256 -
5266 -
- Automotive - Repair & Maint
- Conferences, Meetings, Seminars
5320 -
- Telephone
5340 -
5370 -
- Credit Card Transaction Fees
5400 -

5270
5280

5330

5391

Salaries and Wages
Administrative Fees
Payroll Tax Expense
Worker's Comp Insurance
Employee Health Insurance
Employee Retirement
Other Employee Expense
Utilities - Office

Building Repair & Maint
District Wide Repair & Maint
Garbage Service

Office Equip Rental
Computer Software

Office Equipment Repair & Maint

Postage

Legal Expenses

Interest Expense

Interest Exp-Financed ltems
Engineering Svcs-Dist Wide

Membership Fees and Dues

Burglar Alarm Monitoring
Fuel - Trucks

Miscellaneous Expense

5XXX - Indirect Allocation

6577 -

COP Debt Service - Interest

Total INDIRECT

5190 - Soil and Water Tests

5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint
5225 - Street Maintenance

5230 - Park - Repair & Maint

5231 - Pajaro Park Expense

5310 - Utilities - Well Site

5315 - Utilities - Street Lighting

5426 - Vega Assmnt Bond Expense

5427 - Improvement Project-Springfield

Total Expense

May 21

24,737.62
22,200.02
21,407.08
1,105.06
936.64
11,816.30
13,737.85
12,513.72
850.00
28,466.47
2,994.22
34,062.87
4,741.65
2,753.54

182,323.04

182,323.04

59,566.49
487.60
964.96

3,949.15

17,353.51

8,562.73
93.89
298.99
420.97
633.21
348.96
232.52
3,135.01
176.48
1,000.00
877.00
1,771.42
399.85
412.50
11,276.92
14.99
459.00
914.41
162.00
2,249.69
776.77
4.15
0.00
38,677.50

165,220.67

1,181.80
56,154.68
1,030.84
57.83
1,424.54
12,408.40
2,161.17
46.02
9,809.40

239,495.35

Page 1



9:24 AM Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Services District P. 19

June 21, 2021 Profit & Loss
Accrual Basis May 2021
May 21
Net Ordinary Income -57,172.31
Other Income/Expense
Other Income
4100 - Late Payment Penalties 447.58
4110 - Hydrant Sales 957.08
4280 - Pro-Rata Tax Collection Share 62.62
4285 - P.V.W.M.A. Collection Fee 2,391.72
4305 - Miscellaneous Revenue 67.85
4307 - Returned Check Charges 0.00
4350 - Interest Revenue 6.16
5409 - Pajaro Improve Proj-Grant Reimb 262,273.60
5510 - Board Designated Donation 0.00
5794 - Water Bond Assessments 0.00
Total Other Income 266,206.61
Net Other Income 266,206.61
Net Income 209,034.30

Page 2



mmmm

«00°000'2

%292 le7ee8'tL 50°06% %00 29'991 000 SUOIEIINMSD PUB SISUBINT - 9ZES
0-00'000'02 %5'€0l LE'eeE'sl 01'996'8L %S'/2 19'999'L 00°66% sang pue saad diysiaquialy - 0ZeS
00°005'L %00 00°62¢"L 000 %00 005zl 000 weiBold uoeAIasSUO) JAJBM - S0£S
00°005'L %S'S 00°52€'L 00°GL %00 005zl 000 suonduosqng @ syoog - 00ES
007005 %00 e85y 000 %00 9L 000 sasuadxg [9ABI] - 0625
00005 %1 '6% 1E°85% 16'¥22 %0°'9E 9Ly 667l sieulwag ‘sBunadl ‘savuaiayue) - 082S
00°000°0} %Z'€91 ¥2'99L'6 9£'800's) %Z EGE'L ye'ees 26'9.2'L1L jutepy g Jieday - sABOWOINY - 0225
00°000'L¥ %6'¥0L le'ess'/e 0s'zZLi'ee %L'ZL lo'9lp'e 052y 3PIM 3510-59AS Buusaurbug - 99z
00°000'2€ %1801 viole'ee 00'599'9e %0°0 y£'€90'e 000 Buideaxjoog @ Bununodsy - 09z
00'00+'2 %€'86 00°002°2 682Z8L'e %666 00'002 G8'668 SWay| pasueul4-dx3 }SaIaU] - 9525
00°000'€) %8 E6E v20L6'LL 98'9Z6'9r %G'€9lL 7£'€80'} ZrLLL'L asuadxg Jsatay] - 6§52
00'000'22 %965 00°08L'¥2 eTovL'vL %0'6E 00°052'2 00°4.8 sasuadxg |ebaT - 0525
00°005'8 %LaLl L1684 04'L¥0'6 % LYl ¥£'802 00°000'L ebejsod - 5pzs
00°00S'S %606 1£'802'S PLLLE'T %00 19'162 000 saiddng 29140 - 0¥ZS
00°004'S %S0LL ¥ L6E'S eTEPL'E %00 ¥£'80¢ 000 sayddng Bulg - 00zs
00°000'LE %6°501 v29LY'8T 96°00L'08 %00 $£'€85'2 000 su| Aypgery/suj fyenses - 08Ls
00000} %0'¥L ¥L'9L6 61819 %00 rE'es 000 ‘Juiely % sreday - S[OOL [[BWS - §/LS
00°009'S %1'Z8 00°008's 66'80.'Z %8'8S 0000 8¥'9LL juiepy g Jieday Juswdinbz 23140 - 0215
00°000'0L %E'8EL ¥2'991'6 ¥.'819'2L %Z'9LE yE'ees Lo'sel's aJemyjos Jandwoy - 5915
00°000'0L %S'Z8 v2'991'6 16°095'2 %6'LZ ye'ees P A 1e3uay dinb3 2910 - 0918
00°004'S %G"S6 v L6e'S 09'0v2'e %TELL ¥£'80¢ 96'8vE a21alag abequen - 051
00°000'9L %g'e0l ¥2°999'71 90v8L'sl %S LY ye'eee't 1Z'€e9 jurely 2 Jreday P I9IISIA - SPLS
00'000'SL %0'€6 00°08L'EL 69'882'ZL %L'€E 00052'L 16°0Z¢ ey g Jreday buipiing - ovLs
00°000'% %2 L8 v.'008'e y0'66l'c %468 veeee 66'862 22430 - SAWBN - 0ELS
00°005'L %Z'862- 00'5.2E'L 85660t %00 00'sZL 0070 saxe] Apadold - 0ZLS
00°005'Z %SZTL L1622 86'908'Z %Gy ¥£'802 68'€6 asuadx3 sakojdwz Jau30 - 0605
00°00€'¥LL %8'L6 00°SLL'P0L 6.°96%'Z0L %6'68 00°525'6 £.'296'8 juawaigay sakojdwz - 0208
00°000'88} %0001 LE'CES'TLL L9'E2E'TLL %8'0LL 19'999'GL LS'ESE L1 asueJnsuy| yjjesy aakojdwz - 0505
00°000'02 %8°.9 leeee'sl YovEr'zL %6'98Z 29'999'L SLeve's @oueinsu| dwoy SJSYIOM - 0F0S
00°000'9} %156 ¥2'999'7L vLove'el %b'ZL Ye'Eee't 96'796 asuadxg xey jjoifed - 0205
00°000'tZ %STL 0000022 00°5¥6'SL %00 00°000'Z 000 J0qeT J9B[UOY - 0L0S
00°000'9 %S"E6 00°005'S YrEvL's %G'L6 00°005 09'.8% $994 BARRASIUIWPY - G005
00°000'292 %001 00°005'969 zeely'loL %8'e6 00°005'€9 6+°995'65 sabep pue salle[es - 000§
103HIaNI
asuadxz
00°009'250'2 %526 vp0ss'188'L 90°585'ee8') %9°90L ¥0°050'LLL y0'eZe'z8L 14oid Ss0ID
00°009'250'2 %546 y¥'05s'Les’L 90's8s'eee'l %9°901 ¥0'050'LLL ¥0'e2¢'z8L awoou| [ejoL
00°006'2¢ %G L6 le'851'0¢ 90'eLy'62 %¥'001 19LPL'T ¥5'€5L'2 dn/AalBueT - g enoy - sLov
0000925 %966 vL912'sy 8£°9v0'sy %2801 ¥e'e8e'y SOLPL'Y BLIBIA - 7| 3INCY - L0V
00°000's¥e %9'86 00°05Z'9LE logel'LLe %G'gLL 000582 187290'pE OJULION - £ 2INOY - £L0P
00°00Z'1E %L°0LL 1£'860'62 ¥6'500'28 %EELL L9'LP9'T ZTv6e8'T peoy anjoe|g - ZJ SN0y - ZLOY
00°000'L.Z %4001 v29L¥'8ve 667290'052 %L'9ZL $E'€85'22 1¥'99¥'82 Buipue SSo - L1 23n0Y - LLoY
00°005'0L %' L6 00'529'6 00'5.€'6 %L L6 00°5.8 00°058 preubunds- o1 30y - 0LoY
00°00£'95 1L %S'66 00°5/Z'shL 99°/86'Z¥L %196 00°SZ0'EL ZLeLs'zL eBoA - g a0y - OOV
00°000'851 %¥'Z6 1£°8€8' bl 09°088'cg) %E FOL lo'gol'el Gg'lel'el €LVYSD - L3N0y - L00F
00°002'S¥L %L'¥6 00°522'LEL SLLYL'YEL %486 00°S6'LL oe'oLe'LL esajy Auung - g 30y - 900Y
00°00%'€) %T L8 1£'€82'2) SL'604'0L %6°'S8 29911 ¥9'9e8 sidy Py uenr ues - g 3oy - S00Y
00°005'EL %G°L0L 00'528'2) 06°955'Z) %Z 86 00'szl't 90°50L'L Yied Ja|lel] - ¥ 3NOY - $O0F
00°000'£.Z %Z 68 ¥ '916'52 ¥s'Lov'9ze %L'Z6 $EE80'ET 80°L0%'12 [eI2J2WWOY - ¢ INOY - £00Y
00°000'9/2 %6°L6 00°000'¢52 6Lzol'lve %5"96 0000052 20°00Z'22 oueled - 330y - Z0oy
00°000'L22 %YoL vLoly'ske £1°208'vST %5601 ¥£'€85'2Z z9'lel'vT ouefed - | 3oy - LOOY
awooy|
asuadxgjewoou| feuipiQ
Jobpng jenuuy 1ebpng Jo % jebpng aLa 12 few - 0z, Inp 3e6png jo % jabpng 1z fewy
120z Aely siseg [enJooy

@ouewWIOuad J9bpng ssoT B Jjoid 120z ‘1z ounp

joU3sIg S991A19S Allunwiwo) esapy Auungjoleleyd . WV §2:6



e

@Idov %00 ¥.'99¢e 000 %00 veee 000 JuswesINquIay [psunoy |eba - gogy
00004 %0°0 vL'LYS 000 %0°0 $£'85 000 juswasinquiay Burdaayyoogpipny - seep
00°00.'s %S’ 00'522's L5621 %EL 00°54y 919 SNUBAIY JSAIA - OSTY
00°005 %00 1£'85% 000 %00 9Ly 000 234 PRAYIaND %SZ 01ISIA - OFEY
96°0/8'S 000 SJUBLIASINGLUIIBY JBPIQ JBWOISNY - GyEY
00°000'21 %L '601 00°000°L1 00°000'2} %0°0 00°000°L 000 sjuaWasINquiey uwpy Bunubry - Lyey
00°000'82 %0201 $2'999'sZ £0°L5¥' L2 %0°0 PE'EEE'T 000 sjuawasInquiy AN - ovey
L6°0%Y 000 SJUSLWISAAU] PIJ00 UO 3B - LLEY
00°0S 000 sabley )93y pauiniay - L0EY
00°008'L %6'% 00'GLE°L 98°/9 %EFG 00°5Z) S8°L9 3NUIAIY SNOAUR|[IISIY - SOCY
00'005 %00 1£'85F 000 %0°0 9Ly 000 199V O/M SNOIAR.d JO UOD3|I0D - 00EY
00°000'22 %8201 00°0SL'vE Z6'6¥Y'Se %E'90L 000522 2L 1BE' 994 U0 VWM A'd - S8ZF
00°000'6Z %8'50L ¥L'916'22 GEPST'YE %0°'¢ $£'£80'2 2929 aieyg UORII||0D Xel ejey-0id - 08ZF
00°000'842 %L0LL LE'EE8'YST 9zZ'zZ61'082 %00 lg'99L'eg 000 sjuawssassy puog ebap - oLzy
00°008'€9 %g'801 21868785 8T YLE'ES %00 19'91E's 000 quIIRY-IDUBUIUIBY J921S - 002V
00°00¥% %00 ¥1'99¢ 000 %00 $eee 000 $834 JAYI0 - S LY
00°05S %L'622 ¥2'05 00°55L'L %00 $8'sH 000 5994 uonesddy - LyLp
00°00€'¥ %g'L2eL PLLY6'S 00'260'2S %0°0 ¥E'85E 000 $994 UONOAULOD - 0P LY
00°005'~ %981 00'6/8'9 00°08Z'L %00 00'529 000 s34 Bunsal - SLLy
00°000'G %S'6E¢E 1£'¢85'y LL'8SS'SL %L 622 1991y 80766 saleg JUelpAH - OLLY
00°00§ %00 18861 00°0 %00 191y 000 suaunsnipy Bulig - LOLY
00°000's %E'001 LE'€86'y SE'66S'Y %b L0L L9'oLy 8G LYY saneuad juawied 93e7 - 00LY
awoauy| Jayio
asuadxgjawooul 1aY30
00°0SL'6¥L- %Z'6ZL Wzel'oel- 89'6£9'9/1- %0°09% Le'eZyeL- Le'eLL LG awoou AeuipQ 19N
00°05.'102'2 %9'66 §8'2/2'810°C $L022'010'2 %S 0EL se'eLp'esl GE'GeY'6ET asuadx3 [ejoL
00°000'c¥L %1601 1£'€80'LEL 00°096'2HL %00 19°916°LL 000 1sa19)ul-301M38 392Q BBaA - 5259
00°009'0L %8'9EL vL9LL'6 18°162'eL %00 ye'e88 000 dx3 ysa193u] puog Jajepy olefed - £EvS
00°005'¢ %L0LL 1£802' 88°'L55'E %00 19°L62 000 asuadx3 puog dOJ - 8ZvS
6L0S9'2L- 0v'608'6 plRybundg-1oafo.d Juswanosduw) - LZys
I r A zZ0'sy asuadx3 puog juwssy ebap - 9zvs
00°005'L %6161 00°5.€'L 92'8£9'Z %00 00°sZ1 00°0 J10jeJaudD - [3n4 - 09ES
00°000's2 %T TV ¥L916'22 5’2996 %00 g ¥£'€80'Z 000 SPWIad - §ZES
00°000'82 %078 $.4'999'sZ 19°185°LE %9'Z6 YE'EEe'T FANN-Thr A Bunubi jeans - sanunN - 515
00°000'04} %508 le'ee8'sel 8e'BYy'sel %9°/8 19091 'pL 0¥'80%'2ZL AUS [I3M - SABIBN - 0LES
00°000'2 %0°0 le'ees'L 000 %00 19'991 000 sosuadx3 Buussuibug - 5925
86°6VE'0Z PSRl asuadxz yled olefed - L£25
00°000'L %E 9L ¥L916 98'690°L %69 ye'es £8'/G Jurely g Jleday - yied - 0£25
00°059'2e %0°'L9 ¥2'626'62 $0'852'81 %6°LE vg0zL'e $8°0€0°L 9UBUSIUIBIN J9ANS - §ZZS
00°000'622 %9°L0L 00°052'902 §5¥¥9'602 %S'662 00°05.'8L 89'¥SL'95 jutely @ sreday - wWaysAs Jajem - 0225
00°000'2€ %eLL leeee'sz 0Z'616'02 %E b 19'099'2 08'L8L'L SS9 13JBM PUE [10S - 06LS
00°005'£25'L %6°L0L 08'60Z'00%'| Ll'ise'oey'L %6°L2L 08'162'L2) 19°022'551 1D3HIANI lejoL
00°000'8Z %2801 00°005'LL 00°6SE'LL %0°665 00°005'9 05°./9'8¢ }saJaju] - 921MIBS 309Q dOD - L1569
00°009 %E0 00°05S S %00 0005 00°0 sasuadx3 Buissaoold |joihed - 0959
000 000 UOREdO| Y JoRIPU] - XXX
00°002 %L'90 L~ LE°€8L 09'661- %6'7T 1991 Sy asuadx3 snoaue||9sI - 00VS
00°000'9 %6651 00°008'S 85'26.'8 %651 00'00S L0941 $334 UONOBSURIY PJED HP3ID - LEES
00°002 %E’'195 LE'E8L ¥Z'620'L %00 1991 00°0 sabley jueg - 06£5
00°000'¥2 %920l 00°000'22 29'els'ee %S ZLL 00'000'2 69'6¥2'C SHONIL - [aNd - 0LES
00°008 %G'96 LEEEL 00'80L %0'eYeZ 19'99 00'2Z9L Buuojyuow wuepy tejbing - opgs
00°000°ZL %586 28°685's1 LO'SY0'S) %5 %9 9oLl Ly'vL6 auoyda[al - 0£eS
3ebpng [enuuy 1ebpng jo % 39bpng a1 1z fem - 0z, Inf 3ebpng j0 % jebpng 1z Repy
VNQN >.m_2 siseg |[entooy

2ourwWIolad }Jobpng ss01 B J1j0id 1202 ‘1z aunp
JoulSIq S8v1A198 Ajlunwwo) esay Auungjoleled WY S2°6



o
00°002°25¢ %L LLS 98°068°2Z¢ 81°192'r68°L %E"L0L 92°808°6Z 020602 awosu| 19N
00°058'90% %L GhY PrAiR-R-T 98'968'0£0'2 %E'0E9 i-Wlrarad 19'90Z'99Z awWoou| Jayl0 19N
90'LSL LY 000 asuadx3 Jayjo [ej0L
007002 000 sasuadx3z Bunybr - 09z9
90'LS6'0F 00'0 osefed-joafoid Juawanoldw) - seps
asuadxg Jayo
00°058'90S %9 vSY ZelLe'voy T8 LP0'TLL'E %g'089 157182'2Y 19'902'992 awoau] Jay3Q [e30L
00°005'92 000 ANUIAIY NJed oleled - 966
00°005'0% %1501 00°sZL'Le 6+'000'6E %00 00°548'e 00'0 SJUBWISSISSY puOg JAJBM - 6.5
000 000 uoneuoq pajeubisaq pieog - 0155
ye'ZSY'y 00°0 quiay 19 1M panog plbuuds - pzs
S6'GLO'TLY L 09'€/2'292 quiay Juets-loid aroidwy osefed - 6ors
8€'998'GL 1L 00'0 quiay jueln-joafold preybuuds - gops
196png |enuuy 19Bpng jo % 1ebpng alA 1z Aem - 0z, Inf 30bpng jo % 1ebBpng 1z fem
1202 Ael siseg [ensooy

2ouBWIOLIad }8bpng sso B Jjoid
JouIsIg s991MeS Allunwiwo) esaly Auungjoleled

20T ‘pZ dunr
NY §2:6



¥ jo | abed

o
™
e %6% Lt €1°00.L- vEees’l 12'€£9 e g steday apIp 3ISIA - SPLS
%89°CE £0'628" 00°052°L L6°02F yuteyy g Jiedsy Bulpjing - 0p1LS
%L 68 Ge e- peees 66'862 2240 - SaINN - 0SLS
%0°0 00°6Z1L- 0062l 000 soxe] Apadold - 0Z1LS
%L0°GY Sryll- ¥€'802 68°¢6 asuadx3 aafojdw3 J2U30 - 0605
%668 12'296" 00'625'6 £L°295'8 juawaigey safoidwy - 0205
%LLOLL ¥2°989'L £9°999'G1 LG'EGE'LL @oueinsu] yjjeeH safojdwiz - 0505
%G6°9€2 8v'zee'e £9°999'L SL6P6'S aoueInsu| dwoy SJ34IO0M - 0108
%LETL 8£'89¢- yeeee'l 96'%96 asuadx3 xeL [|0ifed - 0£05
%00 00°000'2- 00°000'2 000 logeT jpenuog - 01.0S
%S L6 or'Zh- 00°005 09°28% S84 BARRNSILILPY - §00S
%18'¢6 1G'€E6'e 00°005'€9 61°99G'65 sabep pue saue|es - 000§
Lo3NIaNI
asuadx3y
%65'901 00°€2'L) #0°0G0'LLL ¥0'cze el Joid sS0ID
%65°901 00°€Le' L) #0°0G0'LLL ¥0'€2e'Z8L awoou| [ejo)
%< 001 8711 L9'LPLE ¥G'€6L'2 dnReiBueT - gL 8Inoy - GLOY
%L1 '801 L£'85E PEESE Y SO'LYL'Y BLIBIA - p1 9INOY - L0V
%8¥'8L 1 L8°ZIE'S 00°05.'82 18'290'%¢ OJWLION - €] 3IN0Y - €10V
%SEELL 65'z5¢ L9'IY9'T ZTV66'C peoy anjoe(g - Z| SN0y - ZLOY
%5092 €1°¢88's ¥E'e85'22 L¥'991'82 Buipue] ssoj - L 9oy - LLoY
%126 00'ge- 00'6.8 00°068 pleybunds- L 23noy - 0LOY
%80°96 8Z'LLs- 00'620'c) zZL'els'zL eBap - g oy - g00Y
%¥e¥0L 81145 L9'99L'¢) gg'lgl'cl €L VSO - L 3oy - L00Y
%8986 0L'85}- 00'G46'}1 0g'9L8'LL esajy Auung - g 230y - 900%
%88'€8 £0°081- L9911} ¥9'96 sydy py uenr ueg - g N0y - S00¥
%ET 86 ¥6'61- 00°6Z1'L 80°50L'L sped J9[iel] - ¢ 9N0Y - $00Y
%¥L'Z6 82°9/8'L- vE'€80'cZ 80°L0%'1L2 [eIOIBWWOY - € SINOY - £00¥
%S 96 86'66.- 00°000'€Z 2000222 olefed - Z SN0y - Zoov
%P5'601 82VSL'Z Y852 Z9°L8L'Y2 otefed - | sInoy - LOOY
awodu|
asuadxg/awosu| AeuipiQ
3ebpng jo % 39bpng 1910 $ 1ebpng 1z e
1202 Aely
[en}dy "SA amm—usm $S0T @ }1joid siseg [entody

120z ‘Lz aunp

JoU3SIg S991A19S Alunwwo) esapy Auungjolieled NV £6:6



¥ Jo z abed
<
o

(=1

%67 662 89'¥0¥‘LE 00°05.°8L 8975195
%ZE P 18'¥8%')L- 19'999'Z 08181}
%6 121 19'826'42 09°'162°.Z1 19'022'551
%¥0'G6S 0s'LLL'2E 00°005‘g 05'2.9'8€
%00 00°05- 000§ 000
%62 rAgAN 1991 Gy
%GE'S5 | L2912 00°005 12921
%0°0 L9°91- 1991 000
%6 ZL1 69612 000002 69'6Y2'C
%662V £e'g6 19'99 00291
%G5 P9 9z'205- L99L¥'L Lr'yle
%0°0 19'991- 19991 000
%¥SLE 1920Z'}- £9'999'L 00'65%
%0°0 TR 00'6Z) 000
%0°0 00'sZ1- 006z} 000
%00 19'Lp- 9Ly 000
%/L6'GE 89'9z- L9L¥ 6671
%22 'e5E'L eGS0l ve'ees z6'9L2'LL
%L0°Z) L1'00'e- L99Lp'e 05ZlY
%00 ¥£'€80'¢- ve'€80's 000
%E6'66 58661 007002 58668
%25 €9 80'889 ¥£'€80'L Y LLLL
%86'8S 00°€L€'}- 00'052'2 00°2.8
%81 Lyl 99'162 #£'80L 00°000'L
%00 L9'162- 19'16Z 000
%00 pe g0e- 7£'808 000
%00 ve'ees'e- 7E£'€85'2 000
%00 ve'es- ¥£'¢8 000
%£8'85 rARrAN 00°00€ 8v'9Ll
%Z 9LE 1971082 ye'ees LO'gEL'E
%6°LT Z8'009- ¥E£'€€8 A HANA
%LL'ELL zZ9°0p ¥£'80¢ 96'8vE
3ebpng jo % 1ebpng JonQ $ 3ebpng 12 Aepy
120z Aepy

[enjay "sA }1@bpng ssoT 9 Jjoid
jJo13SIg S99IAI8S AJunwwos esay Auung/oseled

Jutepy B Jreday - wWa)sAg Is1em - 0225
S)SaL J3jep PUE [IOS - 0615
LO3HIANI [ejoL

}sadaju] - 32IAIBS 192 dOD - LS9
sasuadx3 Buissasoud [j0ihed - 0959
asuadx3g snoaue([adsI - 00FS
S994 uonoesuRl] pie) UPal) - L6ES
sobieyn yueg - 06ES

sYondL - 1and - 02£5

Buuojiuop waery Jejbing - opes
suoydalal - 0££S

SUonEIYILAD pUR SISURIIT - 9ZES
san( pue sea4 diysiaquidy - 0ZES
weib0o1d UoiRAIBSUOD I3JBAA - SOES
suonduosgnsg R syoog - 00£S
sasuadxg |aAel] - 0625

sieuiwasg ‘sbuneayy ‘sasualajuog - 082S
jutey g Jreday - sAjowoINyY - 025
aPIM 3510-52As Bulsauibug - 99zs
Buidsayyoog B Bununoosdy - 09zZ5
Swiay| pasueuld-dx3 Jsaiaiy| - 9525
asuadx3 1salay| - 5525

sasuadx3 [eba - 0525

abejsod - syzg

saljddng 92140 - 0v2ZS

salddng Buljiig - 0025

su| fypgeryysu| fyjenses - oglLs
‘Jutepy g Jieday - S|OOL WS - §/1G
jutely g Jieday yuswdinbz 220 - 0415
alempog Jandwo) - 5915

leyuay dinb3 990 - 0915

ao1nIag abequen - 05LS

siseg |enJooy
120z ‘Lz sunp
NV €€:6



¥ jo ¢ abed
[Lo]
d

o

juswesinquiay Buidaayyoogpipny - Ssev
aNuUBaAY Jsalaju] - 0SEY

994 PE3YIAAQ %SZ 0MISIA - 9vER
sjuswasINquIsyY ulwpy Bunybiy . Lyey
sjuawasInquiay ANnnN - ovey

2NU3A3Y SNOJUB|[ADSI - S0EY

100Y O/M SNOIA3I JO UORI310D - 00Sh
234 UON23J10D "Y' IN'M'A'd - S8ZF

aleyg uond3||o) Xe| ejey-old - 082y
sjuaWIssassy puog ebap - 0L2b
quIIaY-3dUBUAIRI 199138 - 00ZF

-+ §994 1930 - OF LY

sea4 uonealddy - Lyl

S884 uondauuey - OvLy

sa94 Bunsal - 1Ly

so|es JueipAH - OLLY

sjuawisnipy Bulg - LOLY

sanjjeuad Juswhed ajeT - 0Ly

awoou| Jayj0
asuadxzjawoou| Jayio

awoou| AJeuipiQ 18N

%00 €85 $£°85 000
%E"L #8°981- 00°G.¥ alg
%00 L9y VicHh4 000
%00 0070001~ 00°000°} 000
%00 yegee'e- vE'eee'e 000
%8TYS G1'L6- 00°G2Z1L G8'/9
%0°0 L9y L9y 000
%E"901 Lvl 00°0s2'e ZLLBE'S
%L0°E zL020'2- $£'€80'2 2929
%0°0 L9'98l'¢ce- L9'99l'eg 00'0
%00 19'918'6- L991¢'s 000
%00 yeee- ¥Eee 000
%00 v8°GH- 851 000
%0°0 veege- $£'85¢€ 000
%00 00629~ 00'529 00°0
%L 622 L 0rS L9°9L¥ 80°L56
%00 L9y 9Ly 000
%2y L01 160 19°9L¥ 85" Ly
%EZ 69 ¥0E9F'ge- LE'BEY'TL- GE°Z68'Sh-
%BE ¥l P0'9EL 'Yy SE'BLY'E8L 6£'612'822
%00 L9'916'L1- L9'916'L1 000
%0°0 vee8s- $£°€88 000
%00 L9162 L9162 000
%0°0 00'62L- 00°52L 000
%0°0 #£'€80°2- ¥£'€80'2 000
%29°26 LVELlL- veeee's Lok’
%65 L8 12861 - L9°'991'vL ov'80t'2L
%00 2999}~ 19991 000
%BE'69 [Repera 7E'e8 £8°.5
%69°LE 00°069'|- ¥8°02L'2 #8°0€0'}
3ebpng jo %, 3ebpng 1970 § 19Bpng 1z few
120z Aely

asuadx3 [ejoL
35919)u|-991M9S 3o BP9 - 5259
dx3 3sa19)u| puog Jajep oleled - £EPS
asuadxg puog dOD - 8Z¥S
d0jelauas) - [@n4d - 09ES
spulad - G6ZES
Bunybi 19ans - senilN - S1ES
S 1I9AA - SallN - 01ES
sasuadxg Buusaulbug - 59zs
jutely g Jreday - yled - 0£ZS
2ouUBUIUIRYY J994)S - §ZZS

[enjoy "sSA 1obpng ssoT R Jijold
Jo13sIq S991A19S Alunwwo) esapy Auungjolieled

siseg |enaoy
120z ‘Lg sunp
NV €€:6



v 4o ¢ abed
[{a]

(o]

o

L L80°T¥S- LT ETLTEYS T6'008°€LPS
ERIESET | ysey Aejnl yse) |udy

v€'656'TVS- 6€°S12°82ZS S0°99Z'98TS
aJuaJapa asuadx3y [e30] Bwodu| [B}OL

9L 0¥L- 09°292°LL- 9Z'808°62 $E656°Li-
%1E'6 95'+0g'8¢- 16°182'2Y L0'ee6's
%1lE6 95702 '8¢e- 1618228 10°eEB's
%0°0 00°G8'e- 00°G/€'S 000
%0'0 yEee- €€ 000
jebpng 30 9% jobpng JanQ § jebpng 1z fepy
120z Ae

|enoy "sA }J96png sso07] 9 J1jold
Jougsiq sav1Alag fjlunwwon esapy Auung/oleled

awoau| 18N
awoou| Jaylo 19N
awoau| JaYj0 101
SJUBWISSISSY puog Jajep) - ¥6.S
juswesinquiay [asunoy [eba - 09ch

siseqg [entooy
120z ‘Ll sunp
WV €€:6



9:16 AM Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Services District P. 27

June 21, 2021 Check Detail - Operating Account
June 2021
Type Num Date Name Account Paid Amount Original Amount

Check 06/17/2021 Deluxe for Business 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -405.67

5240 - Office Supplies -405.67 405,67
TOTAL -405.67 405.67
Check AP 06/02/2021 Total Merchant Services 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -792.37

5391 - Credit Card Transaction Fees -792.37 792.37
TOTAL -792.37 792.37
Check AP 06/07/2021 FP Mailing Solutions-Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -1,000.00

5245 - Postage -1,000.00 1,000.00
TOTAL -1,000.00 1,000.00
Bill Pmt -Check AP 06/10/2021 A. L. Lease Company, Inc.-Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -86.80
Bill 137304  05/26/2021 5140 - Building Repair & Maint -62.50 62.50
Bill 137302  05/26/2021 5140 - Building Repair & Maint -24.30 24.30
TOTAL -86.80 86.80
Bill Pmt -Check AP 06/10/2021 Ace Hardware Prunedale- ACH 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -213.45
Bill 0519...  05/10/2021 5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -19.38 19.38
Bill 0519...  05/13/2021 5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -31.23 31.23
Bill 0519...  05/14/2021 5145 - District Wide Repair & Maint -9.26 9.26
Bill 0519...  05/18/2021 5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -12.92 12.92
Bill 0520...  05/21/2021 5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -74.13 74.13
Bill 0520...  05/26/2021 5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -20.46 20.46
Bill 0520...  05/26/2021 5145 - District Wide Repair & Maint -17.23 17.23
Bill 0520...  05/27/2021 5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -28.84 28.84
TOTAL -213.45 213.45
Bill Pmt -Check AP 06/10/2021 Ace Hardware Watsonville- ACH 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -131.31
Bill 205613  05/03/2021 5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -25.09 25.09
Bill 205732  05/06/2021 5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -15.27 16.27
Bill 206085 05/20/2021 5230 - Park - Repair & Maint -12.00 12.00
Bill 206070 05/20/2021 5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -6.83 6.83
Bill 206162  05/24/2021 5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -26.29 26.29
Bill 206188  05/25/2021 5230 - Park - Repair & Maint -45.83 45.83
TOTAL -131.31 131.31
Bill Pmt -Check AP 06/10/2021 Aramark- ACH 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -130.52
Bill 5110...  05/07/2021 5140 - Building Repair & Maint . -32.63 ) 32.63
Bill 5110...  05/14/2021 5140 - Building Repair & Maint -32.63 32.63
Bill 5110...  05/21/2021 5140 - Building Repair & Maint -32.63 32.63
Bill 5110...  05/28/2021 5140 - Building Repair & Maint -32.63 32.63
TOTAL -130.52 130.52
Bill Pmt -Check AP 06/10/2021 AT&T 2043-Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -439.47
Bill MAY ...  05/26/2021 5330 - Telephone -439.47 439.47
TOTAL -439.47 439.47
Bill Pmt -Check AP 06/10/2021 AT&T 2486-Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -200.51
Bill MAY ... 05/26/2021 5310 - Utilities - Well Site . -200.51 200.51
TOTAL -200.51 200.51
Bill Pmt -Check AP 06/10/2021 AT&T 3439-Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -33.34

Page 1



Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Services District

P. 28

9:16 AM
June 21, 2021 Check Detail - Operating Account
June 2021
Type Num Date Name Account Paid Amount Original Amount
Bill 6//2...  06/01/2021 5310 - Ulilities - Well Site -33.34 33.34
TOTAL -33.34 33.34
Bill Pmt -Check AP 06/10/2021 Bianchi Alarm Systems-Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -84.00
Bill 24211 05/26/2021 5340 - Burglar Alarm Monitoring -84.00 84.00
TOTAL -84.00 84.00
Bill Pmt -Check AP 06/10/2021 California Tire Mobil Service-Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -20.00
Bill 49850 06/03/2021 5270 - Automotive - Repair & Maint -20.00 20.00
TOTAL -20.00 20.00
Bill Pmt -Check AP 06/10/2021 Castroville Ace Hardware-Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -12.51
Bill 1790...  05/08/2021 5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -12.51 12,51
TOTAL -12.51 12.51
Bill Pmt -Check AP 06/10/2021 Chaz Design- Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -377.64
Bill 3283 06/04/2021 5230 - Park - Repair & Maint -377.64 377.64
-TOTAL -377.64 377.64
Bill Pmt -Check AP 06/10/2021 Corbin Willits Systems-Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -237.42
Bill 000C... 05/15/2021 5165 - Computer Software -237.42 237.42
TOTAL -237.42 237.42
Bill Pmt -Check AP 06/10/2021 Green Rubber Kennedy Ag- ACH 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -42,15
Bill W-55...  05/03/2021 5145 - District Wide Repair & Maint -42.15 42,15
TOTAL -42.15 42.15
Bill Pmt -Check AP 06/10/2021 Grunsky Law Firm 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -877.00
Bill Inv. 9...  05/24/2021 5250 - Legal Expenses -877.00 877.00
TOTAL -877.00 877.00
Bill Pmt -Check AP 06/10/2021 Mission Uniform Service-Online 1001.- SCCB - Operating Account -256.81
Bill 5146...  05/03/2021 5140 - Building Repair & Maint -40.73 40.73
Bill 5147...  05/10/2021 5140 - Building Repair & Maint -40.73 40.73
Bill 5147...  05/17/2021 5140 - Building Repair & Maint -40.73 40.73
5090 - Other Employee Expense -93.89 93.89
Bill 5148...  05/24/2021 5140 - Building Repair & Maint -40.73 40.73
TOTAL -256.81 256.81
Bill Pmt -Check AP 06/10/2021 PARS- ACH 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -487.60
Bill 48060  05/11/2021 5005 - Administrative Fees -487.60 487.60
TOTAL -487.60 487.60
Bill Pmt -Check AP 06/10/2021 PG&E 1438-Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -2,062.13
Bill 41271... 05/26/2021 5310 - Utilities - Well Site -2,062.13 2,062.13
TOTAL -2,052.13 2,052.13
Bill Pmt -Check AP 06/10/2021 PG&E 1826-Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -25.71

Page 2



9:16 AM Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Services District P. 29

June 21, 2021 Check Detail - Operating Account
June 2021

Type Num Date Name Account Paid Amount Original Amount
Bill 4/20/...  05/19/2021 5310 - Utilities - Well Site -25.71 25.71
TOTAL -26.71 25.71
Bill Pmt -Check AP 06/10/2021 PG&E 6022-Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -14.54
Bill 4/22/...  05/20/2021 5315 - Utilities - Street Lighting -14.54 14.54
TOTAL -14.54 14.54
Bill Pmt -Check AP 06/10/2021 Santa Cruz Answering Service-Onl... 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -89.40
Bill 1009 ... 05/22/2021 5330 - Telephone -89.40 89.40
TOTAL -89.40 89.40
Bill Pmt -Check AP 06/10/2021 Singh Computech- ACH 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -170.00
Bill 8786 06/01/2021 5165 - Computer Software -170.00 170.00
TOTAL -170.00 170.00
Bill Pmt -Check AP 06/10/2021 Sturdy Oil Company- ACH 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -2,100.13
Bill CLe4... 05/15/2021 5370 - Fuel - Trucks -1,164.07 1,154.07
Bill CL64... 05/31/2021 5370 - Fuel - Trucks -946.06 946.06
TOTAL -2,100.13 2,100.13
Bill Pmt -Check AP 06/10/2021 Taylor's Office City- ACH 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -124.41
Bill 3288..  06/02/2021 ' 5240 - Office Supplies -124.41 124.41
TOTAL -124.41 124.41
Bill Pmt -Check AP 06/10/2021 Tesco Controls- Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -270.18
Bill 0073...  06/26/2021 5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -270.18 270.18
TOTAL -270.18 270.18
Bill Pmt -Check AP 06/10/2021 Tom's Site Service- ACH 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -203.49
Bill 57296  05/23/2021 5145 - District Wide Repair & Maint -203.49 203.49
TOTAL -203.49 203.49
Bill Pmt -Check AP 06/10/2021 TOTLCOM, Inc.- Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -600.00
Bill 312046  06/02/2021 5170 - Office Equipment Repair & Ma... -600.00 600.00
TOTAL -600.00 600.00
Bill Pmt -Check AP 06/10/2021 Univar-ACH 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -1,734.94
Bill 49156...  05/14/2021 5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -1,734.94 1,734.94
TOTAL -1,734.94 1,734.94
Bill Pmt -Check AP 06/10/2021 USA Blue Book- ONLINE 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -102.85
Bill 607138  05/18/2021 5145 - District Wide Repair & Maint -102.85 102.85
TOTAL -102.85 102.85
Bill Pmt -Check AP 06/10/2021 WM / Carmel Marina - Office-Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -348.96
Bill 9586...  06/01/2021 5150 - Garbage Service -348.96 348.96
TOTAL ) -348.96 348.96

Page 3



Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Services District

P. 30

9:16 AM
June 21, 2021 Check Detail - Operating Account
June 2021
Type Num Date Name Account Paid Amount Original Amount

Bill Pmt -Check AP 06/21/2021 A. L. Lease Company, Inc.-Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -27.26
Bill 137575  06/02/2021 5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -27.25 27.26
TOTAL -27.25 27.25
Bill Pmt -Check AP 06/21/2021 ACWA-JPIA (med ins)-ACH 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -17,046.13
Bill 0668... 06/02/2021 5050 - Employee Health Insurance -15,6561.11 15,651.11

2264 - Employee Insurance Payable -1,385.02 1,395.02
TOTAL -17,046.13 17,046.13
Bill Pmt -Check AP 06/21/2021 AT&T 0646-Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -228.38
Bill 6/5/2...  06/05/2021 5310 - Utilities - Well Site -228.38 228.38
TOTAL -228.38 228.38
Bill Pmt -Check AP 06/21/2021 AT&T 1782-Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -33.34
Bill 6/712... 06/07/2021 5310 - Utilities - Well Site -33.34 33.34
TOTAL -33.34 33.34
Bill Pmt -Check AP 06/21/2021 AT&T 2627-Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -33.34
Bill 6/7-71...  06/07/2021 5310 - Utilities - Well Site -33.34 33.34
TOTAL -33.34 33.34
Bill Pmt -Check AP 06/21/2021 AT&T 5283-Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -200.51
Bill 6/11/...  06/11/2021 5310 - Utilities - Well Site -200.51 200.51
TOTAL -200.51 200.51
Bill Pmt -Check AP 06/21/12021 AT&T 6542-Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -65.26
Bill BI7I2... 06/07/2021 5310 - Utilities - Well Site -65.26 65.26
TOTAL -65.26 65.26
Bill Pmt -Check AP 06/21/2021 AT&T 8925- Wireless/Cell 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -385.54
Bill x060...  06/01/2021 5330 - Telephone -385.54 385.54
TOTAL -385.54 385.54
Bill Pmt -Check AP 06/21/2021 Chevrolet of Watsonville- Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -8,246.89
Bill 249249  05/24/2021 5270 - Automotive - Repair & Maint -8,246.89 8,246.89
TOTAL -B,246.89 8,246.89
Bill Pmt -Check AP 06/21/2021 Coastal Paving & Excavating- ACH 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -11,635.35
Bill Inv.9... -06/16/2021 5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -11,635.35 11,635.35
TOTAL -11,635.35 11,635.35
Bill Pmt -Check AP 06/21/2021 Elan-Cnline 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -229.10
Bill June ... 06/03/2021 2910 - Elan -229.10 229.10
TOTAL -229.10 229.10
Bill Pmt -Check AP 06/21/2021 Green Rubber Kennedy Ag- ACH 1001 + SCCB - Operating Account -161.58
Bill W-55...  06/02/2021 5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -54.13 54.13

Page 4



Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Services District

P. 31

9:16 AM
June 21, 2021 Check Detail - Operating Account
June 2021
Type Num Date Name Account Paid Amount Original Amount
Bill W-55...  06/09/2021 5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -65.54 65.54
Bill W-55...  06/09/2021 5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -28.51 28.51
Bill W-55...  06/09/2021 5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -13.40 13.40
TOTAL -161.58 161.58
Bill Pmt -Check AP 06/21/2021 Grunsky Law Firm 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -1,425.00
Bill Inv. 9...  06/07/2021 5250 - Legal Expenses -425,00 425,00
Bill Inv. 9...  06/14/2021 5250 - Legal Expenses -1,000.00 1,000.00
TOTAL -1,425.00 1,425.00
Bill Pmt -Check AP 06/21/2021 MBAS- ACH 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -345.60
Bill 2105...  05/24/2021 5190 - Soil and Water Tests -45.00 45.00
Bill 2106...  06/11/2021 5190 - Soil and Water Tesis -75.60 75.60
Bill 2106...  06/17/2021 5190 - Soil and Water Tests -180.00 180.00
Bill 2106...  08/17/2021 5190 - Seil and Water Tests -45,00 45.00
TOTAL -345.60 345.60
Bill Pmt -Check AP 06/21/2021 Mid Valley Supply- ACH 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -942.86
Bill 12526...  05/20/2021 5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -130.04 130.04
5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -32.61 32.51
5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -32.51 32.51
5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -32.51 32.51
5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -32.53 32.53
Bill 12627...  05/28/2021 5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -97.53 97.53
5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -97.53 97.53
5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -32.51 32.51
5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -32.53 32,53
Bill 12528...  06/02/2021 5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -66.02 65.02
5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -32.51 32,51
5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -32.51 32.51
5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -32.52 32.52
Bill 12530...  06/10/2021 5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -65.02 65.02
5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -32.51 32.51
5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -32.51 32.51
5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -32.51 32.51
5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -65.02 65.02
5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -32.53 32,53
TOTAL -942.86 942,86
Bill Pmt -Check AP 06/21/2021 Mission Uniform Service-Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -40.73
Bill 5148... 05/31/2021 5140 - Building Repair & Maint -40.73 40.73
TOTAL ' -40.73 4073
Bill Pmt -Check AP 06/21/2021 Monterey One Water- Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -69.98
Bill JUNE... 05/31/2021 5130 - Utilities - Office -25.73 2573
Bill 05M1... 05/31/2021 5310 - Utilities - Well Site -44.25 44,25
TOTAL -69.98 69.98
Bill Pmt -Check AP 06/21/2021 PG&E 0819-Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -8,638.66
Bill 5/6/2... 06/07/2021 5310 - Utilities - Well Site -3,838.07 3,838.07
5310 - Utilities - Well Site -2,427.27 2,427.27
5310 - Utilities - Well Site -188.96 188.96
5310 - Utilities - Well Site -871.19 871.19
5310 - Utilities - Well Site -359.97 359.97
5315 - Utilities - Street Lighting -88.94 88.94
5310 - Utilities - Well Site -864.26 864.26
TOTAL -8,638.66 8,638.66
Bill Pmt -Check AP 06/21/2021 PG&E 6857-Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -3,865.41
Bill 4/28/... 06/08/2021 5310 - Utilities - Well Site -1,288.21 1,288.21

Page 5



Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Services District

P. 32

9:16 AM
June 21, 2021 Check Detail - Operating Account
June 2021
Type Num Date Name Account Paid Amount Original Amount
5310 - Utilities - Well Site -263.48 263.48
5130 - Ulilities - Office -181.05 181.05
5310 - Utilities - Well Site -74.80 74.90
5315 - Ulilities - Street Lighting -2,057.77 2,057.77
TOTAL -3,865.41 3,865.41
Bill Pmt -Check AP 06/21/2021 Pure Water- ACH 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -8,186.70
Bill 379477  06/01/2021 State Water Resources Control Board 5427 - Improvement Project-Springfield -6,464.10 6,464.10
Bill 379476  06/01/2021 State Water Resources Control Board 5427 - Improvement Project-Springfield -1,722.60 1,722.60
TOTAL -8,186.70 8,186.70
Bill Pmt -Check AP 06/21/2021 Quinn Company- ACH 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -1,054.50
Bill WON... 06/10/2021 5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -294.50 294.50
Bill WON... 08/10/2021 5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -294.50 294.50
Bill WON... 06/10/2021 5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -465.50 465.50
TOTAL -1,054.50 1,054.50
Bill Pmt -Check AP 06/21/2021 Réyal Oaks Auto Repair Inc. 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -183.00
Bill 36497 06/03/2021 5230 - Park - Repair & Maint -183.00 183.00
TOTAL -183.00 183.00
Bill Pmt -Check AP 06/21/2021 Singh Computech- ACH 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -340.00
Bill 8804 06/11/2021 5165 + Computer Software -170.00 170.00
Bill 8802 06/11/2021 5165 - Computer Software -170.00 170.00
TOTAL -340.00 340.00
Bill Pmt -Check AP 06/21/2021 Soil Control Lab- ACH 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -825.00
Bill 1040...  04/28/2021 5190 - Soil and Water Tests -50.00 50.00
Bill 1040...  04/28/2021 5190 - Soil and Water Tests -50.00 50.00
Bill 1040...  04/28/2021 5190 - Soil and Water Tests -75.00 75.00
Bill 1040...  04/28/2021 5190 - Soil and Water Tests -25.00 25.00
Bill 1040...  04/28/2021 5190 - Soil and Water Tests -25.00 25.00
Bill 1050...  05/19/2021 5180 - Soil and Water Tests -25.00 25.00
Bill 1050... 05/19/2021 5190 - Soil and Water Tests -50.00 50.00
Bill 1050...  05/19/2021 5180 - Soil and Water Tests -50.00 50,00
Bill 1050...  05/19/2021 5180 - Soil and Water Tests -75.00 75.00
Bill 1050...  05/19/2021 5190 - Soil and Water Tests -25.00 25.00
Bill 1050...  05/26/2021 5190 - Soil and Water Tests -75.00 75.00
Bill 1050...  05/26/2021 5190 - Soil and Water Tesls -25.00 25.00
Bill 1060... 06/10/2021 5190 - Soil and Water Tests -75.00 75.00
Bill 1060...  06/10/2021 5190 - Soil and Water Tests -50.00 50.00
Bill 1060...  08/10/2021 5190 - Soil and Water Tests -25.00 25.00
Bill 1060...  06/10/2021 5190 - Soil and Water Tesls -25.00 25.00
Bill 1060...  06/10/2021 5190 - Soil and Water Tests -25.00 25.00
Bill 1060...  06/10/2021 5190 - Soil and Water Tests -25.00 25.00
Bill 1060...  06/10/2021 5190 - Soil and Water Tests -25.00 25.00
Bill 10860... 06/10/2021 5190 - Soil and Water Tests -25.00 25.00
TOTAL -825.00 825.00
Bill Pmt -Check AP 06/21/2021 Staples Credit Plan-Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -65.74
Bill JUNE... 06/08/2021 5240 - Office Supplies -65.74 65.74
TOTAL -65.74 65.74
Bill Pmt -Check AP 06/21/2021 Thomas E Yeager, P.E.- ACH 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -646.50
Bill Invoic...  06/01/2021 5427 - Improvement Project-Springfield -121.75 150.00
5266 - Engineering Svcs-Dist Wide -524.75 646.50
TOTAL -646.50 796.50

Page 6



Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Services District

P. 33

9:16 AM
June 21, 2021 Check Detail - Operating Account
June 2021
Type Num Date Name Account Paid Amount Original Amount
Bill Pmt -Check AP 06/21/2021 TIAA Commercial Finance, Inc. 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -194.40
Bill 8206..  06/08/2021 5160 - Office Equip Rental -194.40 194.40
TOTAL -194.40 1984.40
Bill Pmt -Check AP 06/21/2021 Wells Fargo- 6120 ONLINE 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -919.07
Bill 06/10/2021 2900 - Wells Fargo- 6120 -919.07 919.07
TOTAL -919.07 919.07
Bill Pmt -Check AP 06/21/2021 Wells Fargo 0721-Online 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -14.99
Bill June ... 08/17/2021 2905 - Wells Fargo- 0721 -14.99 14.99
TOTAL -14.99 14.89
Check PARS  06/02/2021 US Bank - PARS #6746022400 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -4,284.39
5070 - Employee Retirement -4,284.39 4,284.39
TOTAL -4,284.39 4,284.39
Check PARS 06/16/2021 US Bank - PARS #6746022400 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -4,294,24
5070 - Employee Retirement -4,294.24 4,294.24
TOTAL -4,204.24 4,294.24
Bill Pmt -Check 24739 06/10/2021 Santa Cruz County Bank 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -566.04
Bill ACC... 05/23/2021 2256 - Vehicle Loan Payable -454.08 454,08
- 5256 - Interest Exp-Financed Items -111.96 111.96
TOTAL -566.04 566.04
Bill Pmt -Check 24750 06/21/2021 Monterey County Environmental H... 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -17,855.00
Bill IN101...  08/09/2021 5325 - Permits -707.00 707.00
Bill IN101...  06/09/2021 5325 - Permits -2,239.00 2,239.00
Bill IN101...  06/09/2021 5325 - Permits -2,764.00 2,764.00
Bill IN101...  08/09/2021 5325 - Permits -3,2566.00 3,256.00
Bill IN101...  06/09/2021 5325 - Permits -3,256.00 3,256.00
Bill IN101...  08/09/2021 5325 - Permits -2,472.00 2,472.00
Bill IN101...  06/09/2021 5325 - Permits -3,161.00 3,161.00
TOTAL -17,855.00 17,855.00
Bill Pmt -Check 24751 06/21/2021 Ms. Veronica Alcaraz 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -21.83
Bill Credi...  06/01/2021 1100 - Water Customer Accounts Recv -21.83 21.83
TOTAL -21.83 21.83
Bill Pmt -Check 24752 06/21/2021 Rebecca Ugale 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -5.74
Bill Credi...  06/01/2021 1100 - Water Customer Accounts Recv -5.74 574
TOTAL -5.74 5.74
Bill Pmt -Check 24753 06/21/2021 Santa Cruz County Bank-0190 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -1,334.45
Bill Intere...  06/08/2021 5255 - Interest Expense -1,334.45 1,334.45
TOTAL -1,334.45 1,334.45
Bill Pmt -Check 24754 06/21/12021 Watsonville Pajaronian 1001 - SCCB - Operating Account -94.23
Bill 25976 06/18/2021 5250 - Legal Expenses -94.23 94.23

Page 7



P. 34

9:14 AM Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Services District
June 21, 2021 Check Detail - COP 2010 Account
June 2021
Type Num Date Name Account Paid Amount Original Amount
Check AP 06/08/2021 Santa Cruz County Bank-0190 1032 - SCCB-COP Acct (aka Const.... -212,992.57
2267 - Pajaro Tank Loan-0190 -212,992.57 212,992.57
TOTAL -212,992.57 212,992,567
Bill Pmt -Check AP 06/10/2021 Quinn Company- ACH 1032 - SCCB-COP Acct (aka Const.... -4,977.85
Bill E241...  06/02/2021 5220 - Water System - Repair & Maint -4,977.85 4,977.85
TOTAL -4,977.85 4,977.85

Page 1



Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Services District

P. 35

9:15 AM
June 21, 2021 Check Detail - Reserve Account
June 2021
Type Num Date Name Account Paid Amount Original Amount
Bill Pmt -Check AP 06/10/2021 Caterpillar Financial Services 1002 - SCCB Reserve Account -1,394.82
Bill 3099... 05/18/2021 2268 - Generator Loan Payable -1,203.11 1,203.11
52656 - Interest Exp-Financed ltems -191.71 191.71
TOTAL -1,394.82 1,394.82
Bill Pmt -Check AP 06/10/2021 NBS- ACH 1002 - SCCB Reserve Account -46.02
Bill 3211...  05M17/2021 5426 - Vega Assmnt Bond Expense -46.02 46.02
TOTAL -46.02 46.02
Bill Pmt -Check AP 06/21/2021 Thomas E Yeager, P.E.- ACH 1002 - SCCB Reserve Account -150.00
Bill Invoic...  06/01/2021 5427 - Improvement Project-Springfield -28.25 150.00
5266 - Engineering Svcs-Dist Wide -121.75 646.50
TOTAL -150.00 796.50
Bill Pmt -Check 120 06/11/2021 Marine Industrial Tank 1002 - SCCB Reserve Account -16,612.50
Bill 06/03/2021 1808 - CIP-Normco -15,612.50 31,225.00
TOTAL -15,612.50 31,225.00

Page 1



P. 36

9:14 AM Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Services District
June 21, 2021 Check Detail - Pajaro Park Account
June 2021
Type Num Date Name Account Paid Amount Original Amount

Bill Pmt -Check AP 06/10/2021 D&G Sanitation LLC 1036 - PSM Pajaro Park Acct -549.53
Bill 281746  05/31/2021 5231 - Pajaro Park Expense -549.53 549.53
TOTAL -549.53 549.53
Bill Pmt -Check AP 06/10/2021 Panther Protective Services- ACH 1036 - PSM Pajaro Park Acct -450.00
Bill 005-2... 05/24/2021 5231 - Pajaro Park Expense -450.00 450.00
TOTAL -450.00 450.00
Bill Pmt -Check AP 06/10/2021 PG&E 3540 Pajaro Park-Online 1036 - PSM Pajaro Park Acct -97.92
Bill 4/21/...  05/20/2021 5231 - Pajaro Park Expense -97.92 97.92
TOTAL -97.92 97.92
Bill Pmt -Check AP 06/10/2021 Ace Hardware Watsonville- ACH 1036 - PSM Pajaro Park Acct -191.26
Bill 205817  05/10/2021 5231 - Pajaro Park Expense -56.79 56,79
Bill 205833  05/11/2021 5231 - Pajaro Park Expense -15.16 15.16
Bill 205887  05/12/2021 5231 - Pajaro Park Expense -13.01 13.01
Bill 205964  05/17/2021 5231 - Pajaro Park Expense -68.08 68.08
Bill 206027  05/19/2021 5231 - Pajaro Park Expense -38.22 38.22
TOTAL -191.26 191.26
Bill Pmt -Check AP 06/21/2021 Mid Valley Supply- ACH 1036 - PSM Pajaro Park Acct -265.39
Bill [2629...  06/08/2021 5231 - Pajaro Park Expense -265.39 265.39
TOTAL -265.39 265.39
Bill Pmt -Check AP 06/21/2021 State Steel Company 1036 - PSM Pajaro Park Acct -393.29
Bill invi1...  06/09/2021 5231 - Pajaro Park Expense -393.29 393.29
TOTAL -393.29 393.29

Page 1



P 37

9:15 AM Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Services District
June 21, 2021 Check Detail - Street Maintenance Account
June 2021
Type Num Date Name Account Paid Amount Original Amount

Bill Pmt -Check AP 06/10/2021 AT&T 5203 Street Maint-Online 1004 - SCCB - Street Maint Acct -209.92
Bill 6/1/2...  06/01/2021 5225 - Street Maintenance -209.92 209.92
TOTAL -209.92 209.92
Bill Pmt -Check AP 06/10/2021 Lewis Tree Service, Inc- Online 1004 - SCCB - Street Maint Acct -750.00
Bill 32752 05/18/2021 5225 - Street Maintenance -750.00 750.00
TOTAL -750.00 760.00
Bill Pmt -Check AP 06/10/2021 PG&E 9545 Street Maint-Online 1004 - SCCB - Street Maint Acct -57.16
Bill 4/21/... 05/20/2021 5225 - Street Maintenance -39.89 39.89

5310 - Utilities - Well Site -17.27 17.27
TOTAL -57.16 57.16
Bill Pmt -Check AP 06/21/2021 Darrel Varni Electric, Inc. 1004 - SCCB - Street Maint Acct -1,308.89
Bill invi#.. 06/10/2021 5225 - Street Maintenance -1,308.89 1,308.89
TOTAL -1,308.89 1,308.89
Bill Pmt -Check 537 06/10/2021 Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Comm Svcs Dist 1004 - SCCB - Street Maint Acct -31.03
Bill MAY . 06/07/2021 5225 - Street Maintenance -31.03 31.03
TOTAL -31.03 31.03

Page 1



PAJARO SUNNY MESA
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATION STATEMENTS

FOR PREPARING A

LOCAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN (LHMP)

FOR THE PAJARO/SUNNY MESA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT (PSMCSD)

RFQ Issue Date:

June 25, 20221

Submittal Due Date:

No later than 4:00 PM July 23, 2021

136 San Juan Road
Royal Oaks, CA 95076

TELEPHONE: (831) 722-1389

http://pajarosunnymesa.com/

COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

|
L &y PAJARO /SUNNY MESA
s 4

Page 1 0f11

P. 38



S

REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS

PSMCSD

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Community Description
Scope of Work

Qualifications Submittal, Instructions and Format
Selection Process

Selection Criteria

Contract Requirements

Figure 1: PSMCSD Boundaries
Table 1: PSMCSD LHMP Staffing Estimate

PSMCSD Standard Consulting Contract

Page 2 of 11

P.

39



I. COMMUNITY DESCRIPTION
General Information
The PSMCSD is seeking a qualified consultant to coordinate, facilitate and prepare a PSMCSD
Local Hazard Mitigation Plan (LHMP) pursuant to the Disaster Mitigation Act of
2000. The plan will be consistent with the State of California’s FEMA approved mitigation plan.
PSMCSD’s LHMP will identify mitigation actions that will make PSMCSD more disaster
resistant.

This will be an inclusive planning process and include nearby agency participants as well as
other stakeholders who will be invited to participate in the plan development process and serve
as members of a planning committee.

Community Information

The PSMCSD is located in North Monterey County. The PSMCSD provides essential services to
the unincorporated community of Pajaro which is located across the Pajaro River from
Watsonville. These services include street lighting, community park maintenance, subdivision

maintenance, and water.

In addition to providing water service to Pajaro, the PSMCSD provides water service to the
adjacent and/or nearby communities of:

e Blackie No. 18

e lLangley/Valle Pacifico
e Moss Landing Harbor
e Normco

e Springfield

e Sunny Mesa

e Vega Road No. 01

e Vierra Estates
The total number of water customers in the PSMCSD is approximately 1,500. The smallest water
system is Blackie No. 18 with 21 customers and the largest is Pajaro with 471 customers. See
Figure 1.

Land uses within the Pajaro Valley are varied, and there is a significant agricultural base.
Residential and commercial properties are scattered throughout the PSMCSD service area with
concentrations in Pajaro and Moss Landing.

Page 3 of 11

P

40



Dynegy operates a 1020 MW natural gas power generation facility couple with a
300kW/1200MWhr battery storage facility at Moss Landing. The Moss Landing Research Lab is
also located in Moss Landing.

There are other public agencies that provide essential public services throughout the PSMCSD.
These include, but are not limited to:
e Highways — Caltrans
e lLocal Roads and Streets — Monterey County
e Fire Protection — North County Fire District
e Wastewater Collection, Moss Landing — Castroville Community Services District
e Wastewater Collection, Pajaro and Sunny Mesa — Pajaro County Sanitation District
(Monterey County)
e Wastewater Pumping and Transmission — Monterey One
e Reclaimed Water Pumping and transmission Facilities — Pajaro Valley Water
Management Agency.

Other nearby agencies that have completed their own LMHPs include the City of Watsonville and
Monterey County. These LHMPs need to be reviewed during the development of the development of the
PSMCSD LHMP which should be compatible with those of other agencies.

The Watsonville LHMP was completed in 2020 and the Monterey County LHMP was completed in 2016.
The update of the 2016 Monterey County Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan began in May 2020
and was delayed for 12 months due to the COVID-19 global health crisis. Planning efforts resumed in
March 2021 and are anticipated to take 9-12 months; an additional 9 months for review, approval, and
adoption. The Operations Manager of the PSMCSD shall coordinate with Monterey County with respect
to the County’s LHMP as it applies to the PSMCSD LHMP.

Cal OES Pre-disaster Mitigation Planning Grant

Recognizing the need for a locally completed plan that could be used for future planning,
funding, and compliance efforts, the PSMCSD applied for Pre-Disaster Mitigation Planning
through Cal OES. The PSMCSD secured a Cal OES Pre-disaster Mitigation Grant in the amount
of $150,000 to fund preparation of a plan. The grant covers the direct cost of PSMCSD staff
and the costs of an outside consultant. The grant is active from July 10, 2020, to July 9, 2024.

Page 4 of 11

PL

41



II. SCOPE OF WORK

Scope of Work

The PSMCSD is seeking to contract with a consultant to prepare a Local Hazard Mitigation
Plan (LHMP) in accordance with the requirements of Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000. In
addition, the PSMCSD requires the preparation of the LHMP adhering to the 10-step process
of Section 510, “Floodplain Management Planning” of the 2017 CRS Coordinators Manual.

LHMP Planning/Development Pracess (Tasks 1 and 2)

As part of the LHMP planning and development process, the PSMCSD will recruit members for
and organize a Hazard Mitigation Planning Committee (HMPC). Members of the HMPC will
include stakeholders from the following affected agencies and institutions:
e CalTrans
e Monterey County, various departments
e City of Watsonville
North County Fire District
Castroville Community Services District
Monterey One
Pajaro Valley Water Management District
Dynegy
Moss Landing Harbor District
Members of the public (residents, community leaders, and business owners)

e o e o o

The HMPC will:
e Participate in the planning process, attend meetings, and provide data as requested
e Solicit input from citizens and professionals with knowledge of applicable hazards

Identify how the risk differs across the planning area

Identify new/proposed mitigation projects

Review drafts of the plan

Hold public meetings

Coordinate the formal adoption of the plan by governing boards.

The consultant shall participate with the HMPC meetings and facilitate a maximum of 5 public
meetings focused on educating the public on the LHMP development process and identify
community concerns. The consultant shall provide content to post on the PSMCSD’s webpage.
When a final draft LHMP is developed, the public will be invited to review and provide
comments. Public comments will be evaluated and incorporated by the consultant.

The LHMP will thoroughly document the hazard mitigation planning process, including but not

limited to:
e A narrative description of how the plan was prepared and the process followed

Page 5 of 11

P. 42



An outline of plan development meeting dates, attendees, and agendas

Identification of agencies and organizations that participated in plan development
Coordination with existing planning mechanisms

Coordination with existing stakeholder groups

Description of how the public was involved and strategy for public outreach/meetings

Risk Assessment (Hazard Identification, Vulnerability Assessment, and Capability Assessment)
A detailed risk assessment will be developed for this LHMP. The purpose of this section is to
understand the risk and vulnerability of identified natural and man-made hazards and to provide
a basis for hazard mitigation strategy development. The risk assessment will include:

a) Hazard Identification and Profiles (Task 3): The Hazard Identification and Profiles will
include a description and prioritization of the hazards that have occurred within the PSMCSD. The
hazard categories may include:

* e Flood-related hazards

Drought-related hazards

Earthquake hazards

Other geologic and soil hazards

Wildfire hazards

Severe weather-related hazards

e Climate change hazards

e Man-made hazards

e Other hazards as identified by the HMPC and other data sources

b) Hazard Mapping (Task 3): The risk assessment will include maps (from various sources
identified by the Consultant. The geographic information data will comprise a comprehensive
inventory for use in developing map data layers (to the extent data is available), of the
following items relative to the multiple hazard area:

e Public buildings

e (Critical facilities and infrastructure

e Maps that depict the location of parcels, structures, land use, and populations

e Structures will be differentiated by type of use (e.g. residential, commercial, industrial,

etc.)

¢) Vulnerability Assessment (Task 4): Based on hazard identification and mapping, the Consultant
will develop an overview of the PSMCSD'’s vulnerability to specific hazards. Digital maps and GIS
data will be prepared that identify local assets that are located within known hazard areas.
FEMA’s HAZUS will be used to model losses. The vulnerability assessment will include:

e Types and numbers of buildings, infrastructure, and critical facilities located within

the planning area and within identified hazard areas
e An inventory of all repetitive flood loss structures, as defined by FEMA, if applicable
e Potential dollar losses from identified hazards will be estimated through a processthat

Page 6 of 11

P.

43



o utilizes HAZUS-MH and GIS analysis of County assessor’s data with hazard locations
e Description of land uses and development trends to advise future land use decisions

d) Capability Assessment: A capability assessment will be conducted that will inventory those
existing plans, policies, and procedures that the PSMCSD has in place to temper the effect of
hazards. This will include protective measures under the National Flood Insurance Program
(NFIP), building codes, zoning ordinances, completed or ongoing mitigation projects, and
mitigation policies established in the general or comprehensive plans of participating
jurisdictions.

Hazard Mitigation Strategy (Tasks 5 and 6)
The LHMP will include a mitigation strategy to address its exposure to identified hazards. This
will require meetings of the HMPC, facilitated by the consultant, and include:
¢ Developing mitigation goal statements that focus on reducing the risk and vulnerability
associated with the identified hazards.
e Developing a comprehensive range of specific mitigation actions items being considered to
reduce the effects of each hazard, based on the risk assessment. This section will include
a list of prioritized hazard mitigation action items that best meet the PSMCSD’s needs for
hazard damage reduction. Prioritization factors will include an analysis of proposed
mitigation projects focused on several key areas, including but not limited to economic
(including benefits and cost), engineering, technical, legal, environmental, social, and
political feasibility.

A draft plan will be prepared meeting the requirements of Cal OES and FEMA reviewers. The
Consultant will ensure that all components are included in the plan. The draft plan will be made
available to the HMPC for review and comment. The Consultant will incorporate HMPC
comments and prepare a public review draft to be distributed to interested parties.

Hazard Mitigation Plan Maintenance Process

a) Monitoring, Evaluating, and Updating: This chapter will detail how the PSMCSD HMPC will
monitor, evaluate, implement, and update the plan. The plan will be revised, updated, and
readopted every five years in accordance with the requirements of the Disaster Mitigation Act
of 2000.

b) Incorporation into Existing Planning Mechanisms: The PSMCSD will implement and
incorporate hazard mitigation plan goals and actions into other local planning documents, such
as the local emergency operations plan, community wildfire protection plans, storm water
program, climate action plan, etc.

c) Implementation Schedule
The completed LHMP will include procedures for ensuring the Plan’s implementation, including
an implementation schedule for each action item.

Page 7 of 11

P

44



d)Continued Public Involvement (Task 7)

The PSMCSD is committed to continued public involvement in the LHMP development,
maintenance, and future updates. A description of public involvement activities for the Plan will
be included.

e) Final Plan (Task 7)

The Consultant will collect and incorporate public comments to the public review draft, make all
necessary revisions, and will prepare a Final Plan for submittal to Cal OES and FEMA Region IX
for review and approval. The Consultant is responsible for all plan revisions from Cal OES,
FEMA, or the PSMCSD until it is adopted by Board of Directors of the PSMCSD.

f) LHMP Adoption and Approval
The Board of Directors of the PSMCSD will adopt the LHMP upon approval of the Plan from
Cal OES and FEMA Region IX.

Page 8 of 11

P

45



IIL. QUALIFICATIONS SUBMITTAL, INSTRUCTIONS AND
FORMAT

Statements of Qualifications (SOQ) submittals are due by 4:00 PM on Friday July 23, 2021.
Qualifications may be mailed or delivered to Pajaro/Sunny Mesa CSD, 136 San Juan Road,
Royal Oaks, CA 95076, Attention: Judy Vazquez-Varela, labeled: Professional Services for
Pajaro/Sunny Mesa CSD Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Request for Qualifications. Please
submit three (3) printed and bound copy (8 %” by 11”) and an electronic copy in pdf format on
a USB drive. Two sided copies are acceptable and encouraged. Late, emailed, or faxed
submittals will be immediately considered nonresponsive without further review and
eliminated from consideration. Questions may be directed to Judy Vazquez-Varela, Operations
Manager, in writing via email to:

judyvazquez@pajarosunnymesa.com. The last day to submit questions is July 16,2021

The questions and answers will be issued as an addendum which can be accessed at

the PSMCSD’s Request for Qualifications documents web page listed below:

httg:[[Qaiarosunnymesa.com[index.g‘ hp?page=projects

The PSMCSD reserves the right to reject any or all submittals, waive any irregularities, and select
firms which, in its opinion, best serve the PSMCSD’s interests. The Consultant is responsible for
all costs associated with the Statement of Qualifications submission. The qualifications
submittal shall not exceed ten (10) sheets of paper (20 pages double sided), excluding table of
contents, cover letter, resumes for key personnel, and any promotional materials. be
submitted. Resumes shall be included for ALL key personnel identified in the organization chart
and in Table 1 and shall include all LHMP that they have worked on. The PSMCSD prefers a
quality submission over quantity and succinct, responsive proposals are welcomed.
Submissions will not be returned.

All Consultant SOQ submissions shall provide the following general information: Business type
(corporation, partnership, sole proprietorship) firm’s organization structure, background,
general qualifications, and recent experience preparing Local Hazard Mitigation Plans to
comparable communities in California.

Additional specific required information:
a. Location of the office(s) where the services are performed
b. Special firm knowledge or capabilities
c. Project organization chart that identifies all staff and subconsultants who will work
on the LHMP preparation and key personnel resumes. Firm personnel shall be
referenced to personnel resume included in an appendix

Page 9 of 11

P

46



d. A revised scope of services that demonstrates by task description, the Consultant’s
understanding of the requirements developing a LHMP. This revised scope will
form of the basis of the Scope of Services to be included in the Consulting
Contract.

e. Acompleted attached Table 1 that identifies the estimated hours by task for key
personnel and subconsultants and all direct project expenses.

f. A current rate schedule will also be submitted showing hourly rates and direct
expenses.

g. Relevant information shall include at least 3, but no more than 5 completed LHMP
plans prepared using the CRS 10 step process for public agencies. Names and
current égency contact information shall be provided

h. Provide a written statement demonstrating the consultants understanding of the
District’s goals for the LHMP preparation project.

IV.SELECTION PROCESS

The PSMCSD qualifications review panel (General Manager, Operations Manager, Board
Member, and District Engineer) will assess each SOQ submission.

The PSMCSD may request firms participate with a virtual interview to better determine
the “best fit” among firms with similar qualifications. The PSMCSD will provide interview
invitations and selection information on a project specific basis as the need occurs. All
consultant costs associated with the project interview are the consultant’s

responsibility.

The PSMCSD reserves the right to reject any and all consultants.

SELECTION CRITERIA

Page 10 of 11

P.

47



Some of the criteria for selection of the consultants are listed below, not necessarily in order of

importance:

Prior Experience in working successfully with various agencies, especially smaller
agencies, in the planning and preparation of an LHMP

Demonstrating the consultants understanding of the PSMCSD’s goals for an LHMP
prepared using the CRS 10 step process.

Qualifications of key staff persons who will work of the project

Work program for planning and preparing the LHMP and ability to adhere to schedules
and budgets

Experience in Monterey County and/or nearby counties of a rural nature

Firm organization and location

References and recommendations

Schedule for RFQ Process

June 25, 2021 Request for Qualifications posted to District website.

July 16, 2021 Deadline to submit questions to District

July 20, 2021 Addendum (including questions and answers) posted, if required)
July 23,2021 Submissions are due no later than 4:00 PM on July 23, 2021, at

TBD

the offices of the PSMCSD 136 San Juan Road 136 San Juan
Road, Royal Oaks, CA 95076. Late submittals will not be

accepted.
At the Districts’ option interview selected firms

August 27, 2021 Execute Consulting Services Agreement

VI.CONTRACT REQUIREMENTS

Once project scope and fee are negotiated, the Consultant shall execute a standard PSMCSD
consultant services agreement, which will define basic contractual relationships with
attachments that specify the scope of services, compensation schedule, and deliverable
schedule. A sample PSMCSD Consulting Contract is posted with this SOQ.

END OF REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS

Page 11 of 11

P. 48



P. 49
Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Services District
RESOLUTION NO. 06-02-21

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE PAJARO/SUNNY MESA
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT APPOINTING CONSULTANTS FOR THE
AUTHORIZATION, ISSUANCE AND DELIVERY OF 2021 WATER REVENUE BONDS,
APPROVING CERTAIN DOCUMENTS AND TAKING CERTAIN OTHER ACTIONS IN
CONNECTION THEREWITH

2021 WATER REVENUE BONDS

RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE PAJARO/SUNNY MESA
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT (the "DISTRICT") THAT:

WHEREAS, the District is contemplating the authentication, issuance and delivery of its 2021 Water
Revenue Bonds (the "Bonds") to fund the 2021 Project, fund a reserve fund and pay costs of issuance (the
"Project") and it is necessary to appoint various consultants to advise the District and perform services
necessary to finance the Bonds; and

WHEREAS, that the District desires, and it is in the public interest and general welfare, to appoint
and employ the Law Office of Robert M. Haight, Santa Cruz, California, as bond counsel (the "Bond
Counsel") for the preparation and conduct of the proceedings necessary to authorize, issue and deliver the
Bonds; as disclosure counsel (the "Disclosure Counsel") to prepare the preliminary and final official
statement (the "Official Statement"), the Continuing Disclosure Agreement and the Bond Purchase
Agreement; to be submitted to and approved by the Board of Directors of the District; and

WHEREAS, that the District desires, and it is in the public interest and general welfare, to appoint
Stinson Securities, LLC as underwriter (the "Underwriter") to underwrite the purchase of the Bonds pursuant
to a Bond Purchase Agreement, by and between the District and the Underwriter, to be approved by the
General Manager at the time of Bond pricing; and

WHEREAS, that the District desires, and it is in the public interest and general welfare, to appoint
U.S. Bank Global Corporate Trust, Los Angeles, California, to act as Trustee (the "Trustee") pursuant to a
Trust Agreement to be approved by the District, and

WHEREAS, that the District desires, and it is in the public interest welfare, to appoint NBS
Government Finance Group, Temecula, CA. as Dissemination Agent (the "Dissemination Agent") pursuant
to a Continuing Disclosure Agreement to be approved by the District.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Directors of the Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Services District
DOES HEREBY RESOLVE, ORDER AND DETERMINE AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. Each of the above recitals is true and correct.

SECTION 2. The execution and delivery of the Bonds shall be in a principal amount to be determined
by the Board of Directors of the District, but not to exceed $2,000,000 and at an average annual coupon of
not to exceed 4.00%.

SECTION 3. The Law Office of Robert M. Haight, Santa Cruz, California, be and they are hereby
appointed and employed as Bond Counsel, to do all legal services required in the conduct of said proceedings,
examining and approving all legal documents in connection therewith, advising all District officials on all



P. 50

matters relating thereto when called upon or when deemed necessary, and, as Disclosure Counsel to prepare
a Preliminary Official Statement, an Official Statement, Bond Purchase Agreement and a Continuing
Disclosure Agreement; and that their compensation for all of said services, be, and it is hereby fixed pursuant
to the Agreement for Legal Services on file with the District Secretary and which Agreement is hereby
approved and the General Manager is authorized to execute said Agreement on behalf of the District.

SECTION 4. That Stinson Securities, LLC, be and they are hereby appointed as Underwriter to the
District and shall be paid on a contingency basis a reasonable fee from the bond proceeds, which fee shall be
approved by the General Manager of the District.

SECTION 5. That U.S. Bank Global Corporate Trust, Los Angeles, California, is appointed to act as
Trustee, and the General Manager of the District, or his written designee, is hereby authorized to enter into a
Trust Agreement upon it being approved by the Board of Directors of the District.

SECTION 6. That NBS Government Finance Group, Temecula, CA., is appointed to act as
Dissemination Agent and the General Manger of the District, or his written designee, is hereby authorized to
enter into a Continuing Disclosure Agreement upon it being approved by the Board of Directors of the
District.

SECTION 7. This Resolution shall take effect from and after its date of adoption.

The foregoing Resolution was introduced, passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors
of the Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Services District held on the 24 day of June 2021, by the following
vote:

AYES: DIRECTORS:

NOES: DIRECTORS:

ABSENT: DIRECTORS:

APPROVED: ATTEST:
Sanford Coplin President, District Secretary,

Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Services District ~ Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Services District

I, DON ROSA, HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE FOREGOING IS A FULL, CORRECT, AND TRUE
COPY OF RESOLUTION NO. 06-02-21 AS ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
PAJARO/SUNNY MESA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT, AT A REGULAR MEETING HELD
ON JUNE 24, 2021, AND 1 FURTHER CERTIFY THAT SAID RESOLUTION HAS NEVER BEEN
RESCINDED OR MODIFIED.

DATED: , 2021

DISTRICT SECRETARY



P. 51

Jun 9, 2021 12:07 pm Prepared by DBC Finance (Finance 6.004 demo:PAJAROSU-2021) Page 1

SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS

Pajaro-Sunny Mesa CSD 2021 Water Revenue Bonds

2021 Bonds
Sources:
Bond Proceeds:
Par Amount 1,555,000.00
Premium 151,807.00
1,706.807.00
Uses:
Project Fund Deposits:
Project Funds 1,500,000.00
Other Fund Deposits:
Reserve Fund 97,150.00
Delivery Date Expenses:
Cost of Issuance 75,000.00
Underwriter's Discount 31,100.00
106,100.00
Other Uses of Funds:
Additional Proceeds 3,557.00

1,706,807.00




P. 52

Jun 9,2021 12:07 pm Prepared by DBC Finance (Finance 6.004 demo:PAJAROSU-2021) Page2

BOND SUMMARY STATISTICS

Pajaro-Sunny Mesa CSD 2021 Water Revenue Bonds
2021 Bonds

Dated Date 08/19/2021
Delivery Date 08/19/2021
Last Maturity 09/02/2047
Arbitrage Yield 2.485006%
True Interest Cost (TIC) 3.076844%
Net Interest Cost (NIC) 3.268950%
All-In TIC 3.478357%
Average Coupon 3.773027%
Average Life (years) 15.399
Duration of Issue (years) 11.700
Par Amount 1,555,000.00
Bond Proceeds 1,706,807.00
Total Interest 903,494.86
Net Interest 782,787.86
Total Debt Service 2,458,494.86
Maximum Annual Debt Service 97,150.00
Average Annual Debt Service 94.426.35

Underwriter's Fees (per $1000)
Average Takedown

Other Fee 20.000000
Total Underwriter's Discount 20.000000
Bid Price 107.762508
Par Average Average
Bond Component Value Price Coupon Life
Serial Bonds 500,000.00 105.441 2.922% 6.296
Term 2037 290,000.00 109.087 3.500% 14.088
Term 2047 765,000.00 112,843 4.000% 21.847
1.555,000.00 15.399
All-In Arbitrage
TIC TiC Yield
Par Value 1,555,000.00 1,555,000.00 1,555,000.00
+ Accrued Interest
+ Premium (Discount) 151,807.00 151,807.00 151,807.00
- Underwritet's Discount -31,100.00 -31,100.00
- Cost of Issuance Expense -75,000.00
- Other Amounts
Target Value 1,675,707.00 1,600,707.00 1,706,807.00
Target Date 08/19/2021 08/19/2021 08/19/2021

Yield 3.076844% 3.478357% 2.485006%




Jun 9, 2021 12:07 pm Prepared by DBC Finance

(Finance 6.004 demo:PAJAROSU-2021) Page3

BOND PRICING
Pajaro-Sunny Mesa CSD 2021 Water Revenue Bonds
2021 Bonds
Maturity
Bond Component Date Amount Rate Yield Price
Serial Bonds:
09/02/2022 40,000  2.000% 0.350% 101.704
09/02/2023 40,000 2.000% 0.600% 102.828
09/02/2024 40,000 2.000% 0.900% 103.287
09/02/2025 45,000 3.000% 1.200% 107.070
09/02/2026 45,000 3.000% 1.800% 105.752
09/02/2027 45,000  3.000% 2.000% 105.658
09/02/2028 45,000  3.000% 2.100% 105.857
09/02/2029 50,000  3.000% 2.150% 106.241
09/02/2030 50,000 3.000% 2.200% 106.522
09/02/2031 50,000  3.000% 2.250% 106.703
09/02/2032 50,000 3.000% 2.300% 106.787
500,000
Term 2037:
09/02/2037 290,000 3.500% 2,550% 109.087 C
Term 2047:
09/02/2047 765,000  4.000% 2.650% 112.843 C
1,555,000
Dated Date 08/19/2021
Delivery Date 08/19/2021
First Coupon 03/02/2022
Par Amount 1,5355,000.00
Premium 151,807.00
Production 1,706,807.00  109.762508%
Underwriter's Discount -31,100.00 -2,000000%
Purchase Price 1,673,707.00  107.762508%

Accrued Interest

Net Procecds

1

.675,707.00

P 835



Jun 9, 2021 12:07 pm Prepared by DBC Finance

(Finance 6.004 demo:PAJAROSU-2021) Page 4

BOND DEBT SERVICE

Pajaro-Sunny Mesa CSD 2021 Water Revenue Bonds

2021 Bonds
Period Annual
Ending Principal Coupon Interest Debt Service Debt Service
03/02/2022 29,244.86 29,244.86
09/02/2022 40,000 2.000% 27,275.00 67,275.00 96,519.86
03/02/2023 26,875.00 26,875.00
09/02/2023 40,000 2.000% 26,875.00 66,875.00 93,750.00
03/02/2024 26,475.00 26,475.00
09/02/2024 40,000 2.000% 26,475.00 66.475.00 92,950.00
03/02/2025 26.075.00 26,075.00
09/02/2025 45,000 3.000% 26,075.00 71,075.00 97,150.00
03/02/2026 25,400.00 25,400.00
09/02/2026 45,000 3.000% 25,400.00 70,400.00 95,800.00
03/02/2027 24,725.00 24,725.00
09/02/2027 45,000 3.000% 24,725.00 69,725.00 94,450.060
03/02/2028 24,050.00 24,050.00
09/02/2028 45,000 3.000% 24,050.00 69,050.00 93,100.00
03/02/2029 23,375.00 23,375.00
09/02/2029 50,000 3.000% 23,375.00 73,375.00 96,750.00
03/02/2030 22,625.00 22,625.00
09/02/2030 50,000 3.000% 22,625,00 72,625.00 95,250.00
03/02/2031 21,875.00 21,875.00
09/02/2031 50,000 3.000% 21,875.00 71,875.00 93,750.00
03/02/2032 21,125.00 21,125.00
09/02/2032 50,000 3.000% 21,125.00 71,125.00 92,250.00
03/02/2033 20,375.00 20,375.00
09/02/2033 55,000 3.500% 20,375.00 75,375.00 95,750.00
03/02/2034 19,412.50 19,412.50
09/02/2034 55,000 3.500% 19,412.50 74,412.50 93,825.00
03/02/2035 18,450.00 18,450.00
09/02/2035 60,000 3.500% 18,450.00 78,450.00 96,900.00
03/02/2036 17,400.00 17,400.00
09/02/2036 60,000 3.500% 17,400.00 717.400.00 94,800.00
03/02/2037 16,350.00 16,350.00
09/02/2037 60,000 3.500% 16,350.00 76,350.00 92,700.00
03/02/2038 15,300.00 15,300.00
09/02/2038 65,000 4,000% 15,300.00 80,300.00 95,600.00
03/02/2039 14,000.00 14,000.00
09/02/2039 65,000 4,000% 14,000.00 79,000.00 93,000.00
03/02/2040 12,700.00 12,700.00
09/02/2040 70,000 4,000% 12,700.00 82,700.00 95,400.00
03/02/2041 11,300.00 11,300.00
09/02/2041 70,000 4.000% 11,300.00 81,300.00 92,600.00
03/02/2042 9,900.00 9,900.00
09/02/2042 75,000 4.000% 9,900.00 24,900.00 94,800.00
03/02/2043 8,400.00 8,400.00
09/02/2043 80,000 4.000% 8,400.00 88,400.00 96,800.00
03/02/2044 6.800.00 6,800.00
09/02/2044 80,000 4.000% 6,800.00 86,800.00 93,600.00
03/02/2045 5,200.00 5,200.00
09/02/2045 85,000 4,000% 5,200.00 90,200.00 95,400.00
03/02/2046 3,500.00 3,500.00
09/02/2046 85,000 4.000% 3,500.00 88,500.00 92,000.00
03/02/2047 1,800.00 1,800.00
09/02/2047 90,000 4.000% 1,800.00 91,800.00 93,600.00
1,555,000 903.,494.86 2,458,494.86 2,458,494.86

P. 54



RESOLUTION NO.

RESOLUTION CERTIFYING COMPLIANCE WITH STATE LAW WITH RESPECT
TO THE LEVYING OF GENERAL AND SPECIAL TAXES, ASSESSMENTS, AND
PROPERTY-RELATED FEES AND CHARGES

WHEREAS, (“Public Agency™) requests that the
Monterey County Auditor-Controller enter those general or special taxes, assessments, or property-related
fees or charges identified in Exhibit “A” on the tax roll for collection and distribution by the Monterey
County Treasurer-Tax Collector commencing with the property tax bills for fiscal year 2021-22

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED as follows:

1. The Public Agency hereby certifies that it has, without limitation, complied with all legal
procedures and requirements necessaty for the levying and imposition of the general or special taxes,
assessments, or property-related fees or charges identified in Exhibit “A”, regardless of whether those
procedures and requirements are set forth in the Constitution of the State of California, in State statutes,
or in the applicable decisional law of the State of California.

7 The Public Agency further certifies that, except for the sole negligence or misconduct of
the County of Monterey, its officers, employees, and agents, with regards to the handling of the USB
thumb drive or electronic file identified as Exhibit “A”, the Public Agency shall be solely liable and
responsible for defending, at its sole expense, cost, and risk, each and every action, suit, or other
proceeding brought against the County of Monterey, its officers, employees, and agents for every claim,
demand, or challenge to the levying or imposition of the general or special taxes, assessments, or
property-related fees or charges identified in Exhibit “A” and that it shall pay or satisty any judgment
rendered against the County of Monterey, its officers, employees, and agents on every such action, suit, or
other proceeding, including all claims for refunds and interest thereon, legal fees and court costs, and
administrative expenses of the County of Monterey to correct the tax rolls.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this day of ,20__, upon motion of
, seconded by , and

carried by the following vote, to wit:

AYES:
NOES:

ABSENT:

P.

55



TRUST AGREEMENT

by and between

U.S. BANK GLOBAL CORPORATE TRUST
as Trustee

and

PAJARO/SUNNY MESA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT .

Dated as of , 2021

Relating to
$

PAJARO/SUNNY MESA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
2021 WATER REVENUE BONDS

TRUST AGREEMENT
Page 1

P

56



TRUST AGREEMENT

THIS TRUST AGREEMENT, made and entered into as of ____, 2021 (the "Agreement"), by and
between U.S. BANK GLOBAL CORPORATE TRUST, as trustee (the "Trustee"), a national banking
association duly organized and existing under the laws of the United States of America and
PAJARO/SUNNY MESA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT, a community services district duly
organized and existing under the laws of the State of California (the "District");

WITNESSETH.:

In consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained and for other valuable consideration,
the parties hereto do hereby agree as follows:

ARTICLEI
DEFINITIONS; RULES OF CONSTRUCTION; CONTENTS OF
BONDS AND OPINIONS; RECITALS

SECTION 1.1. DEFINITIONS

Unless the context otherwise requires, the terms defined in this section shall for all purposes hereof and of
any amendment hereof or supplement hereto and of any report or other document mentioned herein or
therein have the meanings defined herein, the following definitions to be equally applicable to both the
singular and plural forms of any of the terms defined herein. All capitalized terms used herein and not
defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed thereto in the Trust Agreement.

Agreement. The term "Agreement" means this Trust Agreement, as originally executed or as it may from
time to time be amended or supplemented as provided for herein.

Bond Payment Fund. The term "Bond Payment Fund" means the fund by that name established in Section
5.02 hereof.

Code. The term "Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the United States
Treasury Regulations in effect with respect thereto.

Contracts. The term "contracts" mean indebtedness represented by a loan, Certificates of Participation or
other debt instrument to be paid from Net Water Revenues.

Delivery Cost Fund. The term "Delivery Cost Fund" means the fund by that name established in Section
3.04 hereof.

Delivery Costs. The term "Delivery Costs" means all items of expense directly or indirectly payable by or
reimbursable to the District and related to the authorization, execution, sale and delivery of the
Bonds, including but not limited to costs of preparation and reproduction of documents, printing
expenses, filing and recording fees, initial fees and charges of the Trustee and counsel to the
Trustee, legal fees and charges, fees and disbursements of consultants and professionals, rating
agency fees, title insurance premiums, letter of credit fees and bond insurance premiums (if any),
fees and charges for preparation, execution and safekeeping of the Bonds and any other cost,
charge or fee in connection with the original execution and delivery of the Bonds.

TRUST AGREEMENT
Page 2

P.

57



Depository or DTC. The term "Depository" or "DTC" means The Depository Trust Company, New York,
New York, a limited purpose trust company organized under the laws of the State of New York
in its capacity as securities depository for the Bonds.

District. The term "District' means the Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Services District, a public agency.

Event of Default. The term "Event of Default" means with respect to this Trust Agreement, any of the
events in Section 7.3,

Fiscal Year. The term "Fiscal Year" means that period commencing on July 1, of any year and ending
June 30 of the next year.

Independent Certified Accountant. The term "Independent Certified Accountant" means any accountant
or firm of such accountants duly licensed or registered or entitled to practice and practicing as
such under the laws of the State, appointed by or acceptable to the District, and who, or each of
whom: (a) is in fact independent and not under domination of the District; (b) does not have any
substantial interest, direct or indirect, with the District; and (c) is not connected with the District
as an officer or employee of the District, but who may be regularly retained to make reports to the
District.

Independent Municipal Consultant. The term "Independent Municipal Consultant" means any consultant
or firm of such consultants appointed by or acceptable to the District and who, or each of whom:
(a) is judged by the District to have experience in matters relating to the financing of projects; (b)
is in fact independent and not under domination of the District; and (c) is not connected with the
District as an officer or employee of the District, but who may be regularly retained to make
reports to the District.

Information Services. The term "Information Services" means the Electronic Municipal Market Access
System of the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board, which can be found at i’}
or any other repository of disclosure information that may be designated by the Securities and
Exchange Commission in the future.

Interest Fund. The term "Interest Fund" means the fund by that name established in Section 5.02 hereof.

Investment Agreement. The term "Investment Agreement" means an investment agreement supported by
appropriate opinions of counsel; provided the provider or the guarantor is rated at least "AA" by
S&P.

Letter of Representations. The term "Letter of Representations" means the letter of the District and the
Trustee delivered to and accepted by the Depository on or prior to delivery of the Bonds as book-
entry Bonds setting forth the basis on which the Depository serves as depository for such book-
entry Bonds, as originally executed or as it may be supplemented or revised or replaced by a
letter from the District and the Trustee delivered to and accepted by the Depository.

Net Water Revenues. The term "Net Water Revenues" means, for any Fiscal Year, the Water Revenues
for such Fiscal Year less the Operation and Maintenance Costs for such Fiscal Year.

Nominee. The term "Nominee" means the nominee of the Depository, which may be the Depository, as
determined from time to time pursuant to Section 2.10 hereof.

TRUST AGREEMENT
Page 3

P. 58



Operation and Maintenance Costs. The term "Operation and Maintenance Costs" means:

(D Costs spent or incurred for maintenance and operation of the District's Water
Enterprise System calculated in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
including (among other things) the reasonable expenses of management and repair and other
expenses necessary to maintain and preserve the District Water Enterprise System in good repair
and working order, and including administrative costs of the District, including but not limited to
salaries and wages of employees, payments to retirement or pension plans, overhead, insurance,
taxes (if any), fees of auditors, accountants, attorneys, consultants or engineers and insurance
premiums, and

(2) All other reasonable and necessary administrative or similar costs of the District
or charges (other than debt service payments) required to be paid by it to comply with the terms
of the Bonds or any Contract or of any resolution or Trust Agreement authorizing the issuance of
any Bonds or of such Bonds, but excluding in all cases depreciation, replacement and
obsolescence charges or reserves therefor and amortization of intangibles or other bookkeeping
entries of a similar nature and costs of water purchases.

Outstanding. The term "OQutstanding," when used as of any particular time with reference to Bonds,

Owner.

means (subject to the provisions of Section 11.4) all Bonds except: (1) Bonds canceled by the
Trustee or delivered to the Trustee for cancellation; (2) Bonds paid or deemed to have been paid
within the meaning of Section 10.01; and (3) Bonds in lieu of or in substitution for which other
Bonds shall have been executed and delivered by the Trustee pursuant to Section 2.10.

The term "Owner" or "Bond Owner" or "Owner of Bonds" or any similar term, when used with
respect to the Bonds, means any person who shall be the registered owner of any Outstanding
Bond.

Participants. The term "Participants" means those broker-dealers, banks and other financial institutions

from time to time for which the Depository holds book-entry Bonds as securities depository.

Payment Dates. The term "Payment Dates" means 1 and 1 in each year commencing

1, 2021 and any date on which the unpaid Water Revenue Payments are declared
to be due and payable immediately and provided such declaration is not rescinded or annulled.

Permitted Investments. The term "Permitted Investments" means any of the following which at the time

of investment are legal investments under the laws of the State for the moneys proposed to be
invested therein:

a) for all purposes, including but not limited to defeasance investments in escrow accounts:
(1) cash (insured at all times by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or otherwise
collateralized with obligations described in paragraph (2) below), or (2) direct obligations of
(including obligations issued or held in book entry form on the books of) the Department of the
Treasury of the United States of America; and

b) for all purposes other than defeasance investments in escrow accounts: (1) obligations of
any of the following federal agencies which obligations represent full faith and credit of the
United States of America, including the Export - Import Bank; Farmers Home Administration;
General Services Administration; U.S. Maritime Administration; Small Business Administration;

TRUST AGREEMENT
Page 4

P. 59



Government National Mortgage Association (GNMA); U.S. Department of Housing & Urban
Development (PHA's); and Federal Housing Administration; (2) bonds, notes or other evidences
of indebtedness rated "AAA" and "Aaa" by the applicable rating agency issued by the Federal
National Mortgage Association or the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation with remaining
maturities not exceeding three years; (3) U.S. dollar denominated deposit accounts, Bonds of
deposit, federal funds and bankers acceptances with domestic commercial banks (including the
Trustee) which are either insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or have a rating
on their short term Bonds of deposit on the date of purchase of "A-I" or "A-1+" by S&P and "P-
1" by Moody's and maturing no more than 360 days after the date of purchase (ratings on holding
companies are not considered as the rating of the bank); (4) commercial paper which is rated at
the time of purchase in the single highest classification, "A-1+" by S&P and "P-1" by Moody's
and which matures not more than 270 days after the date of purchase; (5) investments in a money
market fund rated "AAAm" or "AAAm-G" or better by S&P, including such funds for which the
Trustee or an affiliate acts as investment advisor or provides other services; (6) pre-refunded
municipal obligations defined as follows: any bonds or other obligations of any state of the
United States of America or of any agency, instrumentality or local governmental unit of any
such state which are not callable at the option of the obligor prior to maturity or as to which
irrevocable instructions have been given by the obligor to call on the date specified in the notice
and which are rated, based on the escrow, in the highest rating category of S&P and Moody's or
any successor thereto; (7) any Investrnent Agreement; and (8) the Local Agency Investment
Fund.

Prepayment Price. The term "Prepayment Price" means the principal amount with respect to any Bond (or
portion thereof) plus the applicable premium, if any, payable upon prepayment thereof pursuant
to the provisions of such Bond and this Agreement.

Principal and Interest Payment Dates. The term "Principal Payment Date" or "Interest Payment Date"
means each date on which Water Revenue Payments of Principal and/or Interest are scheduled to
be paid by the District from Water Revenue pursuant to the Trust Agreement.

Principal Corporate Trust Office. The term "Principal Corporate Trust Office” means the principal
corporate trust office of the Trustee in San Francisco, California, provided that for purposes of
payment, prepayment, exchange, transfer, surrender and cancellation of Bonds such term means
the principal corporate trust office of the Trustee in Los Angeles, California or such other office
as the Trustee may from time to time designate in writing to the District and the Owners.

Principal Fund. The term "Principal Fund" means the fund by that name established in Section 5.02
hereof.

Rebate Fund. The term "Rebate Fund" means the fund by that name established in Section 5.06 hereof.

Record Date. The term "Record Date" means, with respect to any Payment Date for a Bond, the fifteenth
day of the calendar month prior to such Payment Date.

Reserve Fund. The term "Reserve Fund" means the fund by that name established in Section 5.04 hereof.

Reserve Requirement. The term "Reserve Requiremen€' means the lesser of (i) 10% of the proceeds of
the Bonds, (ii) the maximum annual debt service, or (iii) 125% of the average annual debt service
on the Bonds.

TRUST AGREEMENT
Page 5

Ps

60



Securities Depositories. The term "Securities Depositories" means: The Depository Trust Company, 55
Water Street, New York, New York 10041, Attn: Redemption Area, Fax-(212) 855-7232 or
7233; and, in accordance with then current guidelines of the Securities and Exchange
Commission, such other addresses as such depositories may specify and/or such other securities
depositories as the District may designate in a Written Request of the District delivered to the
Trustee.

Special Counsel. The term "Special Counsel" means any attorney at law or firm of attorneys selected by
the District, of nationally-recognized standing in matters pertaining to the federal tax exemption
of interest on bonds issued by states and political subdivisions, and duly admitted to practice law
before the highest court of any state of the United States of America.

State. The term "State" means the State of California.

Statement of the District. The term "Statement of the District" means a statement signed by or on behalf
of the District by the President and by the Secretary or by any two persons (whether or not
members of the Board of Directors) who are specifically authorized by resolution of the District
to sign or execute such a document on its behalf. If and to the extent required by the provisions of
Section 1.03, each Statement of the District shall include the statements provided for in Section
1.03.

Tax Certificate. The term "Tax Certificate" means the Tax Certificate dated 1, 2021, concerning
certain matters pertaining to the use and investment of proceeds of the Bonds executed by and
delivered to the District on the date of execution and delivery of the Bonds, including any and all
exhibits attached thereto.

Trustee. The term "Trustee” means U.S. Bank Global Corporate Trust, a national banking association
duly organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the United States of America
having a principal corporate trust office in San Francisco, California, or such other office as the
Trustee may from time to time designate in writing to the District, the Owners, or its successor as
Trustee hereunder.

Water Revenue Fund. The term "Water Revenue Fund" means the fund by that name established and
maintained pursuant to Section 5.01 (b).

Water Revenues- The term "Water Revenues" means all income, rents, rates, fees, charges and other
moneys collected or received by the District pertaining to the sale and delivery of water,
including, without limiting the generality of the foregoing:

)] all income, rents, rates, fees, charges, or other moneys derived by the District
from the sale, furnishing and supplying of the water or other services, facilities, and commodities
sold, furnished or supplied through the facilities of or in the conduct or operation of the business
of the District; plus

2) the proceeds of the District's replenishment assessment, additional replenishment
assessment and general assessment, including moneys provided to the District by a
redevelopment agency in lieu of such general assessment or the tax described above; plus

TRUST AGREEMENT
Page 6

P.

61



3) the earnings on and income derived from the investment of such income, rents,
rates, fees, charges, or other moneys, including District reserves; plus

(@) amounts received from the sale of water by the District, including but not limited
to an amount equal to the amount a retail water agency within the District pays for supplemental
water under a District in lieu program.

Water Revenue Payment. The term "Water Revenue Payments,' means Net Water Revenues of the
District transferred to the Trustee for the deposit into the Principal Fund and Interest Fund.

Written Consent of the District, Written Order of the District, Written Request of the District, and Written
Requisition of the District. The terms "Written Consent of or District," "Written Order of or
District,” "Written Request of the District," and "Written Requisition of the District" mean,
respectively, a written consent, order, request or requisition signed by or on behalf of (i) the
District by the President or General Manager or by the Secretary or by any two persons (whether
or not members of the Board of Directors) who are specifically authorized by resolution of the
District to sign or execute such a document on its behalf.

SECTION 1.2. RULES OF CONSTRUCTION

Words of any gender shall be deemed and construed to include all genders, and words importing
persons shall include corporations and associations, including public bodies, as well as natural persons.
Unless the context otherwise indicates, words importing the singular number shall include the plural
number and vice versa

1.3. CONTENT STATEMENTS AND OPINIONS

Every statement or opinion with respect to compliance with a condition or covenant provided for
in this Agreement, including each Statement of shall include (a) a statement that the person or persons
making or giving such statement or opinion have read such covenant or condition and the definitions
herein relating thereto; (b) a brief statement as to the nature and scope of the examination or investigation
upon which the statements or opinions contained in such statement or opinion are based; (c) a statement
that, in the opinion of the signers, they have made or caused to be made such examination or investigation
as is necessary to enable them to express an informed opinion as to whether or not such covenant or
condition has been complied with; and (d) a statement as to whether, in the opinion of the signers, such
condition or covenant has been complied with,

ARTICLE Il
BONDS; TERMS AND PROVISIONS

SECTION 2.1, PREPARATION OF BONDS

The Trustee is hereby authorized to authenticate and deliver Bonds, to be denominated "2021
Water Revenue Bonds" (the "Bonds") in an aggregate principal amount of $______ evidencing
undivided interests in Water Revenue Payments to be paid by the District from Water Revenue under the
Trust Agreement.

TRUST AGREEMENT
Page 7

P.

62



SECTION 2.2. DENOMINATIONS; MEDIUM AND PLACE OF PAYMENT; DATING

The Bonds shall be delivered in the form of fully registered Bonds and in the denomination of
$5,000 each or any integral multiple thereof; provided that no Bond shall have principal represented
thereby maturing in more than one year.

The principal and Prepayment Price with respect to the Bonds shall be payable in lawful money
of the United States of America upon presentation and surrender thereof at the Principal Corporate Trust
Office of the Trustee. Interest with respect to the Bonds shall be payable by check or draft of the Trustee
mailed by first class mail on each Payment Date of the Bonds to the respective Bond Owners of record
thereof as of the close of business on the Record Date at the addresses shown on the books required to be
kept pursuant to Section 2.8 or, upon the written request received by the Trustee of an Owner of at least
$1,000,000 in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds, by wire transfer of immediately available funds
to an account in the United States designated by such Owner prior to the applicable Record Date.

The Bonds shall be dated as of the date of initial delivery thereof. Interest with respect to the
Bonds shall be payable from the Payment Date preceding their date of execution, unless such date shall
be after a Record Date and on or before the succeeding Payment Date, in which case interest shall be
payable from such Payment Date or unless such date shall be on or before the first Record Date, in which
case interest shall be payable as of the date of initial delivery thereof provided, however, that if, as shown
by the records of the Trustee, interest represented by the Bonds shall be in default, Bonds executed in
exchange for Bonds surrendered for transfer or exchange shall represent interest from the last date to
which interest has been paid in full or duly provided for with respect to the Bonds, or, if no interest has
been paid or duly provided for with respect to the Bonds, as of the date of initial delivery thereof.

2.3. PAYMENT PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST WITH RESPECT TO BONDS

(a) The Bonds shall become payable on 1 in the years and in the amounts and with an
interest component as provided in subsection (b) below at the rates, as follows:

Bond Payment Date Principal Interest

Principal or Prepayment Price due with respect to the Bonds at maturity or prepayment thereof
shall, to the extent of the aggregate principal amount stated upon the Bonds, represent the sum of those
portions of the Payments designated as principal coming due on the Payment Dates immediately
preceding 1 in each year.

(b) Interest with respect to the Bonds shall be payable on each Interest Payment Date to and
including the date of maturity or prior prepayment. Said interest shall represent the sum of those portions
of the Interest Payments designated as interest coming due on the Interest Payment Dates, at the rates set
forth in subsection (a) above. Interest with respect to the Bond will be computed on the basis of a 360-day
year of twelve thirty-day months.

TRUST AGREEMENT
Page 8

P

63



SECTION 2.4. FORM OF BONDS

The Bonds and the form of assignment to appear thereon shall be in substantially the form set
forth in Exhibit A hereto with necessary or appropriate variations, omissions and insertions as permitted
or required by this Agreement.

SECTION 2.5. AUTHENTICATION

The Bonds shall be executed by and in the name of the Trustee, as trustee under this Agreement,
by the manual signature of an authorized officer or signatory of the Trustee.

SECTION 2.6. TRANSFER OF BONDS

Any Bond may, in accordance with its terms, be transferred, upon the books required to be kept
pursuant to the provisions of Section 2.8, by the person in whose name it is registered, in person or by
such person's duly authorized attorney, upon surrender of such Bond for cancellation at the Principal
Corporate Trust Office of the Trustee, accompanied by delivery of a duly executed written instrument of
transfer in a form approved by the Trustee.

Whenever any Bond or Bonds shall be surrendered for transfer, the Trustee shall execute and
deliver a new Bond or Bonds of the same maturity, for a like aggregate principal amount and of
authorized denomination or denominations. The Trustee may charge a sum for each new Bond executed
and delivered upon any transfer. The Trustee may require the payment by any Bond Owner requesting
any such transfer of any tax or other governmental charge required to be paid with respect to such
transfer. Following any transfer of Bonds the Trustee shall cancel and destroy the Bonds it has received.

2.7. EXCHANGE BONDS

Bonds may be exchanged at the Principal Corporate Trust Office of the Trustee, for a like
aggregate principal amount of Bonds of other authorized denominations of the same maturity. The
Trustee may charge a sum for each new Bond executed and delivered upon any exchange except in the
case of any exchange of temporary Bonds for definitive Bonds. The Trustee may require the payment by
the Owner requesting such exchange of any tax or other governmental charge required to be paid with
respect to such exchange. Following any exchange of Bonds the Trustee shall cancel and destroy the
Bonds it has received.

The Trustee shall not be required to register the exchange, or transfer pursuant to 2.6 hereof, of
any Bond (i) within 15 days preceding selection of Bonds for prepayment or (ii) selected for prepayment.

SECTION 2.8. BOND REGISTRATION BOOKS

The Trustee will keep or cause to be kept sufficient books for the registration and transfer of the
Bonds, which shall upon reasonable prior notice and at all reasonable times be open to inspection by the
District; and, upon presentation for such purpose, the Trustee shall, under such reasonable regulations as
it may prescribe, register or transfer or cause to be registered or transferred, on said books, Bonds as
hereinbefore provided.

The person in whose name any Bond shall be registered shall be deemed the Owner thereof for
all purposes hereof, and payment of or on account of the interest with respect to and principal of, and

TRUST AGREEMENT
Page 9

P,

64



Prepayment Price represented by such Bond shall be made only to or upon the order in writing of such
registered Owner, which payments shall be valid and effectual to satisfy and discharge liability upon such
Bond to the extent of the sum or sums so paid.

SECTION 2.9. BONDS MUTILATED, LOST, DESTROYED OR STOLEN

If any Bond shall become mutilated, the Trustee shall execute and deliver a new Bond of like
tenor, maturity and principal amount in exchange and substitution for the Bond so mutilated, but only
upon surrender to the Trustee of the Bond so mutilated.

Every mutilated Bond so surrendered to the Trustee shall be canceled by it and destroyed. All
Bonds acquired by the District, whether by purchase or gift or otherwise shall be surrendered to the
Trustee for cancellation. Whenever in this Trust Agreement provision is made for the cancellation by the
Trustee of any Bonds, the Trustee shall destroy such Bonds and deliver a certificate of such destruction to
the District If any Bond shall be lost, destroyed or stolen, evidence of such loss, destruction or theft may
be submitted to the Trustee, and, if such evidence is satisfactory to the Trustee and indemnity satisfactory
to the Trustee shall be given indemnifying the Trustee, the District, and the Trustee, at the expense of the
Bond Owner, shall execute and deliver a new Bond of like tenor and maturity, and numbered as the
Trustee shall determine, in lieu of and in substitution for the Bond so lost, destroyed or stolen. The
Trustee may require payment of a sum not exceeding the actual cost of preparing each new Bond
executed under this Section and of the expenses which may be incurred by the Trustee under this Section.
Any Bond executed under the provisions of this Section in lieu of any Bond alleged to be lost, destroyed
or stolen shall be equally and proportionately entitled to the benefits of this Agreement with all other
Bonds secured by this Agreement. The Trustee shall not be required to treat both the original Bond and
any replacement Bond as being Outstanding for the purpose of determining the principal amount of
Bonds which may be executed hereunder or for the purpose of determining any percentage of Bonds
Outstanding hereunder, but both the original and replacement Bond shall be treated as one and the same.
Notwithstanding any other provision of this Section, in lieu of delivering a new Bond for a Bond which
has been mutilated, lost, destroyed or stolen and which has matured or has been selected for prepayment,
the Trustee may make payment of such Bond upon receipt of indemnity satisfactory to the Trustee.

TRUST AGREEMENT
Page 10

P

65



2.10. BOOK-ENTRY SYSTEM

(a)  Election of Book-Entry System. Prior to the execution and delivery of the Bonds, the District
may provide that such Bonds shall be initially executed and delivered as book-entry Bonds. If the District
shall elect to deliver any Bonds in book-entry form, then the District shall cause the delivery of a separate
single fully registered Bond (which may be typewritten) for each maturity date of such Bonds in an
authorized denomination corresponding to that total principal amount of the Bonds designated to mature
on such date. Upon initial execution and delivery, the ownership of each such Bond shall be registered in
the Bond registration books in the name of the Nominee, as nominee of the Depository and ownership of
the Bonds, or any portion thereof may not thereafter be transferred except as provided in Section 2.10 (e).

With respect to book-entry Bonds, the District and the Trustee shall have no responsibility or
obligation to any Participant or to any person on behalf of which such a Participant holds an interest in
such book-entry Bonds. Without limiting the immediately preceding sentence, the District and the Trustee
shall have no responsibility or obligation with respect to (i) the accuracy of the records of the Depository,
the Nominee, or any Participant with respect to any ownership interest in book-entry Bonds, (ii) the
delivery to any Participant or any other person, other than an Owner as shown in the Bond registration
books, of any notice with respect to book-entry Bonds, including any notice of prepayment, (iii) the
selection by the Depository and its Participants of the beneficial interests in book-entry Bonds to be
prepaid in the event the District prepays the Bonds in part, or (iv) the payment by the Depository or any
Participant or any other person, of any amount with respect to principal, premium, if any, or interest with
respect to book-entry Bonds. The District and the Trustee may treat and consider the person in whose
name each book-entry Bond is registered in the Bond registration books as the absolute Owner of such
book-entry Bond for the purpose of payment of principal, premium, if any, and interest with respect to
such Bond, for the purpose of giving notices of prepayment and other matters with respect to such Bond,
for the purpose of registering transfers with respect to such Bond, and for all other purposes whatsoever.
The Trustee shall pay all principal, premium, if any, and interest with respect to the Bonds only to or upon
the order of the respective Owner, as shown in the Bond register, or his respective attorney duly
authorized in writing, and all such payments shall be valid and effective to fully satisfy and discharge the
District's obligations with respect to payment of principal of, premium, if any, and interest evidenced and

represented by the Bonds to the extent of the sum or sums so paid. No person other than an Owner, as -

shown in the Bond registration books, shall receive a Bond evidencing the obligation to make payments
of principal, premium, if any, and interest evidenced and represented by the Bonds. Upon delivery by the
Depository to the Owner and the Trustee, of written notice to the effect that the Depository has
determined to substitute a new nominee in place of the Nominee, and subject to the provisions herein with
respect to Record Dates, the word Nominee in this Trust Agreement shall refer to such nominee of the

Depository.

(b) Delivery of Letter of Representations. In order to qualify the book-entry Bonds for the
Depository's book-entry system, the District and the Trustee shall execute and deliver to the Depository a
Letter of Representations. The execution and delivery of a Letter of Representations shall not in any way
impose upon the District or the Trustee any obligation whatsoever with respect to persons having interests
in such book-entry Bonds other than the Owners, as shown on the Bond registration books. By executing
a Letter of Representations, the Trustee shall agree to take all action necessary at all times so that the
District will be in compliance with all representations of the District in such Letter of Representations. In
addition to the execution and delivery of a Letter of Representations, the District and the Trustee shall
take such other actions, not inconsistent with this Trust Agreement, as are reasonably necessary to qualify
Book-Entry Bonds for the Depository's book-entry program.

TRUST AGREEMENT
Page 11

P

66



(©) Selection of Depository. In the event (i) the Depository determines not to continue to act
as securities depository for book-entry Bonds, or (ii) the District determines that continuation of the book-
entry system is not in the best interest of the beneficial owners of the Bonds or the District, then the
District will discontinue the book-entry system with the Depository. If the District determines to replace
the Depository with another qualified securities depository, the District shall prepare or direct the
preparation of a new single, separate, fully registered Bond for each of the maturity dates of such book-
entry Bonds, registered in the name of such successor or substitute qualified securities depository or its
Nominee as provided in subsection () hereof. If the District fails to identify another qualified securities
depository to replace the Depository, then the Bonds shall no longer be restricted to being registered in
such Bond register in the name of the Nominee, but shall be registered in whatever name or names the
Owners transferring or exchanging such Bonds shall designate, in accordance with the provisions of
Sections 2.6 and 2.7 hereof.

(d) Payments to Depository. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, so long as all Outstanding Bonds are held in book-entry form and registered in the name of the
Nominee, all payments with respect to principal, prepayment premium, if any, and interest with respect to
such Bond and all notices with respect to such Bond shall be made and given, respectively to the
Nominee, as provided in the Letter of Representations or as otherwise instructed by the Depository and
agreed to by the Trustee notwithstanding any inconsistent provisions herein.

(e) Transfer of Bonds to Substitute Depository.

6)) The Bonds shall be initially executed and delivered as provided in Section 2.1 hereof. Registered
ownership of such Bonds, or any portions thereof, may not thereafter be transferred except:

a. to any successor of DTC or its nominee, or of any substitute depository designated
pursuant to clause (B) of subsection (i) of this Section 2.10(e) ("Substitute Depository"); provided
that any successor of DTC or Substitute Depository shall be qualified under any applicable laws
to provide the service proposed to be provided by it;

b. to any Substitute Depository, upon (1) the resignation of DTC or its successor (or any
Substitute Depository or its successor) from its functions as depository, or (2) a determination by
the District that DTC (or its successor) is no longer able to carry out its functions as depository;
provided that any such Substitute Depository shall be qualified under any applicable laws to
provide the services proposed to be provided by it; or

€ to any person as provided below, upon (1) the resignation of DTC or its successor (or any
Substitute Depository or its successor) from its functions as depository, or (2) a determination by
the District that DTC or its successor (or Substitute Depository or its successor) is no longer able
to carry out its functions as depository.

(ii) In the case of any transfer pursuant to clause (A) or clause (B) of subsection (i) of this Section
2.10(e), upon receipt of all Outstanding Bonds by the Trustee, together with a written request of the
District to the Trustee designating the Substitute Depository, a single new Bond, which the District shall
prepare or cause to be prepared, shall be executed and delivered for each maturity of Bonds then
Outstanding, registered in the name of such successor or such Substitute Depositow or their Nominees, as
the case may be, all as specified in such written request of the District. In the case of any transfer
pursuant to clause (C) of subsection (i) of this Section 2.10(e), upon receipt of all Outstanding Bonds by
the Trustee, together with a written request of the District to the Trustee, new Bonds, which the District
shall prepare or cause to be prepared, shall be executed and delivered in such denominations and
registered in the names of such persons as are requested in such written request of the District, subject to
the limitations of Section 2.1 hereof, provided that the Trustee shall not be required to deliver such new

TRUST AGREEMENT
Page 12

P

67



Bonds within a period of less than sixty (60) days from the date of receipt of such written request from
the District.

(iii) In the case of a partial prepayment or an advance of any Bonds evidencing a portion of the
principal maturing in a particular year, DTC or its successor (or any Substitute Depository or its
successor) shall make an appropriate notation on such Bonds indicating the date and amounts of such
reduction in principal, in form acceptable to the Trustee, all in accordance with the Letter of
Representations. The Trustee shall not be liable for such Depository's failure to make such notations or
errors in making such notations.

(iv) The District and the Trustee shall be entitled to treat the person in whose name any Bond is
registered as the Owner thereof for all purposes of this Trust Agreement and any applicable laws,
notwithstanding any notice to the contrary received by the Trustee or the District; and the District and the
Trustee shall not have responsibility for transmitting payments to, communicating with, notifying, or
otherwise dealing with any beneficial owners of the Bonds. Neither the District nor the Trustee shall have
any responsibility or obligation, legal or otherwise, to any such beneficial owners or to any other party,
including DTC or its successor (or Substitute Depository or its successor), except to the Owner of any
Bonds, and the Trustee may rely conclusively on its records as to the identity of the Owners of the Bonds.

SECTION 2.11. ADDITIONAL DISTRICT INDEBTEDNESS

General. The District covenants not to issue or incur any obligations payable from Net Water
Revenues senior to the Bonds. The District may issue Contracts or Bonds payable from Net Water
Revenues on parity with the Bonds in the future as described herein. This Agreement does not impose any
limitation on the issuance of additional obligations payable from Net Water Revenues subordinate to the
Bonds.

The District may execute any Contracts or issue any Bonds, as the case may be, payable from Net
Water Revenues after payment of Operation and Maintenance Costs, on parity with the Bonds, provided
that certain conditions are satisfied as provided below.

(a) The Net Water Revenues for the most recent audited Fiscal Year preceding the date of
adoption by the Board of Directors of the District of the resolution authorizing the issuance of such
Contracts or Bonds, as the case may be, as evidenced by both a calculation prepared by the District and a
special report prepared by an Independent Certified Public Accountant or an Independent Municipal
Consultant on such calculation on file with the District, shall have produced a sum equal to at least one
hundred fifteen percent (115%) of the Debt Service on any outstanding Parity debt for such Fiscal Year;
and ,

(b) The Net Water Revenues for the most recent audited Fiscal Year preceding the date of
adoption by the Board of Directors of the District of the resolution authorizing the issuance of such
Contracts or Bonds, as the case may be, including adjustments to give effect as of the first day of such
Fiscal Year to increases or decreases in rates and charges for the Water Service approved and in effect as
of the date of calculation, as evidenced by a calculation prepared by the District, shall have produced a
sum equal to at least one hundred fifteen percent (115%) of the Debt Service on any outstanding Parity
debt for such Fiscal Year.

ARTICLE IIT
DELIVERY OF BONDS; ESTABLISHMENT OF VARIOUS FUNDS

TRUST AGREEMENT
Page 13

P. 68



SECTION 3.1. DELIVERY OF BONDS

The District shall execute and the Trustee is hereby authorized to authenticate and deliver Bonds
in an aggregate principal amountof & upon the Written Order of the District.

SECTION 3.2. APPLICATION OF PROCEEDS OF BONDS

The proceeds received from the sale of the Bonds shall be deposited with the Trustee, who shall
deposit the sum of . into the Delivery Cost Fund, deposit the sum of §_________in the
Construction Fund and deposit the sumof $___ (the amount of the initial Reserve Requirement)
into the Reserve Fund.

SECTION 3.3. VALIDITY OF BONDS

The validity of the execution and delivery of the Bonds is not dependent on and shall not be
affected in any way by any proceedings taken by the District or the Trustee with respect to or in
connection with the Trust Agreement. The recital contained in the Bonds that all acts, conditions and
things required by the Constitution and statutes of the State of California and this Agreement to exist, to
have happened and to have been performed precedent to and in the delivery thereof do exist, have
happened and have been performed in due time, form and manner as required by law shall be conclusive
evidence of their validity and of compliance with the provisions of law in their delivery.

SECTION 3.4. DELIVERY COST FUND

There is hereby established with the Trustee the Delivery Cost Fund which the Trustee shall
establish and maintain and hold in trust separate and apart from other funds held by it. The moneys in the
Delivery Cost Fund shall be used and withdrawn by the Trustee to pay Delivery Costs upon submission of
Written Requisitions of the District substantially in the form of Exhibit B attached hereto stating the
person to whom payment is to be made, the amount to be paid, the purpose for which the obligation was
incurred, that such payment is a proper charge against said fund and that payment for such charge has not
previously been made. On the six-month anniversary of the date of this Agreement, or upon the earlier
Written Request of the District, all amounts remaining in the Delivery Cost Fund shall be transferred by
the Trustee for deposit in the Bond Payment Fund.

SECTION 3.5. PRINCIPAL FUND

There is hereby established with the Trustee the Principal Fund which the Trustee shall establish
and maintain and hold in trust separate and apart from other funds held by it in accordance with the terms
of Section 5.2(b) hereof.

SECTION 3.6. INTEREST FUND

There is hereby established with the Trustee the Interest Fund which the Trustee shall establish
and maintain and hold in trust separate and apart from other funds held by it in accordance with the terms
of Section 5.2(a) hereof.

SECTION 3.7. RESERVE FUND

There is hereby established with the Trustee the Reserve Fund which the Trustee shall establish
and maintain and hold in trust separate and apart from other funds held by it in accordance with the terms
of Section 5.4 hereof.

TRUST AGREEMENT
Page 14

B

69



SECTION 3.8. CONSTRUCTION FUND

There is hereby established with the Trustee the Escrow Fund which the Trustee shall establish
and maintain and hold in trust separate and apart from other funds held by it.

ARTICLE IV
PREPAYMENT OF BONDS

SECTION 4.1. OPTIONAL PREPAYMENT

The Bonds shall be subject to prepayment prior to their respective stated maturities, as a whole or
in part on any Interest Payment Date in the order of maturity as directed by the District in a Written
Request provided to the Trustee at least 60 days prior to such date and by lot within each maturity in
integral multiples of $5,000, on or after 1, 20 from amounts prepaid by the District
pursuant to the Trust Agreement at a Prepayment Price below equal to the principal amount of such
Bonds to be prepaid plus accrued interest evidenced and represented thereby to the date fixed for
prepayment:

Prepayment Dates (Inclusive) Prepayment Price
_1-_ 1,20 %
~1-_ 1,20 %
~1-_ 1,20, and thereafter %

SECTION 4.2. MANDATORY SINKING FUND PREPAYMENT

The Bonds maturing on 1,20 and 1,20 (the "Term Bonds") are subject to
mandatory prepayment in part, by lot, on ___ 1 in each of the following years commencing 1,
20 and 1, 20 from principal and interest payments made by the District to the Trustee
pursuant to the Trust Agreement, at a prepayment price equal to the principal amount evidenced thereby
to be prepaid, without premium, in the aggregate respective principal amounts, and on ____ 1 in the
respective years as set forth in the following tables; provided, however, that if some, but not all, of such
Term Bonds have been prepaid pursuant to the terms of the Trust Agreement, the total amount of all
future sinking fund payments shall be reduced by the aggregate principal amount of such Term Bonds so
prepaid, to be allocated among such sinking fund payments on a pro rata basis in integral multiples of
$5,000, as determined by the District and specified in writing to the Trustee.

20 TERM BOND

Sinking Fund Prepayment Date Principal Amount of Term Bond to be Prepaid

SECTION 4.3. EXTRAORDINARY PREPAYMENT FROM INSURANCE AND CONDEMNATION
PROCEEDS

The Bonds shall be subject to extraordinary prepayment from insurance and condemnation
proceeds prior to their respective stated maturities, as a whole or in part on any date in the order of
maturity as directed by the District in a Written Request provided to the Trustee at least 30 days prior to

TRUST AGREEMENT
Page 15

P, T0



such date and by lot within each maturity in integral multiples of $5,000 upon the terms and conditions
of, and as provided for in this Trust Agreement, at a Prepayment Price equal to the principal amount
thereof plus accrued interest evidenced and represented thereby to the date fixed for prepayment, without
premium.

SECTION 4.4, SELECTION OF BONDS FOR PREPAYMENT

Whenever less than all of the Bonds are called for prepayment, the Trustee shall select the Bonds
or portions thereof to be prepaid from the Outstanding Bonds in accordance with Section 4.1 hereof. The
Trustee shall promptly notify the District in writing of the numbers of the Bonds or portions thereof so
selected for prepayment.

SECTION 4.5. NOTICE OF PREPAYMENT

The District shall deliver notice of prepayment under Section 4.1 to the Trustee not less than 40
days prior to the proposed prepayment date, Notice of prepayment shall be sent to the respective Owners
of any Bonds designated for prepayment at their addresses appearing on the Bond registration books and
to the Information Services and to the Securities Depositories at least 20 days but not more than 30 days
prior to the prepayment date.

Each notice of prepayment shall state the date of notice, the prepayment date, the place or places
of prepayment and the Prepayment Price, shall designate the maturities, CUSIP numbers, if any, and, if
less than all Bonds of any such maturity are to be prepaid, the serial numbers of the Bonds of such
maturity to be prepaid by giving the individual number of each Bond or by stating that all Bonds between
two stated numbers, both inclusive, have been called for prepayment and, in the case of Bonds to be
prepaid in part only, the respective portions of the principal amount thereof to be prepaid. Each such
notice shall also state that on said date there will become due and payable on each of said Bonds the
Prepayment Price thereof or of said specified portion of the principal represented thereby in the case of a
Bond to be prepaid in part only, together with interest accrued with respect thereto to the prepayment
date, and that (provided that moneys for prepayment have been deposited with the Trustee) from and after
such prepayment date interest with respect thereto shall cease to accrue, and shall require that such Bonds
be then surrendered to the Trustee. Any defect in the notice or the mailing thereof will not affect the
validity of the prepayment of any Bond.

Notice of prepayment of Bonds shall be given by the Trustee on behalf of and at the expense of
the District.

SECTION 4.6. PARTIAL PREPAYMENT OF BOND

Upon surrender of any Bond prepaid in part only, the Trustee shall execute and deliver to the
Owner thereof, at the expense of the District, a new Bond or Bonds of authorized denominations equal in
aggregate principal amount to the unprepaid portion of the Bond surrendered and of the same maturity.

SECTION 4.7. EFFECT OF PREPAYMENT

When notice of prepayment has been duly given as aforesaid, and moneys for payment of the
Prepayment Price of, together with interest accrued to the prepayment date with respect to, the Bonds (or
portions thereof so called for prepayment are held by the Trustee, the Bonds (or portions thereof) so
called for prepayment shall, on the prepayment date designated in such notice, become due and payable at
the Prepayment Price specified in such notice and interest accrued thereon to the prepayment date; and
from and after the prepayment date interest represented by the Bonds so called for prepayment shall cease

TRUST AGREEMENT
Page 16

P T1



to accrue, said Bonds (or portions thereof) shall cease to be entitled to any benefit or security under this
Agreement, and the Owners of said Bonds shall have no rights in respect thereof except to receive
payment of said Prepayment Price and accrued interest.

All Bonds prepaid pursuant to the provisions of this Article shall be canceled upon surrender
thereof and destroyed by the Trustee.

ARTICLE V
WATER REVENUE PAYMENTS

SECTION 5.1. PLEDGE AND DEPOSIT OF WATER REVENUES

(a) All of the Water Revenues, all amounts held in the Water Revenue Fund described in
subsection (b) below and any other amounts (including proceeds of the sale of the Bonds) held in any
fund or account established pursuant to the Trust Agreement (except the Rebate Fund) are hereby
irrevocably pledged to secure the payment of the principal of and interest, and the premium, if any, on the
Bonds in accordance with their terms and the provisions of the Trust Agreement, subject however to the
pledge thereon securing parity debt, and the Water Revenues shall not be used for any other purpose
while the Bonds remain Outstanding; provided that out of the Water Revenues there may be apportioned
such sums for such purposes as are expressly permitted herein. Said pledge, together with the pledge
created for the benefit of other Bonds and Contracts, shall constitute a first lien on and security interest on
Water Revenues and, subject to application of Water Revenue Fund and all amounts on deposit therein as
permitted herein, the Water Revenue Fund and other funds and accounts created hereunder for the
payment of the principal of and interest, and the premium, if any, on the Bonds in accordance with the
terms hereof, and shall attach, be perfected and be valid and binding from and after the Closing Date,
without any physical delivery thereof or further act and shall be valid and binding against all parties
having claims of any kind in tort, contract or otherwise against the District, irrespective of whether such
parties have notice hereof.

() In order to carry out and effectuate the pledge and lien contained herein, the District
agrees and covenants to receive all Water Revenues in trust hereunder and shall be deposited when and as
received in a special fund designated as the "Water Revenue Fund," which fund has been previously
established by the District and is hereby continued and which fund the District agrees and covenants to
maintain and to hold separate and apart from other funds so long as the Bonds remain unpaid. Moneys in
the Water Revenue Fund shall be used and applied by the District as provided herein. All moneys in the
Water Revenue Fund shall be held in trust and shall be applied, used and withdrawn for the purposes set
forth in this Section.

(c) The District shall, from the moneys in the Water Revenue Fund, pay all Operation and
Maintenance Costs (including amounts reasonably required to be set aside in contingency reserves for
Operation and Maintenance Costs, the payment of which is not then immediately required) as such
Operation and Maintenance Costs become due and payable. Thereafter all remaining moneys in the Water
Revenue Fund shall be applied by the District at the following times for the transfer to the following
respective special funds in the following order of priority; and all moneys in each of such funds shall be
held in trust and shall be applied, used and withdrawn only for the purposes set forth in this Section.

(d Not later than the first business day preceding each date on which principal of or interest
on the Bonds becomes due and payable, the District shall transfer from the Water Revenue Fund to the
Trustee for deposit in the Bond Payment Fund funds sufficient for payment of principal and interest due
and for Bond redemption, if applicable.

All amounts designated by the District as interest, shall be applied by the Trustee solely in the
Interest Fund of the Bond Payment Fund for the purpose of paying interest on the Bonds as it shall
become due and payable (including accrued interest on any Bonds purchased or redeemed prior to
maturity pursuant to the Trust Agreement).

TRUST AGREEMENT
Page 17

P.

72



All amounts designated by the District as principal shall be deposited by the Trustee in the
Principal Fund of the Bond Payment Fund for the purpose of paying principal on the Bonds at their
respective maturity dates.

(e) All amounts designated by the Trustee as redemption funds shall be applied by the
Trustee solely for the purpose of paying the principal of and interest on the Bonds to be redeemed;
provided, however, that at any time prior to giving notice of redemption of any such Bonds, the Trustee
may apply such amounts to the purchase of Bonds at public or private sale, as and when and at such
prices (including brokerage and other charges, but excluding accrued interest), as shall be directed
pursuant to a Written Certificate of the District, except that the purchase price (exclusive of accrued
interest) may not exceed the redemption price then applicable to the Bonds. The Trustee shall establish
and maintain a Delivery Costs Fund in accordance with Section 3.4 hereof.

€3] All amounts in the Reserve Fund shall be used and withdrawn by the Trustee solely for
the purpose of (a) paying interest on or principal of the Bonds, when due and payable to the extent that
moneys deposited in the Interest Fund or Principal Fund, respectively, are not sufficient for such purpose,
and (b) making the final payments of principal of and interest on the Bonds. On the date on which all
Bonds shall be retired hereunder or provision made therefor, all moneys then on deposit in the Reserve
Fund shall be withdrawn by the Trustee and paid to the District as a refund of Principal or Interest
Payments. In the event of any deficiency in the Reserve Fund (whether due to a payment therefrom or due
to the fluctuation in market value of securities credited thereto, or otherwise) as of the fifteenth (15th) day
of the month preceding any Interest Payment Date, the Trustee shall promptly notify the District in
writing of the amount of such deficiency and the District shall fund such deficiency from Net Revenues.
Any amounts on deposit in the Reserve Fund at any time in excess of the Reserve Requirement shall be
transferred to the Water Revenue Payment Fund.

The Reserve Fund may be maintained in the form of one or more separate subaccounts, which are
established for the purpose of holding the proceeds of separate issues of the Bonds in conformity with
applicable provisions of the Tax Code.

SECTION 5.2. BOND PAYMENT FUND

There is hereby established with the Trustee the Bond Payment Fund of which the Trustee
covenants to maintain and hold in trust separate and apart from other funds held by it so long as any
Water Revenue Payments remain unpaid. All moneys on deposit in the Bond Payment Fund (including
income or profit from investments) shall be retained therein except as expressly provided herein.

The Trustee shall transfer from the Bond Payment Fund the following amounts at the times and in
the manner hereinafter provided, and shall deposit such amounts in one or more of the following
respective funds, each of which the Trustee shall establish and maintain and hold in trust separate and
apart from other funds held by it, and each of which shall be disbursed and applied only as hereinafter
authorized. Such amounts shall be so transferred to and deposited in the following respective funds in the
following order of priority, the requirements of each such fund at the time of deposit to be satisfied before
any transfer is made to any fund subsequent in priority:

(a) Interest Fund. The Trustee, on the last business day before each Interest Payment Date
(commencing on the last business day before 1, 20_ ), shall deposit in the Interest Fund from Water
Revenues an amount representing interest coming due with respect to the Bonds on the next succeeding
~lor___1,as the case may be. No deposit need be made into the Interest Fund so long as there shall
be in such fund moneys sufficient to pay the interest portion of Bonds then Outstanding due, if any, on the
next  lor__ 1, asthe case may be.

TRUST AGREEMENT
Page 18

P. 73



Except as hereinafter provided, moneys in the Interest Fund shall be used and withdrawn by the
Trustee solely for the purpose of paying the interest with respect to the Bonds when due and payable
(including accrued interest on any Bonds prepaid prior to maturity pursuant to this Agreement).

(b) Principal Fund. The Trustee, on the last business day before each 1 (commencing
on the last business day before 1, 20 ), shall deposit in the Principal Fund from Water Revenues
an amount equal to the principal coming due with respect to the Bonds on the next succeeding 1. No
deposit need be made into the Principal Fund so long as there shall be in such fund moneys sufficient to
pay the portion of all Bonds then Outstanding designated as principal and coming due on the next
succeeding L.

Except as hereinafter provided, moneys in the Principal Fund shall be used and withdrawn by the
Trustee solely for the purpose of paying the principal with respect to the Bonds when due and payable.

SECTION 5.3. INVESTMENT OF MONEYS IN SPECIAL FUNDS

Any moneys in the Delivery Cost Fund, the Bond Payment Fund, the Interest Fund, the Principal
Fund and the Reserve Fund shall be invested by the District or, upon the Written Request of the District,
by the Trustee, in Permitted Investments which will mature on or before the dates when such moneys are
scheduled to be needed for payment from such fund. Securities acquired as an investment of moneys in a
fund shall be credited to such fund.

In the absence of written investment direction from the District, the Trustee shall invest moneys
held by it solely in Permitted Investments specified in clause (5) of subsection (b) the definition thereof
and the District will execute and deliver such documents as the Trustee shall reasonably request prior to
such investment being effected. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, investments shall be
valued by the Trustee as frequently as reasonably deemed necessary, but not less often than annually, at
the market value thereof, exclusive of accrued interest. Deficiencies in the amount on deposit in any fund
or account resulting from a decline in market value shall be restored by the District no later than the
-succeeding annual valuation date. The Trustee shall also value investments hereunder in connection with
the or prepayment of the Bonds as directed in a Written Request of the District.

Any interest, profit or other income on such investments will be deposited when received by the
Trustee in the Reserve Fund to the extent the amount available and contained therein is less than the
Reserve Requirement and thereafter in the Bond Payment Fund established hereunder.

Subject to the further provisions of Section 6.3 hereof, the Trustee may sell or present for
prepayment any obligations so purchased at the direction of the District whenever it shall be necessary in
order to provide moneys to meet any payment, and the Trustee shall not be liable or responsible for any
loss resulting from such investment. The Trustee or an affiliate may act as principal or agent in the
acquisition or disposition of any investment and shall be entitled to its customary fee therefor. The
Trustee may commingle any of the funds or accounts established pursuant to this Agreement into a
separate fund or funds for investment purposes only; provided, however, that all funds or accounts held
by the Trustee hereunder shall be accounted for separately notwithstanding such commingling.

SECTION 5.4. REBATE FUND

(a) Establishment. The Trustee shall establish, when required, a separate account for the
Bonds designated the "Rebate Fund." Absent an opinion of Special Counsel that the exclusion from gross
income for federal income tax purposes of interest with respect to the Bonds will not be adversely
affected, the District shall cause to be deposited in the Rebate Fund such amounts as are required to be
deposited therein pursuant to this Section and the Tax Certificate. All money at any time deposited in the
Rebate Fund shall be held by the Trustee in trust for payment to the United States Treasury. All amounts

TRUST AGREEMENT
Page 19

P

74



on deposit in the Rebate Fund for the Bonds shall be governed by this Section and the Tax Certificate for
the Bonds, unless and to the extent that the District delivers to the Trustee an opinion of Special Counsel
that the exclusion from gross income for federal income tax purposes of interest with respect to the Bonds
will not be adversely affected if such requirements are not satisfied. The Trustee shall be deemed
conclusively to have complied with the provisions of this Section and the Tax Certificate if the Trustee
follows the directions of the District and the Trustee shall have no independent responsibility to or
liability resulting from failure of the Trustee to enforce compliance by the District with the Tax
Certificate or the provisions of this Section.

(b) Annual Computation. Within 55 days of the end of each Bond Year (as such term is
defined in the Tax Certificate), the District shall calculate or cause to be calculated the amount of
rebatable arbitrage, in accordance with Section 148(f)(2) of the Code and Section 1.148-3 of the Treasury
Regulations (taking into account any applicable exceptions with respect to the computation of the
rebatable arbitrage, described, if applicable, in the Tax Certificate (e.g, the temporary investments
exceptions of Section (B) and the construction expenditures exception of Section 148(£)(4)(C) of the
Code), and taking into account whether the election pursuant to Section 148(f)(4)(C)(vii) of the Code has
been made), for this purpose treating the last day of the applicable Bond Year as a computation date,
within the meaning of Section 1.148-1(b) of the Treasury Regulations (the "Rebatable Arbitrage"). The
District shall obtain expert advice as to the amount of the Rebatable Arbitrage to comply with this
Section.

(c) Annual Transfer. Within 55 days of the end of each Bond Year, upon the written Request
of the District, an amount shall be deposited to the Rebate Fund by the Trustee from any Revenues legally
available for such purpose (as specified by the District in the aforesaid written Request), if and to the
extent required so that the balance in the Rebate Fund shall equal the amount of Rebatable Arbitrage so
calculated in accordance with (i) of this Subsection (a). In the event that immediately following the
transfer required by the previous sentence, the amount then on deposit to the credit of the Rebate Fund
exceeds the amount required to be on deposit therein, upon written Request of the District, the Trustee
shall withdraw the excess from the Rebate Fund and then credit the excess to the Revenue Fund.

(d) Payment to the Treasury. The Trustee shall pay, as directed by Request of the District, to
the United States Treasury, out of amounts in the Rebate Account,

(i) not later than 60 days after the end of (X) the fifth Bond Year, and (Y) each
applicable fifth Bond Year thereafter, an amount equal to at least 90% of the
Rebatable Arbitrage calculated as of the end of such Bond Year; and

(ii) not later than 60 days after the payment of all the Bonds, an amount equal to
100% of the Rebatable Arbiirage calculated as of the end of such applicable Bond
Year, and any income attributable to the Rebatable Arbitrage, computed in
accordance with Section 148(0 of the Code and Section 1.148-3 of the Treasury
Regulations.

In the event that, prior to the time of any payment required to be made from the Rebate Fund, the amount
in the Rebate Fund is not sufficient to make such payment when such payment is due, the District shall
calculate or cause to be calculated the amount of such deficiency and deposit an amount received from
any legally available source equal to such deficiency prior to the time such payment is due. Each payment
required to be made pursuant to this Subsection (a) shall be made to the Internal Revenue Service Center,
Ogden, Utah 84201 on or before the date on which such payment is due, and shall be accompanied by
Internal Revenue Service Form 8038-T, or shall be made in such other manner as provided under the
Code.

TRUST AGREEMENT
Page 20

P. 75



(e) Disposition of Unexpended Funds. Any funds remaining in the Rebate Fund after
redemption and payment of the Bonds and the payments described in Subsection (a) above being made
may be withdrawn by the District and utilized in any manner by the District.

(f) Survival of Defeasance. Notwithstanding anything in this Section to the contrary, the
obligation to comply with the requirements of this Section shall survive the defeasance or payment in full
of the Bonds.

ARTICLE VI
COVENANTS

SECTION 6.1. PERFORMANCE UNDER TRUST AGREEMENT

The District covenants and agrees with the Owners of the Bonds to perform all obligations and
duties imposed on them under the Trust Agreement and, together with the Trustee, to enforce such Trust
Agreement in accordance with its terms.

The District will in all respects promptly and faithfully keep, perform and comply with all the
terms, provisions, covenants, conditions and agreements of the Trust Agreement to be kept, performed
and complied with by it.

The District agrees not to do or permit anything to be done, or omit or refrain from doing
anything, in any case where any such act done or permitted to be done, or any such omission of or
refraining from action, would or might be a ground for cancellation or termination of the Trust
Agreement.

SECTION 6.2. RATE COVENANT

This Agreement will require the District to the fullest extent permitted by law, to fix, prescribe
and collect rates and charges for the Water Service provided by the Water System which will be at least
sufficient to yield during each Fiscal Year Water System Net Water Revenues equal to one hundred
fifteen percent (115%) of Debt Service for such Fiscal Year allocable to the Bonds, including any parity

obligations.

The District may make adjustments from time to time in such rates and charges and may make
such classification thereof as it deems necessary, but shall not reduce the rates and charges then in effect
unless the Water System Net Water Revenues from such reduced rates and charges will at all times be
sufficient to meet the covenant described in the prior paragraph.

SECTION 6.3. BUDGETS

On or prior to the fifteenth day of each Fiscal Year, the District shall certify to the Trustee that the
amounts budgeted for payment of Water Revenue Payments from Water Revenues are fully adequate for
the payment of all Water Revenue Payments due under the Trust Agreement for such Fiscal Year. If the
amounts so budgeted are not adequate for the payment of Water Revenue Payments due under the Trust
Agreement, the District will take such action as may be necessary to cause such annual budget to be
amended, corrected or augmented so as to include therein the amounts required to be raised by the District
from Water Revenues in the then ensuing Fiscal Year for the payment of Water Revenue Payments due
under the Trust Agreement and will notify the Trustee of the proceedings then taken or proposed to be
taken by the District.

TRUST AGREEMENT
Page 21

P. 76



SECTION 6.4. TAX COVENANTS

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, absent an opinion of Special Counsel that
the exclusion from gross income of interest with respect to the Bonds will not be adversely affected for
federal income tax purposes, the District covenants to comply with all applicable requirements of the
Code necessary to preserve such exclusion from gross income and specifically covenants, without
limiting the generality of the foregoing, as follows:

(a) Private Activity. The District will not take or omit to take any action or make any use of
the proceeds of the Bonds or of any other moneys or property which would cause the Bonds to be "private
activity bonds" within the meaning of Section 141 of the Code.

(b) Arbitrage. The District will make no use of the proceeds of the Bonds or of any other
amounts or property, regardless of the source, or take or omit to take any action which would cause the
Bonds to be "arbitrage bonds" within the meaning of Section 148 of the Code.

(c) Federal Guarantee. The District will make no use of the proceeds of the Bonds or take or
omit to take any action that would cause the Bonds to be "federally guaranteed" within the meaning of
Section 149(b) of the Code.

(d) Information Reporting. The District will take or cause to be taken all necessary action to
comply with the informational reporting requirement of Section 149(e) of the Code.
p

(e) Hedge Bonds. The District will make no use of the proceeds of the Bonds or any other
amounts or property, regardless of the source, or take any action or refrain from taking any action that
would cause the Bonds to be considered "hedge bonds" within the meaning of Section 149(g) of the Code
unless the District takes all necessary action to assure compliance with the requirements of Section 149(g)
of the Code to maintain the exclusion from gross income of interest on the Bonds for federal income tax

purposes.

(f) . Miscellaneous. The District will take no action, or omit to take any action, inconsistent
with its expectations stated in any Tax Certificate executed with respect to the Bonds and will comply
with the covenants and requirements stated therein and incorporated by reference herein.

This Section and the covenants set forth herein shall not be applicable to, and nothing contained
herein shall be deemed to prevent the District from executing and delivering, Bonds the interest with
respect to which has been determined by Special Counsel to be subject to federal income taxation.

SECTION 6.5. ACCOUNTING RECORDS AND REPORTS

The Trustee shall keep or cause to be kept proper books of record and account in which complete
and correct entries shall be made of all transactions made by it relating to the receipts, disbursements,
allocation and application of the Water Revenue Payments, and such books shall be available upon
reasonable prior notice for inspection by the District and by any Owner of Bonds, or his agent or
representative, at reasonable hours and under reasonable conditions. The Trustee shall furnish the District
monthly cash transaction statements which include detail for all receipts, disbursements, allocation and
application of amounts on deposit in the funds and accounts created hereunder and all investment
transactions effected by the Trustee or brokers selected by the District. Upon the District's election, such
statements will be delivered via the Trustee's online service and upon electing such service, paper
statements will be provided only upon request The District waives the right to receive brokerage
confirmations of security transactions effected by the Trustee as they occur, to the extent permitted by
law. The District further understands that trade confirmations for securities transactions effected by the

TRUST AGREEMENT
Page 22

P.

17



Trustee will be available upon request and at no additional cost and other trade confirmations may be
obtained from the applicable broker.

SECTION 6.6. COMPLIANCE WITH TRUST AGREEMENT

The Trustee will not execute, or permit to be executed, any Bonds in any manner other than in
accordance with the provisions of this Agreement, and the District will not suffer or permit any default by
it to occur under this Agreement, but will faithfully observe and perform all the covenants, conditions and
requirements hereof.

SECTION 6.7. OBSERVANCE OF LAWS AND REGULATIONS

To the extent necessary to assure their performance hereunder, the District will well and truly
keep, observe and perform all valid and lawful obligations or regulations now or hereafter imposed on
them by contract, or prescribed by any law of the United States of America, or of the State, or by any
officer, board or commission having jurisdiction or control, as a condition of the continued enjoyment of
any and every right, privilege or franchise now owned or hereafter acquired by the District, respectively,
including its right to exist and carry on its business, to the end that such contracts, rights and franchises
shall be maintained and preserved, and shall not become abandoned, forfeited or in any manner impaired.

SECTION 6.8. COMPLIANCE WITH CONTRACTS

The District shall comply with the terms, covenants and provisions, express or implied, of all
contracts for the use of the 2021 Water Revenue Bonds by the District, and all other contracts and
agreements affecting or involving the 2021 Water Revenue Bonds to the extent that the District is a party
thereto.

SECTION 6.9. PROSECUTION AND DEFENSE OF SUITS

The District shall promptly, upon request of the Trustee or any Bond Owner, from time to time
take such action as may be necessary or proper to remedy or cure any defect in or cloud upon the title to
the Water System or any part thereof, whether now existing or hereafter developing, shall prosecute all
such suits, actions and other proceedings as may be appropriate for such purpose and shall indemnify and
save the Trustee (including all of its employees, officers and directors) and every Bond Owner harmless
from all loss, cost, damage and expense, including attorneys' fees; which they or any of them may incur
by reason of any such defect, cloud, suit, action or proceeding.

The District shall defend against every suit, action or proceeding at any time brought against the
Trustee (including all of its employees, officers and directors) upon any claim arising out of the receipt,
application or disbursement of any of the Water Revenue Payments or involving the rights of the Trustee
under this Agreement; provided that the Trustee at such party's election may appear in and defend any
such suit, action or proceeding. The District shall indemnify and hold harmless the Trustee against any
and all liability claimed or asserted by any person, arising out of such receipt, application or
disbursement, and shall indemnify and hold harmless the Trustee against any attorneys' fees or other
expenses which the Trustee may incur in connection with any litigation (including pre-litigation
activities) to which it may become a party by reason of serving as Trustee under this Agreement. The
District shall promptly reimburse Trustee in the full amount of any attorneys' fees or other expenses
which the Trustee may incur in litigation or otherwise in order to enforce such party's rights under this
Agreement or the Bonds, provided that such litigation shall be concluded favorably to such party's
contentions therein.

TRUST AGREEMENT
Page 23

P. 78



SECTION 6.10. RECORDATION AND FILING

The Trustee, upon written direction of the District, shall record, register, file, renew, refile and
rerecord all such documents, including financing statements, as may be required by law in order to
maintain a security interest in this Agreement all in such manner, at such times and in such places as may
be required by, and to the extent permitted by, law in order fully to preserve, protect and perfect the
security of the Bond Owners and the rights and security interests of the Trustee. The Trustee, upon
written direction of the District, shall (subject to Section 8.5) do whatever else may be necessary or be
reasonably required in order to perfect and continue the lien of this Agreement.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary above, the Trustee shall have no duty or liability
whatsoever to monitor or notify any party with respect to the timeliness, sufficiency or validity of any
such recording, re-recording, filing, filing of continuation statements and the like with respect to. this
Agreement; it being expressly understood and agreed that the Trustee's duties under this Section shall be
exclusively limited to following the express written filing or recording instructions of the District, from
time to time with respect to the above described actions so long as the District shall supply said recording
or filing instruments.

SECTION 6.11. EMINENT DOMAIN

If all or any part of the project financed by the 2010 Certificates of Participation shall be taken by
eminent domain proceedings (or sold to a government threatening to exercise the power of eminent
domain), the Net Proceeds therefrom shall be applied in the manner specified in Section 10.2(a) of this
Agreement . ‘

SECTION 6.12. FURTHER ASSURANCES

Whenever and so often as requested so to do by the Trustee or any Bond Owner, the District will
promptly execute and deliver or cause to be executed and delivered all such other and further instruments,
documents or assurances, and promptly do or cause to be done all such other and further things, as may be
necessary or reasonably required in order to further and more fully vest in the Trustee and the Bond
Owners all rights, interest, powers, benefits, privileges and advantages conferred or intended to be
conferred upon them by this Agreement.

ARTICLE VII
THE ENTERPRISE; DEFAULT AND LIMITATION OF LIABILITY

SECTION 7.1. THE ENTERPRISE

"Enterprise" means any and all water facilities, properties and improvements at any time owned,
controlled or operated by the District for the distribution of water, including water treatment plants, water
mains, laterals, pumping stations, pipes, valves, machinery, and all other appurtenances necessary, useful
or convenient for the distribution of water, and any necessary lands, rights or way and other real or
personal property useful in connection therewith.

The Enterprise is estimated to have a value at least equal to the principal amount of the Bonds,
although no current independent appraisal of the Enterprise has been obtained. The Bonds are not secured
by the Enterprise and the Enterprise is not subject to sale, lease or other disposition in the event of default.
The Bonds are secured by the Net Water Revenues and the amounts in certain funds and accounts as

TRUST AGREEMENT
Page 24

P. 79



described herein. The Water Revenue Payments are not subject to abatement in the event of loss of use or
enjoyment of the Enterprise or the Project.

SECTION 7.2. NOTICE OF NON-PAYMENT

In the event of delinquency in the payment of any Water Revenue Payments due by the District
pursuant to the Trust Agreement, the Trustee shall, after one business day following the date upon which
such delinquent Installment Payment was due, as soon as practicable give written notice of the
delinquency and the amount of the delinquency to the District.

SECTION 7.3. EVENTS OF DEFAULT; ACTION ON DEFAULT OR TERMINATION

The following shall constitute “Event Of Default” hereunder:
(a) If payment of interest on the Bonds shall not be made when due; or
(b) If payment of any Water Revenue Payments shall not be made when due and payable; or

(¢) If the District shall fail to observe or perform in any material way any other agreement,
condition, covenant or term contained herein on its part to be observed or performed, and
such failure shall continue for thirty (30) days after written notice specifying such failure and
requiring the same to be remedied shall have been given to the District by the Trustee or by
the Owners of not less than fifty per cent (50%) in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds,
provided, that if such default be such that it cannot be corrected within the applicable period,
it shall not constitute an Even of Default if corrective action is instituted by the District
within the applicable period and diligently pursued until the default is corrected.

If an Event of Default has occurred hereunder and is continuing, the Trustee, may, and, if
requested in writing by the Owners of a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then
Outstanding the Trustee shall, (a) declare the principal of the Bonds, together with the accrued interest
thereon, to be due and payable immediately, and upon any such declaration the same shall become
immediately due and payable, anything in this Trust Agreement or in the Bonds to the contrary
notwithstanding, and (b) subject to the provisions of Article VIII hereof, exercise any other remedies
available to the Trustee and the Bond owners in law or at equity.

Upon declaration of the entire principal amount of the unpaid Water Revenue Payments and the
accrued interest thereon to be due and payable immediately and provided such declaration is not
rescinded or annulled, all in accordance with this Agreement, the Trustee shall apply all moneys received
as Water Revenue Payments and all moneys held in any fund or account hereunder (except the Rebate
Fund) to the payment of the entire principal amount of the Bonds and the accrued interest with respect
thereto, with interest on the overdue Bonds at the rate or rates of interest or yields-to-maturity applicable
to the Bonds if paid in accordance with their terms.

All amounts received by the Trustee pursuant to any right given or action taken by the Trustee
under the provisions of this Trust Agreement and all sums in the funds and accounts established and held
by the Trustee hereunder upon the date of the declaration of acceleration as provided herein, and all sums
thereafter received by the Trustee hereunder, shall be applied by the Trustee in the following order upon
presentation of the Bonds, and the stamping thereon of the payment if only partially paid, or upon the
surrender thereof if fully paid:

TRUST AGREEMENT
Page 25

P

80



First, to the payment of the fees, costs and expenses of the Trustee in declaring such Event of
Default and in exercising the rights and remedies set forth herein, including reasonable compensation to
its agents, attorneys (including the allocated costs and disbursements of its in-house counsel to the extent
such services are not redundant with those provided by outside counsel) and counsel and any outstanding
fees and expenses of the Trustee; and

Second, to the payment of the whole amount then owing and unpaid upon the Bonds for principal
and interest, as applicable, with interest on the overdue principal, and installments of interest at the net
effective rate then borne by the Outstanding Bonds (to the extent that such interest on overdue
installments of principal and interest shall have been collected), and in case such moneys shall be
insufficient to pay in full the whole amount so owing and unpaid upon the Bonds, then to the payment of
such principal and interest without preference or priority, ratably to the aggregate of such principal and

interest.
SECTION 7.4. OTHER REMEDIES OF THE TRUSTEE

The Trustee may

(a) by mandamus or other action or proceeding or suit at law or in equity to enforce its rights
against the District or any board member, officer or employee thereof, and to compel the District or any
such board member, officer or employee to perform or carry out its or his duties under law and the
agreements and covenants required to be performed by it or him contained herein;

(b) by suit in equity to enjoin any acts or things which are unlawful or violate the rights of
the Trustee; or

(c) by suit in equity upon the happening of any default hereunder to require the District and
its directors, officers and employees to account as the trustee of an express trust,

SECTION 7.5. NON-WAIVER

A waiver of any default or breach of duty or contract by the Trustee shall not affect any
subsequent default or breach of duty or contract or impair any rights or remedies on any such subsequent
default or breach of duty or contract. No delay or omission by the Trustee to exercise any right or remedy
accruing upon any default or breach of duty or contract shall impair any such right or remedy or shall be
construed to be a waiver of any such default or breach of duty or contract or an acquiescence therein, and
every right or remedy conferred upon the Trustee by law or by this Article may be enforced and exercised
from time to time and as often as shall be deemed expedient by the Trustee.

If any action, proceeding or suit to enforce any right or to exercise any remedy is abandoned, the
Trustee and the District shall be restored to their former positions, rights and remedies as if such action,
proceeding or suit had not been brought or taken.

SECTION 7.6. REMEDIES NOT EXCLUSIVE

No remedy herein conferred upon or reserved to the Trustee is intended to be exclusive of any
other remedy, and each such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy
given hereunder or now or hereafter existing in law or in equity or by statute or otherwise and may be
exercised without exhausting and without regard to any other remedy conferred by any law.

SECTION 7.7. NO OBLIGATION BY THE DISTRICT TO OWNERS

TRUST AGREEMENT
Page 26

P. 81



Except for the payment of Water Revenue Payments when due in accordance with this
Agreement and the performance of the other covenants and agreements of the District contained in this
Agreement and herein, the District shall have no obligation or liability to the Owners of the Bonds with
respect to this Agreement or the execution, delivery or transfer of the Bonds, or the disbursement of
Water Revenue Payments to the Owners by the Trustee; provided however that nothing contained in this
Section shall affect the rights, duties or obligations of the Trustee expressly set forth herein.

SECTION 7.8. TRUSTEE APPOINTED AGENT FOR BOND OWNERS; DIRECTION OF
PROCEEDINGS

The Trustee is hereby appointed the agent and attorney of the Owners of all Bonds outstanding
hereunder for the purpose of filing any claims relating to the Bonds. The Owners of a majority in
aggregate principal amount of the Bonds Outstanding hereunder shall, upon tender to the Trustee of
reasonable indemnity against the costs, expenses and liabilities to be incurred in compliance with such
direction, have the right to direct the method and place of conducting all remedial proceedings by the
Trustee, provided such direction shall be in accordance with law and the provisions of this Trust
Agreement and that the Trustee shall have the right to decline to follow any such direction which in the
opinion of the Trustee would be unjustly prejudicial to Bond-Owners not parties to such a direction.

SECTION 7.9. POWER OF TRUSTEE TO CONTROL PROCEEDINGS

In the event that the Trustee, upon the happening of an Event of Default, shall have taken any
action, by judicial proceedings or otherwise, pursuant to its duties hereunder, whether upon its own
discretion or upon the request of the Owners of a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds
then outstanding pursuant to Section 7.7 hereof, it shall have full power, in the exercise of its discretion
for the best interests of the Owners of the Bonds, with respect to the continuance, discontinuance,
withdrawal, compromise, settlement or other disposal of such action; provided, however, that the Trustee
shall not, unless there no longer continues an Event of Default hereunder, discontinue, withdraw,
compromise or settle, or otherwise dispose of, any litigation pending at law or in equity, if at the time
there has been filed with it a written request signed by the Owners of at least a majority in principal
amount of the Bonds Outstanding hereunder opposing such discontinuance, withdrawal, compromise,
settlement or other disposal of such litigation.

SECTION 7.10. LIMITATION ON BOND OWNERS' RIGHT TO SUE

No Owner of any Bond executed and delivered hereunder shall have the right to institute any suit,
action or proceeding at law or in equity, for any remedy under or upon this Agreement, unless (a) such
Owner shall have previously given to the Trustee written notice of the occurrence of an Event of Default
hereunder; (b) the Owners of at least a majority in aggregate principal amount of all the Bonds then
Outstanding shall have made written request upon the Trustee to exercise the powers hereinbefore granted
or to institute such action, suit or proceeding in its own name; (c) said Owners shall have tendered to the
Trustee reasonable indemnity against the costs, expenses and liabilities to be incurred in compliance with
such request; and (d) the Trustee shall have refused or omitted to comply with such request for a period of
sixty (60) days after such written request shall have been received by, and said tender of indemnity shall
have been made to, the Trustee.

Such notification, request, tender or indemnity and refusal or omission are hereby declared, in
every case, to be conditions precedent to the exercise by any Owner of Bonds of any remedy hereunder; it

TRUST AGREEMENT
Page 27

P.

82



being understood and intended that no one or more Owners of Bonds shall have any right in any manner
whatever by his or their action to enforce any right under this Agreement, except in the manner herein
provided, and that all proceedings at law or in equity to enforce any provision of this Agreement shall be
instituted, had and maintained in the manner herein provided and for the equal benefit of all owners of the
Outstanding Bonds.

The right of any Owner of any Bond to receive payment of the principal of (and premium, if any)
and interest with respect to such Bond, as herein provided, on and after the respective due dates expressed
in such Bond, or to institute suit for the enforcement of any such payment on or after such respective
dates, shall not be impaired or affected without the consent of such Owner, notwithstanding the foregoing
provisions of this Section or Section 7.10 or any other provision of this Agreement.

SECTION 7.11. NO OBLIGATION WITH RESPECT TO PERFORMANCE BY TRUSTEE

The District shall not have any obligation or liability to any of the Owners of the Bonds with
respect to the performance by the Trustee of any duty imposed upon it under this Agreement.

SECTION 7.12. NO LIABILITY TO OWNERS FOR PAYMENT

Except as provided in this Agreement, the Trustee shall not have any obligation or liability to the
Owners of the Bonds with respect to the payment of the Water Revenue Payments by the District when
due, or with respect to the performance by the District of any other covenant made by it in the this
Agreement or herein.

SECTION 7.13. NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR SUFFICIENCY

The Trustee shall not be responsible for the sufficiency of this Agreement to receive Water
Revenue Payments pursuant to the Trust Agreement. The Trustee shall not be responsible or liable for
selection or liquidation of investments or any loss suffered in connection with any investment of funds
made by it under the terms of and in accordance with this Agreement.

SECTION 7.14. INDEMNIFICATION OF TRUSTEE

The District shall to the extent permitted by law, indemnify the Trustee (including all of its
employees, officers and directors) and hold it harmless against any loss, liability, expenses or advances,
including but not limited to fees and expenses of counsel and other experts, incurred or made without
negligence or willful misconduct on the part of the Trustee, (i) in the exercise and performance of any of
the powers and duties hereunder by the Trustee or (ii) arising out of or relating to any untrue statement or
alleged untrue statement of any material fact or omission or alleged omission to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not
misleading in any official statement or other offering circular utilized in connection with the sale of the
Bonds, including the costs and expenses of defending itself against any claim of liability arising under
this Agreement. Such indemnity shall survive payment of the Bonds and discharge of this Agreement or
resignation or removal of the Trustee.

ARTICLE VIII
THE TRUSTEE

SECTION 8.1. EMPLOYMENT OF TRUSTEE

In consideration of the recitals hereinabove set forth and for other valuable consideration, the
District hereby agrees to employ the Trustee to receive, hold, invest and disburse the moneys received
pursuant to This Agreement for credit to the various funds and accounts established by this Agreement; to
execute, deliver and transfer the Bonds; and to apply and disburse the Water Revenue Payments received

TRUST AGREEMENT
Page 28

P

83



from the District to the Owners of Bonds; and to perform certain other functions; all as herein provided
and subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

SECTION 8.2. ACCEPTANCE OF EMPLOYMENT

In consideration of the compensation herein provided for, the Trustee accepts the employment
above referred to subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

SECTION 8.3. TRUSTEE: DUTIES, REMOVAL AND RESIGNATION

By executing and delivering this Agreement, the Trustee accepts the duties and obligations of the
Trustee provided in this Agreement, but only upon the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement.

The District may, by written request to the Trustee, remove the Trustee and appoint a successor
Trustee; provided, however, that if the District is in default under this Agreement the Owners of a
majority in aggregate principal amount of all Bonds Outstanding may, by written request to the Trustee,
remove the Trustee and appoint a successor Trustee. Any such successor shall be a bank or trust company
doing business and having a corporate trust office in California, which has (or the parent holding
company of which has) a combined capital (exclusive of borrowed capital) and surplus of at least

million dollars ($ ) and subject to supervision or examination by federal or state
authorities. If such bank or trust company publishes a report of condition at least annually, pursuant to
law or to the requirements of any supervising or examining authority above referred to, then for the
purposes of this Section the combined capital and surplus of such bank or trust company shall be deemed
to be its combined capital and surplus as set forth in its most recent report of condition so published.

The Trustee may at any time resign by giving written notice to the District and by giving to the
Bond Owners notice of such resignation by mail at the addresses shown on the registration books
maintained by the Trustee. Upon receiving such notice of resignation, the District shall promptly appoint
a successor Trustee by an instrument in writing; provided, however, that in the event that the District does
not appoint a successor Trustee within thirty (30) days following receipt of such notice of resignation, the
resigning Trustee may at the expense of the District petition the appropriate court having jurisdiction to
appoint a successor Trustee. Any resignation or removal of the Trustee and appointment of a successor
Trustee shall become effective upon written acceptance of appointment by the successor Trustee.

SECTION 8.4. COMPENSATION OF THE TRUSTEE

The District shall from time to time, subject to any agreement in effect with the Trustee, pay to
the Trustee reasonable compensation for its services and shall reimburse the Trustee (including all of its
employees, officers and directors) for all its advances and expenditures, including but not limited to
advances to and fees and expenses of independent appraisers, accountants, consultants, counsel, agents
and attorneysat-law or other experts employed by it in the exercise and performance of its powers and
duties hereunder. Such compensation and reimbursement shall be paid by the District; provided, however,
that the Trustee shall not otherwise have any claims, except in accordance with Section 7.13 hereof or lien
for payment of compensation for its services against any other moneys held by it in the funds or accounts
established hereunder but may take whatever legal actions are lawfully available to it directly against the
District. The obligations of the District under this Section shall survive resignation or removal of the
Trustee and payment of the Bonds and discharge of this Agreement.

SECTION 8.5. PROTECTION OF THE TRUSTEE

The Trustee shall be protected and shall incur no liability whatsoever in acting or refraining from
acting or proceeding in good faith upon any resolution, notice, telegram, request, consent, waiver, Bond,

TRUST AGREEMENT
Page 29

P.

84



statement, affidavit, voucher, bond, requisition or other paper or document which it shall in good faith
believe to be genuine and to have been adopted, executed or delivered by the proper party or pursuant to
any of the provisions of this Agreement, and the Trustee shall be under no duty to make any investigation
or inquiry as to any statements contained or matters referred to in any such instrument, but may accept
and rely upon the same as conclusive evidence of the truth and accuracy of such statements. The Trustee
shall not be bound to recognize any person as an Owner of any Bond or to take any action at the request
of any such person unless such Bond shall be deposited with the Trustee or satisfactory evidence of the
ownership of such Bond shall be furnished to the Trustee. The Trustee may consult with counsel, who
may be counsel to the District, with regard to legal questions, and the opinion of such counsel shall be full
and complete authorization and protection in respect of any action taken or suffered by it hereunder in
good faith in accordance therewith.

Whenever in the administration of its duties under this Agreement, the Trustee shall deem it
necessary or desirable that a matter be proved or established prior to taking or suffering any action
hereunder, such matter (unless other evidence in respect thereof be herein specifically prescribed) shall be
deemed to be conclusively proved and established by a certificate of the District and such Bond shall be
full warranty to the Trustee for any action taken or suffered under the provisions of this Agreement upon
the faith thereof, but in its discretion the Trustee may (but shall have no duty), in lieu thereof, accept other
evidence of such matter or may require such additional evidence as to it may seem reasonable.

The Trustee may buy, sell, own, hold and deal in any of the Bonds provided pursuant to this
Agreement, and may join in any action which any Owner may be entitled to take with like effect as if the
Trustee were not a party to this Agreement. The Trustee, either as principal or agent, may also engage in
or be interested in any financial or other transaction with the District, and may act as depository, trustee,
or agent for any committee or body of Owners of Bonds or of obligations of the District as freely as if it
were not Trustee hereunder.

The Trustee may, to the extent reasonably necessary, execute any of the trusts or powers hereof
and perform the duties required of it hereunder by or through attorneys, agents, or receivers, and shall be
entitled to advice of counsel concerning all matters of trust and its duties hereunder, and the Trustee shall
not be answerable for the default or misconduct of any such attorney, agent or receiver selected by it with
reasonable care. The Trustee shall not be answerable for the exercise of any discretion or power under this
Agreement or in the performance of its duties hereunder or for anything whatever in connection with the
funds and accounts established hereunder, except only for its own willful misconduct or negligence.

The recitals, statements and representations by the District contained in this Agreement or in the
Bonds shall be taken and construed as made by and on the part of the District and not by the Trustee and
the Trustee does not assume, and shall not have, any responsibility or obligations for the correctness of
any thereof.

The Trustee undertakes to perform such duties, and only such duties as are specifically set forth
in this Agreement and no implied duties or obligations shall be read into this Agreement against the
Trustee.

No provision in this Agreement shall require the Trustee to risk or expend its own funds or
otherwise incur any financial liability in the performance of any of its duties hereunder if it shall have
reasonable grounds for believing that repayment of such funds or adequate indemnity against such risk or
liability is not assured to it.

In accepting the trust hereby created, the Trustee acts solely as Trustee for the Owners and not in
its individual capacity and all persons, including without limitation the Owners and the District having
any claim against the Trustee arising from this Agreement shall look only to the funds and accounts held

TRUST AGREEMENT
Page 30

P. 85



by the Trustee hereunder for payment except as otherwise provided herein. Under no circumstances shall
the Trustee be liable in its individual capacity for the obligations evidenced by the Bonds.

The Trustee shall not be deemed to have knowledge of any Event of Default hereunder or under
this Agreement unless and until it shall have actual knowledge thereof or have received notice thereof at
its corporate trust office at the address set forth in Section 11.11 hereof. The Trustee shall, during the
existence of any Event of Default (which has not been cured) use the same degree of care and skill in their
exercise, as a prudent person would exercise or use under the circumstances in the conduct of his/her own
affairs.

The Trustee shall not be accountable for the use or application by the District, or any other party
of any funds which the Trustee has released in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

The Trustee shall be under no obligation to exercise any of the rights or powers vested in the
Trustee by this Agreement at the request, order or direction of any of the Owners pursuant to the
provisions of this Agreement unless such Owners shall have offered to the Trustee reasonable security or
indemnity against the costs, expenses and liabilities which may be incurred therein or thereby.

SECTION 8.6. MERGER OR CONSOLIDATION

Any company into which the Trustee may be merged or converted or with which it may be
consolidated or any company resulting from any merger, conversion or consolidation to which it shall be
a party or any company to which the Trustee may sell or transfer all or substantially all of its corporate
trust business (provided such company is eligible under Section 8.3 hereof), shall be the successor to the
Trustee without the execution or filing of any paper or further act, anything herein to the contrary
notwithstanding.

ARTICLE IX
AMENDMENT OF TRUST AGREEMENT

SECTION 9.1. AMENDMENTS PERMITTED

a) This Agreement and the rights and obligations of the District and of the Owners of the
Bonds and of the Trustee may be modified or amended at any time by an amendment hereto which shall
become binding when the written consents of the Owners of a majority in aggregate principal amount of
the Bonds then Outstanding, exclusive of Bonds disqualified as provided in Section 11.4 hereof, shall
have been filed, provided, however, that no such modification or amendment shall (1) extend the stated
maturities of the Bonds, or reduce the rate of interest or yields-to-maturity, as the case may be,
represented thereby, or extend the time of payment of interest, or reduce the amount of principal
represented thereby, or reduce any premium payable on the prepayment thereof, without the consent of
the Owner of each Bond so affected, or (2) reduce the aforesaid percentage of Owners of Bonds whose
consent is required for the execution of any amendment or modification of this Agreement, or (3) modify
any of the rights or obligations of the Trustee or without its written consent thereto.

b) This Agreement and the rights and obligations of the District and of the (Jwners of the
Bonds may also be modified or amended at any time by an amendment hereto which shall become
binding upon adoption, without the consent of the Owners of any Bonds, but only to the extent permitted
by law and only for any one or more of the following purposes:

(i) to add to the covenants and agreements of the District contained in this
Agreement other covenants and agreements thereafter to be observed or to surrender any
right or power herein reserved to or conferred upon the District, and which shall not
adversely affect the interests of the Owners of the Bonds;

TRUST AGREEMENT
Page 31

P. 86



(ii) to cure, correct or supplement any ambiguous or defective provision contained in
this Agreement or in regard to questions arising under this Agreement, as the District
may deem necessary or desirable and which shall not adversely affect the interests of the
Owners of the Bonds; and

(iii)  subject to the Trustee's judgment, to make such other amendments or
modifications as may be in the best interests of the Owners of the Bonds.

SECTION 9.2. ENDORSEMENT OR REPLACEMENT OF BONDS AFTER AMENDMENT OR
SUPPLEMENT

After the effective date of any action taken as hereinabove provided, the Trustee may determine
that the Bonds may bear a notation by endorsement in form approved by the Trustee as to such action, and
in that case upon demand of the Trustee to the Owner of any Outstanding Bond and presentation of such
Owner's Certificate for such purpose at the principal corporate trust office of the Trustee a suitable
notation as to such action shall be made on such Owners Certificate. If the Trustee shall so determine,
new Bonds so modified as in the opinion of the Trustee shall be necessary to conform to such action shall
be prepared, and in that case upon demand of the Trustee to the Owner of any Outstanding Bonds such
new Bonds shall be exchanged at the principal corporate trust office of the Trustee without cost to each
Owner for Bonds then Outstanding upon surrender of such Outstanding Bonds.

SECTION 9.3. AMENDMENT OF PARTICULAR BONDS

The provisions of this Article shall not prevent any Owner from accepting any amendments to the
particular Bonds held by him, provided that due notation thereof is made on such Bonds.

ARTICLE X
DEFEASANCE

SECTION 10.1, DISCHARGE OF TRUST AGREEMENT

When the obligations of the District under this Agreement shall cease pursuant to Article X of the
Trust Agreement (except for the right of the Trustee and the obligation of the District to have the money
and Permitted Investments mentioned therein applied to the payment of Water Revenue Payments as
therein set forth and the obligation to apply moneys on deposit in the Rebate Fund as provided in Section
5.6 herein), then and in that case the obligations created by this Agreement shall thereupon cease,
terminate and become void except for the obligation of the District to direct the Trustee to apply money
on deposit in the Rebate Fund as provided herein which shall continue until such moneys are so applied
and the right of the Owners to have applied and the obligation of the Trustee to apply such moneys and
Permitted Investments to the payment of the Bonds as herein set forth, and subject to application of
moneys on deposit in the Rebate Fund as provided in Section 5.6, the Trustee shall turn over to the
District, after provision for payment of amounts due the Trustee hereunder, as an overpayment of Water
Revenue Payments, any surplus in the Bond Payment Fund and all balances remaining in any other funds
or accounts other than moneys and Permitted Investments held for the payment of the Bonds at maturity
or on prepayment, which moneys and Permitted Investments shall continue to be held by the Trustee in
trust for the benefit of the Owners and shall be applied by the Trustee to the payment, when due, of the
principal or interest and premium, if any, represented by the Bonds, and after such payment, this
Agreement shall become void.

If moneys or securities described in clause (a) of the definition of Permitted Investments are
deposited with and held by the Trustee as hereinabove provided, the Trustee shall within thirty (30) days
after such moneys or Permitted Investments shall have been deposited with it, mail a notice, first class

TRUST AGREEMENT
Page 32

P

87



postage prepaid, to the Owners at the addresses listed on the registration books kept by the Trustee
pursuant to Section 2.8, setting forth (a) the date fixed for prepayment of the Bonds, (b) a description of
the moneys or securities described in clause (a) of the definition of Permitted Investments so held by it,
and (c) that this Agreement has been released in accordance with the provisions of this Section.

SECTION 10.2. DEPOSIT OF MONEY OR SECURITIES WITH TRUSTEE

Whenever in this Agreement it is provided or permitted that there be deposited with or held in
trust by the Trustee money or securities in the necessary amount to pay or prepay any Bonds, the money
or securities to be so deposited or held may include money or securities held by the Trustee in the funds
and accounts established pursuant to this Agreement and shall be —

(a) lawful money of the United States of America in an amount equal to the principal amount
represented by such Bonds and all unpaid interest represented thereby to maturity, except that, in the case
of Bonds which are to be prepaid prior to maturity and in respect of which notice of such prepayment
shall have been given as in Article IV provided or provision satisfactory to the Trustee shall have been
made for the giving of such notice, the amount to be deposited or held shall be the principal amount or
Prepayment Price and all unpaid interest to such date of prepayment if any, represented by such Bonds; or

(b non-callable securities described in clause (a) of the definition of Permitted Investments
which will provide money sufficient to pay the principal at maturity or upon prepayment plus all accrued
interest to maturity or to the prepayment date, as the case may be, represented by the Bonds to be paid or
prepaid, as such amounts become due, plus premium, if any, provided that, in the case of Bonds which are
to be prepaid prior to the maturity thereof, notice of such prepayment shall have been given as in Aracle
IV provided or provision satisfactory to the Trustee shall have been made for the giving of such notice;
provided, in each case, that the Trustee shall have been irrevocably instructed (by the terms of this
Agreement or by Written Request of the District) to apply such money or securities to the payment of
such principal or Prepayment Price and interest represented by such Bonds.

SECTION 10.3. UNCLAIMED MONEYS

Anything contained herein to the contrary notwithstanding, any moneys held by the Trustee in
trust for the payment and discharge of the interest, principal or Prepayment Price represented by any of
the Bonds which remain unclaimed for two years after the date of deposit of such moneys if deposited
with the Trustee after the date when the interest, principal or Prepayment Price represented by such Bonds
have become payable, shall at the Written Request of the District be repaid by the Trustee to the District
as its absolute property free from trust, and the Trustee shall thereupon be released and discharged with
respect thereto and the Owners shall look only to the District for the payment of the interest and principal
or Prepayment Price represented by much Bonds; provided, however, that before being required to make
any such payment to the District, the Trustee shall, at the written request and expense of the District, first
mail a notice to the owners of the Bonds so payable that such moneys remain unclaimed and that after a
date named in such notice, which date shall not be less than thirty (30) days after the date of the mailing
of such notice, the balance of such moneys then unclaimed will be returned to the District.

ARTICLE XI
MISCELLANEOUS

SECTION 11.1. BENEFITS OF TRUST AGREEMENT LIMITED TO PARTIES

Nothing contained herein, expressed or implied, is intended to give to any person other than the
District, the Trustee and the Owners any claim, remedy or right under or pursuvant hereto, and any

TRUST AGREEMENT
Page 33

P- 88



agreement, condition, covenant or term required herein to be observed or performed by or on behalf of the
District shall be for the sole and exclusive benefit of the Trustee and the Owners.

SECTION 11.2. SUCCESSOR DEEMED INCLUDED IN ALL REFERENCES TO PREDECESSOR

Whenever either the District or the Trustee or any officer thereof is named or referred to herein,
such reference shall be deemed to include the successor to the powers, duties and functions that are
presently vested in the District or the Trustee or such officer, and all agreements, conditions, covenants
and terms required hereby to be observed or performed by or on behalf of the District or the Trustee or
any officer thereof shall bind and inure to the benefit of the respective successors thereof whether so
expressed or not.

SECTION 11.3. EXECUTION OF DOCUMENTS BY OWNERS

Any declaration, request or other instrument which is permitted or required herein to be executed
by Owners may be in one or more instruments of similar tenor and may be executed by Owners in person
or by their attorneys appointed in writing, The fact and date of the execution by any Owner or such
Owner's, attorney of any declaration, request or other instrument or of any writing appointing such
attorney may be proved by the Bond of any notary public or other officer authorized to take
acknowledgments of deeds to be recorded in the state or territory in which he purports to act that the
person signing such declaration, request or other instrument or writing acknowledged to him the
execution thereof, or by an affidavit of a witness of such execution duly sworn to before such notary
public or other officer, or by such other proof as the Trustee may accept which it may deem sufficient.

The ownership of any Bonds and the amount, payment date, number and date of owning the same
may be proved by the books required to be kept by the Trustee pursuant to the provisions of Section 2.8.

Any declaration, request or other instrument in writing of the Owner of any Bond shall bind all
future Owners of such Bond with respect to anything done or suffered to be done by the District or the
Trustee in good faith and in accordance therewith.

SECTION 11.4. DISQUALIFIED BONDS

Bonds owned or held by or for the account of the District (but excluding Bonds held in any
pension or retirement fund) shall not be deemed Outstanding for the purpose of any consent or other
action or any calculation of Outstanding Bonds provided for in this Agreement, and shall not be entitled
to consent to or take any other action provided for in this Agreement.

The Trustee may adopt appropriate regulations to require each Owner of Bonds, before his
consent provided for in this Agreement shall be deemed effective, to reveal if the Bonds as to which such
consent is given are disqualified as provided in this Section.

SECTION 11.5. WAIVER OF PERSONAL LIABILITY

No director, officer or employee of the District shall be individually or personally liable for the
payment of the interest, principal or the prepayment premiums, if any, represented by the Bonds, but
nothing contained herein shall relieve any director, officer or employee of the District or from the
performance of any official duty provided by any applicable provisions of law or by this Agreement.

SECTION 11.6. ACQUISITION OF BONDS BY THE DISTRICT; DESTRUCTION OF BONDS.

All Bonds acquired by the District, whether by purchase or gift or otherwise shall be surrendered
to the Trustee for cancellation. Whenever in this Agreement provision is made for the cancellation by the

TRUST AGREEMENT
Page 34

P. 89



Trustee of any Bonds, the Trustee shall destroy such Bonds and upon written request deliver a Certificate
of such destruction to the District.

SECTION 11.7. HEADINGS

Headings preceding the text of the several Articles and Sections hereof, and the table of contents,
are solely for convenience of reference and shall not constitute a part of this Agreement or affect its
meaning, construction or effect.

All references herein to "Articles," "Sections" and other subdivisions are to the corresponding
Articles, Sections or subdivisions of this Agreement; and the words "herein," "hereof," "hereunder" and
other words of similar import refer to this Agreement as a whole and not to any particular Article, Section
or subdivision hereof.

SECTION 11.8. FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS

Any fund required by this Agreement to be established and maintained by the Trustee may be
established and maintained in the accounting records of the Trustee either as a fund or an account, and
may, for the purposes of such records, any audits thereof and any reports or statements with respect
thereto, be treated either as a fund or as an account; but all such records with respect to all such funds
shall at all times be maintained in accordance with sound industry practices and with due regard for the
protection of the security of the Bonds and the rights of every Owner thereof.

SECTION 11.9. PARTIAL INVALIDITY

If any one or more of the agreements, conditions, covenants or terms required herein to be
observed or performed by or on the part of the District or the Trustee shall be contrary to law, then such
agreement or agreements, such condition or conditions, such covenant or covenants or such term or terms
shall be null and void and shall be deemed separable from the remaining agreements, conditions,
covenants and terms hereof and shall in no way affect the validity hereof or of the Bonds, and the Owners
shall retain all the benefit, protection and security afforded to them under any applicable provisions of
law. The District and the Trustee hereby declare that they would have executed this Agreement, and each
and every other article, section, paragraph, subdivision, sentence, clause and phrase hereof and would
have authorized the execution and delivery of the Bonds pursuant hereto irrespective of the fact that any
one or more articles, sections, paragraphs, subdivisions, sentences, clauses or phrases hereof or the
application thereof to any person or circumstances may be held to be unconstitutional, unenforceable or
invalid.

SECTION 11.10. CALIFORNIA LAW

This agreement shall be construed and governed in accordance with the laws of the state of
California.
SECTION 11.11. NOTICES

All written notices to be given under this Agreement to the parties hereto shall be given by mail,
facsimile transmission or personal delivery to the party entitled thereto at its address set forth below, or at
such address as the party may provide to the other parties in writing from time to time.

TRUST AGREEMENT
Page 35

P

90



P. 91

If to the District: | Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Services District
136 San Juan Road
Watsonville, CA 95076
Attention: General Manager
Facsimile: 831-722-2137
If to the Trustee: U.S. Bank Global Corporate Trust
1 California Street, Suite 1000
San Francisco, CA 94111
(415) 677-3781
Email:

SECTION 11.12. EXECUTION IN COUNTERPARTS

This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an
original, and all of which shall constitute but one and the same instrument.

SECTION 11.13. BUSINESS DAY

When any action is provided for herein to be done on a day named or within a specified time
period, and the day or the last day of the period falls on a day other than a Business Day, such action may
be performed on the next ensuing Business Day with the same effect as though performed on the
appointed day or within the specified period with no interest accruing for the period after such nominal
date.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF#*, the parties have executed and attested this Agreement by their
officers hereunto duly authorized as of the date and year first written above.

U.S. BANK GLOBAL CORPORATE TRUST, as Trustee

By:

Authorized Officer

PAJARO/SUNNY MESA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

By:

President

ATTEST:

Secretary

TRUST AGREEMENT
Page 36



P. 92

TRUST AGREEMENT
Page 37



BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT

by and between

PAJARO/SUNNY MESA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

and

STINSON SECURITIES, LLC.

Relating to

$

PAJARO/SUNNY MESA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
2021 WATER REVENUE BONDS

Dated as of , 2021

Page-1

P

93



$
PAJARO/SUNNY MESA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

2021 WATER REVENUE BONDS

BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT

, 2021

Board of Directors

Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Services District
136 San Juan Road

Watsonville, California 95076

Ladies and Gentlemen:

The undersigned, Stinson Securities’ LLC. (the "Underwriter"), hereby offers to enter into this
Bond Purchase Agreement (the "Purchase Agreement") with you, the Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community
Services District (the "District"), for the purchase by the Underwriter and the execution and delivery to
be caused by you under a Trust Agreement (the "Trust Agreement") dated as of 1, 2021, by and
between the District and U.S. Bank Global Corporate Trust, as Trustee (the "Trustee") of the Bonds
described herein. This offer is made subject to acceptance by the District prior to midnight, California
time, on the date hereof. If this offer is not so accepted, this offer will be subject to withdrawal by the
Underwriter upon notice delivered to the District at any time prior to acceptance. Upon acceptance, this
Purchase Agreement shall be in full force and effect in accordance with its terms and shall be binding

upon the District and the Underwriter.

1. Purchase. Sale and Delivery of the Bonds.

(a) Subject to the terms and conditions and in reliance upon the representations and agreements
hereinafter set forth, the Underwriter hereby agrees to purchase and the District agrees to cause the
Bonds to be executed and delivered to the Trustee who shall authenticate said Bonds and deliver the
same to the Underwriter all (but not less than all) of $ aggregate principal amount of the
Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Services District 2021 Water Revenue Bonds dated the date of delivery
thereof (the "Bonds"), executed and delivered by the Trustee on behalf of the District (i) to fund a
construction fund described in the hereinafter referenced Trust Agreement and the expenses incidental
thereto (including reimbursement for any such costs or expenses paid by it for the account of the
District, including costs and expenses paid by the District prior to the date of closing); (ii) to pay certain
issuance costs and expenses of the Bonds; and (iii) to fund a Reserve Fund. The aggregate purchase

price for the Bonds shall be $ (being the principal amount $ ) less Underwriter's
discount of § , and less an original issue discount of $
BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT

Page 2

P

94



The Bonds shall be substantially in the form described in, and shall be executed,
delivered, and secured under and pursuant to, and shall be payable and subject to redemption, as
provided in the Trust Agreement. The Bonds are more fully described in the Official Statement of the
District dated , 2021, relating to the Bonds (including the cover page and all appendices,
exhibits, and statements thereon or attached thereto being herein called the "Official Statement"). The
Bonds will mature on the dates and in the amounts, and will bear interest at the rates shown in Schedule
1 attached hereto.

A Preliminary Official Statement dated , 2021 (including the cover page and all
appendices, exhibits, and statements thereon or attached thereto being herein called the "Preliminary
Official Statement") has been delivered to the Underwriter in connection with the Bonds. The District
hereby ratifies the use by the Underwriter of the Preliminary Official Statement which the District has
deemed final as of its date within the meaning of Rule 15¢2-12 promulgated under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 by delivering a Bond to the Underwriter substantially in the form of Exhibit A
attached hereto. The District will deliver to the Underwriter, as promptly as practical, but in no event
later than the seventh (7th) Business Day after the District has accepted this Purchase Agreement, such
number of copies of the final Official Statement dated the date hereof (the "Official Statement"), with
respect to the Bonds, as amended and supplemented from time to time pursuant to 20) of this Purchase
Agreement, as the Underwriter may reasonably request in order for the Underwriter to comply with the
rules of the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board and paragraph (b)4 of 17 C.F.R. 240; Rule 15¢2-12.

All resolutions adopted by the Board of Directors for the Bonds (collectively, the
"Resolutions"); the Trust Agreement dated as of , 2021 by and between the District and the
Trustee, this Purchase Agreement, the final Official Statement, the Preliminary Official Statement; the
Continuing Disclosure Agreement of the District, dated as of , 2021 (the "Continuing
Disclosure Agreement"); and the Bonds; are collectively referred to herein as the "Financing
Documents.

(b) At 8:00 a.m., California time, on , 2021, or at such other time or on such other
date as the District and the Underwriter mutually agree upon (the "Closing Date"), the District will cause
the Trustee (the "Trustee") to deliver or cause to be delivered to the Underwriter or its representative,
through the facilities of The Depository Trust Company in New York, New York, the Bonds in book-
entry form duly executed, together with the other documents mentioned herein. The Underwriter will
accept such delivery and pay the purchase price of the Bonds as set forth in subparagraph (a) above by
wire transfer or by certified or official bank check or checks payable in federal funds (such delivery and
payment being herein referred to as the "Closing"), to the order of the District in an amount equal to the
purchase price.

The Underwriter will accept delivery of the Bonds in San Francisco, California through the
facilities of The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York ("DTC"), or such other place as shall
have been mutually agreed upon by the Underwriter and the District, and pay the purchase price of the
Bonds as set forth above, by wire transfer in immediately available funds to the order of the Trustee (or
by such other form of payment in immediately available funds as shall have been mutually agreed upon
by the District and the Underwriter). The Bonds in definitive form shall be evidenced by typewritten,
lithographed or word-processed Bonds in authorized denominations.

The Bonds shall be executed and delivered in fully registered form and shall be prepared and
delivered as one Bond for each maturity, or portion of each maturity, registered in the name of Cede &
Co., as nominee of DTC. It is anticipated that CUSIP identification numbers will be inserted on the
Bonds, but neither the failure to provide such numbers nor any error with respect thereto shall constitute
a cause for failure or refusal by the Underwriter to accept delivery of the Bonds in accordance with the
terms of this Purchase Agreement.

BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT
Page 3

P

95



The Bonds will be made available to the Underwriter for inspection and packaging, at an office
which the District and the Underwriter may mutually agreed upon, not less than 48 hours prior to the
Closing Date. The Bonds shall be delivered as fully registered Bonds in such denominations and
registered in such names as the Underwriter shall request by written notice given to the Trustee not later
than five (5) business days prior to the Closing Date.

(c) The Underwriter agrees to make a bona fide public offering of the Bonds at not in excess
of the initial offering prices (or yields) set forth in the Official Statement, which prices may be changed
from time to time by the Underwriter after such offering. The Underwriter agrees that from the time the
Official Statement becomes available until the earlier of: (i) ninety days from the "End of the
Underwriting Period,” as defined in Section herein, or (ii) the time when the Official Statement is
available to any person from a nationally recognized municipal securities information repository, but in
no case less than 25 days following the end of the underwriting period, the Underwriter shall send, no
later than the next business day following a request for a copy thereof, by first class mail or other equally
prompt means, to any Potential Customer, as defined in the Rule, on request, a single copy of the
Official Statement. The Underwriter agrees to file as soon as reasonably practicable a copy of the
Official Statement with a nationally recognized municipal securities information repository.

The Underwriter agrees to make a bona fide public offering of all the Bonds at not in excess of
the initial public offering prices or yields set forth on the cover page of the Official Statement, plus
interest accrued thercon from the date of the Bonds. The Underwriter reserves the right to make
concessions to dealers and to change such initial public offering prices or yields as the Underwriter
reasonably deems necessary in connection with the marketing of the Bonds. The Underwriter also
reserves the right to: (i) over-allot or effect transactions that stabilizes or maintains the market price of
the Bonds at a level above that which might otherwise prevail in the open market and (ii) discontinue
such stabilizing, if commenced, at any time.

2. Representations. Warranties and Agreement of the District

The District hereby represents and warrants to and agrees with the Underwriter as follows:

(a) The descriptions in the Official Statement of the Financing Documents are accurate; and
the Bonds, when delivered to and paid for by the Underwriter on the Closing Date, will be validly
executed, delivered and outstanding and entitled to all the benefits and security of the Trust Agreement;

(b) The Preliminary Official Statement is (except for any omissions permitted by Rule
15(c)(2)-12 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934), and the Official Statement will be as of the Closing
Date, true, correct, and complete in all material respects and will not, and in the case of the Official
Statement will not as of the Closing Date, contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state
a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements therein, in light of the
circumstances under which they were made, not misleading;

(c) The District is a community services district duly organized and validly existing under
and operating pursuant to the laws of the State of California (the "State") with the full power and
authority to execute and deliver the Official Statement, to sell and deliver the Bonds to the Underwriter
as provided herein, and to enter into and to adopt, as applicable, the Financing Documents including this
Purchase Agreement;

(d) By official action of the District prior to or concurrently with the acceptance hereof, the
District has duly approved the distribution of the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official
Statement, and has duly authorized and approved the execution and delivery of, and the performance by
the District of the obligations on its part contained in, the Financing Documents and this Purchase

BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT
Page 4

P. 96



Agreement and the consummation by it of all other transactions contemplated by the Official Statement
and this Purchase Agreement;

(e) The adoption, execution and delivery of the Financing Documents, including this
Purchase Agreement and the Official Statement, and the District's compliance with the provisions
thereof, will not in any material respect conflict with or constitute a breach of or default under any law,
administrative regulation, judgment, decree, loan agreement, indenture, bond, note, resolution,
agreement, or other instrument to which the District is a party or is otherwise subject, nor will any such
execution, delivery, adoption, or compliance result in the creation or imposition of any lien, charge, or
other security interest or encumbrance of any nature whatsoever upon any of the properties or assets of
the District under the terms of any such law, administrative regulation, judgment, decree, loan
agreement, indenture, bond, note, resolution, agreement, or other instrument, except as provided in the
Financing Documents;

® The District is not in any material respect in breach of or default under any applicable
law or administrative regulation of the State, the United States, or any applicable judgment or decree or
any loan agreement, indenture, bond, note, resolution, agreement, or other instrument to which the
District is a party or is otherwise subject, and no event has occurred and is continuing which, with the
passage of time or the giving of notice, or both, would constitute a default or an event of default under
any such instrument;

(2 There is no action, suit, proceeding, inquiry, or investigation, at law or in equity, before
or by any court, governmental authority, public board or body, pending, or, to the best knowledge of the
District, threatened against the District in any material respect affecting the existence of the District or
the titles of its officers to their respective offices or seeking to prohibit, restrain, or enjoin the sale,
execution, or delivery of the Bonds or the payment of Bond principal and interest or in any way
contesting or affecting the validity or enforceability of the Bonds, the Financing Documents, or this
Purchase Agreement or contesting the powers of the District or its authority to enter into, adopt, or
perform its obligations under any of the foregoing, or contesting in any way the completeness or
accuracy of the Preliminary Official Statement or the Official Statement, or any amendment or
supplement thereto, wherein an unfavorable decision, ruling, or finding could materially adversely affect
the validity or enforceability of the Financing Documents or this Purchase Agreement;

(h) The District will furnish such information, execute such instruments, and take such other
action in cooperation with the Underwriter as the Underwriter may reasonably request in order (i) to
qualify the Bonds for offer and sale under the Blue Sky or other securities law and regulations of such
states and other jurisdictions of the United States as the Underwriter may designate and (ii) to determine
the eligibility of the Bonds for investment under the laws of such states and other jurisdictions, and will
use its best efforts to continue such qualification in effect so long as required for distribution of the
Bonds, provided, however, that in no event shall the District be required to take any action which would
subject it to general or unlimited service of process in any jurisdiction in which it is not now so subject;

(i) For not more than 25 days from the end of the "underwriting period" (as defined in
Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 15¢2-12(e)(2)), if, in the reasonable opinion of Robert M.
Haight ("Bond Counsel") or the Underwriter, an event occurs, of which the District has knowledge,
which might or would cause the information contained in the Official Statement, as then supplemented
or amended, to contain an untrue statement of a material fact or to omit to state a material fact required
to be stated therein or necessary to make such information therein, in light of the circumstances under
which it was presented, not misleading, the District will notify the Underwriter, and, if in the opinion of
the District or the Underwriter, or their counsel, such event requires the preparation and publication of a
supplement or amendment to the Official Statement, the District will cooperate in the preparation of an
amendment or supplement to the Official Statement in a form and manner approved by the Underwriter

BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT
Page 5

B

97



and furnish to the Underwriter a reasonable number of copies of any amendments of or supplements to
the Official Statement (in form and substance satisfactory to the District and the Underwriter, and their
counsel) which will amend or supplement the Official Statement so that it will not contain an untrue
statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary in order to make the statements
therein, in light of the circumstances existing at the time the Official Statement is delivered to a
purchaser, not misleading. For the purposes of this subsection (g), the District will furnish to the
Underwriter such information as it may from time to time request. The District may assume that the
"end of the underwriting period" for purposes of Securities and Exchange Commission 15¢2-12 will
occur on the Closing Date unless otherwise notified, in writing, by the Underwriter on or prior to the
Closing Date

)] If the information contained in the Official Statement is amended or supplemented
pursuant to paragraph (i) hereof, at the time of each supplement or amendment thereto and (unless
subsequently again supplemented or amended pursuant to such paragraph), at all times subsequent
thereto up to and including the Closing Date, the Official Statement so supplemented or amended
(including any financial and statistical data contained therein), will not contain any untrue statement ofa
material fact or omit to state a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make such
information therein, in light of the circumstances under which it was presented, not misleading,

(3] The District's pledge of the Revenues (as defined in the Trust Agreement) for the
payment of Principal and Interest Payments, together with other moneys in the funds and accounts as
specified in the Trust Agreement, constitute the security for the Bonds;

)] Other than as described in the Official Statement, there are no outstanding liens against
any of the revenues of the system which are senior to or on parity with the lien pledge securing the
Bonds;

(m)  The proceedings to issue and deliver the Bonds will create a valid first parity lien pledge
of the Revenues securing the Bonds and in the funds and accounts as provided in the Trust Agreement,
including the investments thereof, subject in all cases to the provisions of the Trust Agreement;

(n) Until such time as moneys have been set aside in an amount sufficient to pay all then
outstanding Bonds at maturity or to the date of redemption if redeemed prior to maturity, plus unpaid
interest thereon and premium, if any, to maturity or to the date of redemption if redeemed prior to
maturity, the District will faithfully perform and abide by all of the covenants, undertakings, and
provisions contained in the Financing Documents; and

(o) The District shall undertake, pursuant to the Trust Agreement and the Continuing
Disclosure Agreement, to provide certain annual financial information and property information,
together with notices of the occurrence of certain events, if material. The District is in compliance with
previous undertakings.

3. Conditions to the Obligations of the Underwriter.

The Underwriter hereby enters into this Purchase Agreement in reliance upon the representations,
warranties, and agreements of the District contained herein, the representations, warranties, and
agreements of the District to be contained in the documents and instruments to be delivered at the
Closing, and the performance by the District and the Trustee of their respective obligations both on and as
of the date hereof and as of the Closing Date. Accordingly, the Underwriter's obligations under this
Purchase Agreement to purchase, to accept the delivery of, and to pay for the Bonds shall be subject, at
the option of the Underwriter, (i) to the accuracy in all material respects of the representations, warranties,
and agreements of the District contained herein as of the date hereof and as of the Closing Date, (ii) to the

BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT
Page 6

P. 98



accuracy in all material respects of the statements of the officers and other officials of the Trustee and the
District made in any Bond or other document furnished pursuant to the provisions hereof, (iii) to the
performance by the District and the Trustee of their respective obligations to be performed hereunder and
under the Financing Documents at or prior to the Closing Date, and (iv) to the following additional
conditions:

(a) The representations, warranties, and agreements of the District contained herein shall be
true, complete, and correct in all material respects on the date hereof and on the Closing Date, as if made
on and at the Closing;

(b) At the Closing, the Financing Documents shall have been duly adopted, authorized,
executed, and delivered by the respective parties thereto, and the Official Statement shall have been duly
authorized, executed, and delivered by the District, all in substantially the forms heretofore submitted to
the Underwriter, with only such changes as shall have been agreed to in writing by the Underwriter, and
shall be in full force and effect; and there shall be in full force and effect such resolution or resolutions of
the District as, in the opinion of Bond Counsel, shall be necessary or appropriate in connection with the
transactions contemplated hereby;

(c) Between the date hereof and the Closing Date, the market price or marketability, at the
initial offering price set forth in the Official Statement, of the Bonds or the market price generally of
obligations of the general character of the Bonds shall not have been materially adversely affected, in the
reasonable judgment of the Underwriter (evidenced by a written notice to the District terminating the
obligation of the Underwriter to accept delivery of and make any payment for the Bonds), by reason of
any of the following statements of fact, regardless of whether the statements of fact were in existence or
known on the date of this Purchase Agreement:

i. Legislation shall have been introduced in or enacted by the Congress of the United
States or enacted by the State or legislation pending in the Congress of the United States
shall have been amended, or legislation shall have been recommended to the Congress
of the United States or otherwise endorsed for passage (by press release, other form of
notice, or otherwise), by the Chair of the United States, the Treasury Department of the
United States the Internal Revenue Service, or the Chair or ranking minority member of
the Committee on Finance of the United States Senate or the Committee on Ways and
Means for the United States House of Representatives, or legislation shall have been
proposed for consideration by either such Committee by any member thereof or
presented as an option for consideration by either such Committee by the staff of such
Committee or by the staff of the Joint Committee on Taxation of the Congress of the
United States, or legislation shall have been favorably reported for passage to either
House of Congress of the United States by a Committee of such House to which such
legislation has been referred for consideration, or a decision shall have been rendered by
a court of the United States or the State, including the Tax Court of the United States, or
a ruling shall have been made or a regulation shall have been proposed or made or a
press release or other form of notice shall have been executed and delivered by the
Treasury Department of the United States, or the Internal Revenue Service, or other
authority of the United States or the State, with respect to taxation by the State upon
revenues or other income of the general character to be derived by the District or by any
similar body, or upon interest on obligations of the general character of the Bonds,
which may have the purpose or effect, directly or indirectly, of affecting the tax status of
the District, its property or income, its securities (including the Bonds), or the interest
thereon, or any tax exemption granted or authorized by legislation of the State;

it. The outbreak or declaration of war, declaration or engagement in a police action or
engagement in major military hostilities by the United States, or any escalation of any

BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT
Page 7

P. 99



existing conflict or hostilities, or the occurrences or any other national emergency or calamity

1L

iv.

vi.

vii.

viii.

relating to the effective operation of the government of or the financial community in
the United States resulting from the foregoing, which, in the reasonable opinion of the
Underwriter, materially adversely affects the market price or the marketability of the
Bonds;

The declaration of a general banking moratorium by federal, New York, or California
authorities, or the general suspension or material limitation of trading on any national
securities exchange, which materially adversely affects the market price of the Bonds;

The imposition by the New York Stock Exchange or other national securities exchange,
or any governmental authority, of any material restrictions not now in force with respect
to the Bonds or obligations of the general character of the Bonds or securities generally,
or the material increase of any such restrictions now in force, including those relating to
the extension of credit by, or the charge to the net capital requirement of, the
Underwriter, which, in the reasonable opinion of the Underwriter, materially adversely
affects the market price of the Bonds;

Legislation enacted (or resolution passed) by, or introduced or pending legislation
amended in the Congress or recommended for passage by the Chair of the United States,
or an order, decree, or injunction executed and delivered by any court of competent
jurisdiction, or an order, ruling, regulation (final, temporary or proposed), or press
release executed and delivered or made by or on behalf of the Securities and Exchange
Commission, or any other governmental District having jurisdiction of the subject
matter, to the effect that obligations of the general character of the Bonds, or the Bonds,
including any or all underlying arrangements, are not exempt from registration under the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or that the Trust Agreement is not exempt from

_ qualification under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended, or that the issuance

and delivery, offering, or sale of obligations of the general character of the Bonds, or of
the Bonds, including any or all underlying arrangements, as contemplated hereby or by
the Official Statement, otherwise is or would be in violation of the federal securities
laws as amended and then in effect; or

Any event occurring, or information becoming known which, in the judgment of the
Underwriter, makes untrue in any material respect any statement or information
contained in the Official Statement, or has the effect that the Official Statement contains
any untrue statement of a material fact or omits to state a material fact required to be
stated therein or necessary in order to make the statements therein, in light of the
circumstances under which they were made, not misleading;

Action by or on behalf of the Treasury Department of the United States or the
Internal Revenue Service or by or on behalf of the State or the California
Franchise Tax Board, with the purpose of changing the federal or State income
tax rates, respectively, which materially adversely affects the market price of the
Bonds;

Any event occurring, or information becoming known which, in the reasonable
judgment of the Underwriter, makes untrue in any material respect any statement or
information contained in the Official Statement, or has the effect that the Official
Statement contains any untrue statement of a material fact or omits to state a material
fact to be stated therein or necessary in order to make the statements therein, in the light
of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading in any material
respect; or

BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT
Page 8

P. 100



(d)

Any change or development involving a prospective change in the condition of the
District, financial or otherwise, or in the operations of the District, from those set forth
in the Official Statement that makes the Bonds, in the reasonable judgment of the
Underwriter, impracticable to market on the terms and in the manner contemplated by
the Official Statement;

At or prior to the Closing Date, the Underwriter shall have received the following

documents, in each case satisfactory in form and substance to the Underwriter:

ii.

iv.

One copy of the Financing Documents, each as duly adopted, executed and delivered by
the respective parties;

The approving opinion, dated the Closing Date and addressed to the District, of Bond
Counsel in substantially the form attached to the Official Statement as Appendix C;

The supplemental opinion, dated the Closing Date and addressed to the Underwriter, of
Bond Counsel, substantially to the effect that (i) the statements contained in the Official
Statement on the cover and under the captions "INTRODUCTION," "THE BONDS,"
"SECURITY FOR THE BONDS," and "LITIGATION," insofar as such statements
purport to summarize certain provisions of the Financing Documents and Federal and
State law, present an accurate summary of such provisions, (ii) the Bonds are exempt
from registration under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and the Trust
Agreement is exempt from qualification under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as
amended, and (iii) the Financing Documents, including this Purchase Agreement, have
been duly adopted, authorized, executed, and delivered, as applicable, by the District
and, assuming due authorization, execution, and delivery by the other parties thereto,
constitute legal, valid, and binding agreements of the District enforceable in accordance
with their respective terms, subject to laws relating to bankruptcy, insolvency, or other
laws affecting the enforcement of creditors' rights generally and the application of
equitable principles if equitable remedies are sought;

The opinion of the District Counsel, dated the Closing Date and addressed to the
Underwriter, to the effect that, with respect to the execution and delivery of the Bonds,
(i) the District was duly organized and is validly existing under the laws of the State as a
community services district, (ii) the District has full legal right, power, and authority (1)
to conduct its affairs and to own its properties, and (2) to execute and deliver this
Purchase Agreement and the Financing Documents to which it is a party, (iii) each of
the Resolutions has been duly adopted by the District, is in full force and effect, and,
except as expressly otherwise provided, has not been amended, modified, or
supplemented, and continues to be legal, valid, and binding Resolutions of the District
enforceable in accordance with their terms, and (iv) the execution and delivery, or
adoption, as applicable, and performance by the District of this Purchase Agreement and
the Financing Documents on the terms and conditions thereof have been duly authorized
by all necessary action, and, to the best of such counsel's knowledge after due inquiry,
will not violate or contravene any order or decree of any court, tribunal, governmental
authority, bureau, or agency, or violate or cause a default under any mortgage, trust
agreement, contract, or other agreement to which the District is a party or that is binding
upon it;

The opinion of Robert M. Haight, Disclosure Counsel ("Disclosure Counsel"), dated the
Closing Date, to the effect that (i) the Bonds are exempt from registration under the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and the Trust Agreement is exempt from
qualification under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended, and (ii) based upon

BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT
Page 9

P. 101



vi.

vii.

viii.

ix.

their participation in the preparation of the Official Statement and without having .
undertaken to determine independently the accuracy or completeness of the statements
in the Official Statement, such counsel does not believe that, as of the date thereof or the
Closing Date, the Official Statement (except for the financial statements and other
financial statistical or engineering data or forecasts, numbers, charts, estimates,
projections, assumptions, or expressions of opinion, any information about assessed
valuation, appraisals, absorption or environmental matters, Appendix A included in the
Official Statement, as to which no view need be expressed) contains any unirue
statement of material fact or omits to state any material fact required to be stated therein
or necessary to make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which
they were made, not misleading;

The opinion of Bond Counsel, dated the Closing Date, to the effect that (i) after due
inquiry and investigation the portion of each payment accruing under the Trust
Agreement designated as and comprising interest and received by the Owners of the
Bonds is excluded under existing statutes, regulations, rulings and court decisions, from
gross income for Federal income tax purposes pursuant to Section 103(a) of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), and is exempt from personal income
taxes of the State of California under present law. In addition, the Bonds are not a
"private activity bond" as defined in Section 141(a) of the Code and, therefore, the
portion of each payment designated as and comprising interest received by the Owners
of the Bonds is not an item of tax preference for purposes of the Code's alternative
minimum tax provisions.

The opinion of the Law Office of Robert M. Haight, Attorney at Law, as Bond Counsel,
in the form and substance set forth in the Official Statement as Appendix C.

The opinion of counsel to the Trustee; dated the Closing Date; to the effect that (i) the
Trustee has been duly organized and is validly existing and in good standing as a
national banking association under the laws of the United States of America, with the
full power and authority to accept and administer the trusts, duties and obligations
imposed on it by the Trust Agreement and to enter into the Trust Agreement; (ii) the
Trustee has duly authorized, executed and delivered the Trustee Documents and the
Trustee Documents constitute the legal, valid and binding obligations of the Trustee
enforceable in accordance with their respective terms, except as the enforcement thereof
may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium or similar laws
or equitable principles relating to or limited by the rights of creditors generally; and (iii)
the Trustee has duly authenticated and delivered the Bonds in accordance with the Trust
Agreement and the direction of the District.

A Bond or Bonds, dated the Closing Date, signed by a duly authorized official of the
District satisfactory to the Underwriter, in form and substance satisfactory to the
Underwriter, to the effect that (i) the representations, warranties, and agreements of the
District contained in this Purchase Agreement are true and correct in all material
respects on and as of the Closing Date with the same effect as if made on the Closing
date, (ii) no litigation is pending or threatened (1) to restrain or enjoin the execution,
sale, or delivery of any of the Bonds, (2) in any way contesting or affecting the validity
of the Bonds, this Purchase Agreement, or the Financing Documents, or (3) in any way
contesting the existence of powers of the District or which if determined adversely to
District would have a material negative financial impact, and (iii) the information in the
Preliminary Official Statement is deemed final by the District as of the date thereof
within the meaning of Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 15¢2-12, and no event
affecting the District has occurred since the date of the Official Statement which either

BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT
Page 10

P. 102



xi.

xii.

xiii.

xiv.

XV.

xvi,

Xvii.

xviii.

Xix.

XX.

If the conditions to the Underwriter's obligations contained in this Purchase Agreement are not
satisfied or if the Underwriter's obligations shall be terminated for any reason permitted herein, all
obligations of the Underwriter hereunder may be terminated at, or at any time prior to, the Closing Date

makes untrue or incorrect in any material respect as of the Closing Date any statement
or information contained in the Official Statement or is not reflected in the Official
Statement but should be reflected therein in order to make the statements and
information therein not misleading in any material respect;

A certificate, dated as of the Closing Date, signed by a duly authorized official of the
Trustee, satisfactory in form and substance to the Underwriter, to the effect that (i) such
official is an authorized officer of the Trustee; (ii) the Trustee has been appointed to
serve as Trustee for the Bonds under the Trust Agreement; (iii) the Trustee has full
power and authority required to carry out the trust intended under the Trust Agreement;
(iv) to the best of such officer's knowledge, no litigation is pending or threatened in any
way contesting or affecting the existence of powers (including trust powers) of the
Trustee or the Trustee's ability to fulfill its duties created by the Trust Agreement; and
(v) to the best of such officer's knowledge, the acceptance by the Trustee of the duties
and obligations of the Trustee under the Trust Agreement and compliance with the
provisions thereof will not conflict with or constitute a breach of or default under any
law or administrative regulation to which the Trustee is subject;

A Bond, dated the Closing Date and signed by an authorized officer of the Trustee, with
respect to the sources and uses of funds deposited under the Trust Agreement;

A certified copy of the general resolution of the Trustee authorizing the execution and
delivery of any Financing Documents to which the Trustee is a party;

A copy of the Official Statement, executed on behalf of the District by an authorized
representative of the District;

A certified copy of each of the Resolutions;

A copy of Internal Revenue Service Form 8038-G, executed by an authorized officer of
the District;

Such additional legal opinions, Bonds, proceedings, instruments, and other documents
as the Underwriter or Bond Counsel may reasonably request to evidence the tisuth and
accuracy, as of the date hereof and as of the Closing Date, of the representations,
warranties, and agreements of the District herein and of the statements and information
contained in the Official Statement, and the due performance or satisfaction by the
Trustee and the District at or prior to the Closing of all agreements then to be performed
and all conditions then to be satisfied by any of them in connection with the transactions
contemplated hereby and by the Financing Documents;

DTC Letter of Representations, if required;

California Debt Investment and Advisory Commission Report of Proposed Debt
Execution and delivery form; and

California Debt Investment and Advisory Commission Report of Final Sale form.

Continuing Disclosure Undertaking,.

by written notice to the District.

BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT
Page 11

P. 103



4. Indemnification of the Underwriter

The Issuer agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Underwriters, and each person, if any, who
controls an Underwriter, and their directors, officers, agents and employees, against any and all losses,
claims, damages, liabilities and expenses to which the Underwriters may become subject, insofar as
such losses, claims, damages, liabilities or expenses (or actions in respect thereof), arise out of or are
based upon(i) a claim in connection with the public offering of the Securities to the effect that the
Securities or any related security are required to be registered under the Securities Act or any indenture
is required to be qualified under the Trust Indenture Act, or (ii) any statement or information in the
Preliminary Official Statement or in the Official Statement that is or is alleged to be untrue or incorrect
in any material respect, or any omission or alleged omission of any statement or information in the
Preliminary Official Statement or the Official Statement (other than in the Excluded Sections) which is
necessary in order to make the statements therein not misleading. The foregoing indemnity agreement
shall be in addition to any liability that the Issuer otherwise may have.

5. Expenses.

All expenses and costs incident to the authorization, execution, delivery, and sale of the Bonds to
the Underwriter, including the costs of printing and preparation of the Bonds, the Preliminary Official
Statement, and the Official Statement, the cost of duplicating the Financing Documents, the fees of
accountants, legal and other consultants, engineers, appraisers, and rating agencies, if any, the initial fee
of the Trustee and its counsel in connection with the sale of the Bonds, the fees and expenses of Bond
Counsel, Disclosure Counsel, Underwriter's counsel, and counsel for the District, shall be paid by the
District from moneys deposited with the Trustee from Bond proceeds specifically authorized for such
purpose

6. Notices.
Any notice or other communication to be given to the District or the Underwriter under this

Purchase Agreement may be given by delivering the same in writing to the respective party at the
following address.

Underwriter: Stinson Securities, LLC.
220 Sansome Street, Suite 1330
San Francisco, CA 94104
District: Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Services District

136 San Juan Road
Watsonville, California 95076

7. Survival of Representations

The representations of the District set forth in or made pursuant to this Purchase Agreement. shall not
be deemed to have been discharged, satisfied, or otherwise rendered void by reason of the Closing or
termination of this Purchase Agreement and regardless of any investigations or statements as to the results
thereof made by or on behalf of the Underwriter and regardless of delivery of and payment for the Bonds.

8. Effectiveness: Applicable Law

This Purchase Agreement shall become effective and binding upon the respective parties hereto as of
the date first above written upon the execution of the acceptance by a duly authorized officer of the District

BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT
Page 12

P. 104



and shall be Valid and enforceable as of the time of such acceptance. This Purchase Agreement shall be
governed by the laws of the State of California,

9, Counterparts.

This Purchase Agreement may be executed by the parties hereto in separate counterparts, each of
which when so executed and delivered shall be an original, but. all such counterparts shall together constitute
but one and the same instrument,

Very truly yours,

STINSON SECURITIES, LLC.

By:

PAJARO/SUNNY MESA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

By:

BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT
Page 13

P. 105



CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT

by and among

NBS GOVERNMENT FINANCE GROUP

and

PAJARO/SUNNY MESA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

Relating to

$
PAJARO/SUNNY MESA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

2021 WATER REVENUE BONDS

P. 106



CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT

This Continuing Disclosure Agreement (the "Disclosure Agreement"), dated as of this 1* day of
, 2021, is executed and delivered by the Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Services District (the
"Issuer'), acting on behalf of the 2021 Water Revenue Bonds and NBS GOVERNMENT FINANCE
GROUP (the "Dissemination Agent"), in connection with the execution and delivery of the 2021 Water
Revenue Bonds of the Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Services District (the "Bonds"), acting
hereunder in its capacity as Dissemination Agent. The Bonds are being issued pursvant to Trust
Agreement approved by the Board of Directors of the Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Services District
on , 2021 (the "Agreement"). The Issuer and the Dissemination Agent covenant and agree as
follow:

SECTION 1. Definitions. In addition to the definitions set forth in the Trust Agreement, which
apply to any capitalized term used in this Disclosure Agreement, unless otherwise defined in this
Section 1, the following capitalized terms shall have the following meanings when used in this
Disclosure Agreement:

"Annual Report" shall mean any Annual Report provided by the Issuer pursuant to, and as
described in, Sections 3 and 4 of this Disclosure Agreement. '

"Beneficial Owner" shall mean any person who (a) has the power, directly or indirectly, to vote
or consent with respect to, or to dispose of ownership of, any Bonds (including persons holding Bonds
through nominees, depositories or other intermediaries), or (b) is treated as the owner of any Bonds for
federal income tax purposes.

"Dissemination Agent" shall mean NBS Government Finance Group or any successor
Dissemination Agent designated in writing by the District and which has filed with the District a
written acceptance of such designation. In the absence of such a designation, the District shall act as the
Dissemination Agent.

"EMMA" or "Electronic Municipal Market Access" means the centralized on-line repository
for documents to be filed with the MSRB, such as official statements and disclosure information
relating to municipal bonds, notes and other securities as issued by state and local governments.

"Listed Events" shall mean any of the events listed in Section 5(a) or 5(b) of this Disclosure
Agreement.

"MSRB" means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board, which has been designated by the
Securities and Exchange Commission as the sole repository of disclosure information for purposes of
the Rule, or any other repository of disclosure information which may be designated by the Securities
and Exchange Commission as such for purposes of the Rule in the future.

"Owner" or "Bond Owner, " when used with respect to any Bond, means the person in whose
name the ownership of such Bond shall be registered.

"Participating Underwriter" shall mean the original underwriter of the Bonds, required to
comply with the Rule in connection with offering of the Bonds.

"Rule" shall mean Rule 15¢2-12 adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission under
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as the same may be amended from time to time.

SECTION 2. Purpose of the Disclosure Agreement. This Disclosure Agreement is being
executed and delivered by the District for the benefit of the owners and Beneficial Owners of the Bonds
and in order to assist the Participating Underwriter in complying with Securities and Exchange
Commission Rule 15¢2-12(b )(5).

P. 107



SECTION 3. Provision of Annual Reports

(a)  Delivery of Annual Report. The District shall, or shall cause the Dissemination Agent to,
not later than seven months after the end of the District's fiscal year (which currently ends on June 30),
commencing with the report for the 2021-22 Fiscal Year, which is due not later than January 31, 2022,
file with EMMA, in a readable PDF or other electronic format as prescribed by the MSRB, an Annual
Report that is consistent with the requirements of Section 4 of this Disclosure Agreement. The Annual
Report may be submitted as a single document or as separate documents comprising a package and may
cross-reference other information as provided in Section 4 of this Disclosure Agreement; provided that
the audited financial statements of the District may be submitted separately from the balance of the
Annual Report and later than the date required above for the filing of the Annual Report if they are not
available by that date.

(b)  Change of Fiscal Year. If the District's fiscal year changes, it shall give notice of such
change in the same manner as for a Listed Event under Section 5(c), and subsequent Annual Report
filings shall be made no later than seven months after the end of such new fiscal year end.

(¢)  Delivery of Annual Report to Dissemination Agent. Not later than fifteen (15) Business
Days prior to the date specified in subsection (a) (or, if applicable, subsection (b) of this Section 3 for
providing the Annual Report to EMMA, the District shall provide the Annual Report to the
Dissemination Agent (if other than the District). If by such date, the Dissemination Agent has not
received a copy of the Annual Report, the Dissemination Agent shall notify the District.

(d)  Report of Non-Compliance. If the District is the Dissemination Agent and is unable to
file an Annual Report by the date required in subsection (a) (or, if applicable, subsection (b) of this
Section 3, the District shall send a notice to EMMA substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit
A. If the District is not the Dissemination Agent and is unable to provide an Annual Report to the
Dissemination Agent by the date required in subsection (c) of this Section 3, the Dissemination Agent
shall send a notice to EMMA in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit A.

(¢)  Annual Compliance Certification. The Dissemination Agent shall, if the Dissemination
Agent is other than the District, file a report with the District certifying that the Annual Report has been
filed with EMMA pursuant to Section 3 of this Disclosure Agreement, stating the date it was so provided
and filed.

SECTION 4. Content of Annual Report. The Annual Report shall contain or incorporate by
reference the following;

(a) Financial Statements. Audited financial statements of the District for the preceding fiscal
year, prepared in accordance generally accepted accounting principles. If the District's audited financial
statements are not available by the time the Annual Report is required to be filed pursuant to Section
3(a), the Annual Report shall contain unaudited financial statements in a format similar to the financial
statements contained in the final Official Statement, and the audited financial statements shall be filed in
the same manner as the Annual Report when they become available,

©®) Other Annual Information. To the extent not included in the audited final statements of
the District, the Annual Report shall also include financial and operating data with respect to the District
for the preceding fiscal year, substantially similar to that provided in the tables in the official statement
for the Bonds under the heading "TABLE 6-HISTORIC WATER REVENUE" and "TABLE 7-
PROJECTED WATER REVENUE.'

P. 108



(©) Cross References. Any or all of the items listed above may be included by
specific reference to other documents, including official statements of debt issues of the District
or related public entities, which are available to the public on EMMA. The District shall clearly
identify each such other document so included by reference. If the document included by reference
is a final official statement, it must be available from EMMA.

(d) Further Information. In addition to any of the information expressly required to be
provided under paragraph (b) of this Section 4, the District shall provide such further information, if any,
as may be necessary to make the specifically required statements, in the light of the circumstances under
which they are made, not misleading.

SECTION 5. Reporting of Listed Events.

(a) Reportable Events. The District shall, or shall cause the Dissemination (if not the
District) to, give notice of the occurrence of any of the following events with respect to the Bonds:

(D
@
©)
4)
()
(6)
(D
®
®

Principal and interest payment delinquencies;

Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties;
Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties;
Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform;

Defeasances;

Rating changes;

Tender offers;

Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the obligated person; and
Adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of proposed or
final determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-TEB)
or other material notices or determinations with respect to the tax status of the
security, or other material events affecting the tax status of the security.

NOTE: For the purposes of the event identified in subparagraph (8), the event is
considered to occur when any of the following occur: the appointment of a receiver, trustee or
similar officer for an obligated person in a proceeding under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code or in any
other proceeding under state or federal law in which a court or governmental authority has
assumed jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of the obligated person, or if
such jurisdiction has been assumed by leaving the existing governmental body and officials or
officers in possession but subject to the supervision and orders of a court or governmental
authority, or the entry of an order confirming a plan of reorganization, arrangement or liquidation
by a court or governmental authority having supervision or jurisdiction over substantially all of
the assets or business of the obligated person.

(b)  Material Reportable Events. The District shall give, or cause to be given, notice of the
occurrence of any of the following events with respect to the Bonds, if material:

(M
@
3
4)
)

Non-payment related defaults;

Modifications to rights of security holders;

Bond calls;

The release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the securities;
The consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving an obligated
person or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the obligated person,

P. 109



other than in the ordinary course of business, the entry into a definitive agreement to
undertake such an action or the termination of a definitive agreement relating to
any such actions, other than pursuant to its terms; and

(6) Appointment of a successor or additional trustee, or the change of name of a trustee.

(c) Time to Disclose. Whenever the District obtains knowledge of the occurrence of a
Listed Event, the District shall, or shall cause the Dissemination Agent (if not the District) to, file a
notice of such occurrence with EMMA, in an electronic format as prescribed by the MSRB, in a timely
manner not in excess of 10 business days after the occurrence of the Listed Event. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, notice of Listed Events described in subsections (a)(5) and (b)(3) above need not be given
under this subsection any earlier than the notice (if any) of the underlying event is given to owners of
affected Bonds under the Trust Agreement.

SECTION 6. Identifying Information for Filings with EMMA. All documents provided to
EMMA under this Disclosure Agreement shall be accompanied by identifying information as prescribed
by the MSRB.

SECTION 7. Termination of Reporting Obligation. The District's obligations under this
Disclosure Agreement shall terminate upon the defeasance, prior redemption or payment in full of all of
the Bonds. If such termination occurs prior to the final maturity of the Bonds, the District shall give
notice of such termination in the same manner as for a Listed Event under Section 5(c).

SECTION 8. Dissemination Agent.

(a) Appointment of Dissemination Agent. The District may, from time to time, appoint or
engage a Dissemination Agent to assist it in carrying out its obligations under this Disclosure Agreement
and may discharge any such agent, with or without appointing a successor Dissemination Agent. If the
Dissemination Agent is not the District, the Dissemination Agent shall not be responsible in any manner
for the content of any notice or report prepared by the District pursuant to this Disclosure Agreement. It
is understood and agreed that any information that the Dissemination Agent may be instructed to file
with EMMA shall be prepared and provided to it by the District. The Dissemination Agent has
undertaken no responsibility with respect to the content of any reports, notices or disclosures provided to

_it under this Disclosure Agreement and have no liability to any person, including any Owner, with
respect to any such reports, notices or disclosures. The fact that the Dissemination Agent or any affiliate
thereof may have any fiduciary or banking relationship with the District shall not be construed to mean
that the Dissemination Agent has actual knowledge of any event or condition, except as may be provided
by written notice from the District.

(b) Compensation of Dissemination Agent. The Dissemination Agent shall be paid
compensation by the District for its services provided hereunder in accordance with its schedule of fees
as agreed to between the Dissemination Agent and the District from time to time and all expenses, legal
fees and expenses and advances made or incurred by the Dissemination Agent in the performance of its
duties hereunder. The Dissemination Agent shall not be deemed to be acting in any fiduciary capacity for
the District, owners or Beneficial Owners, or any other party. The Dissemination Agent may rely, and
shall be protected in acting or refraining from acting, upon any direction from the District or an
opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel. The Dissemination Agent may at any time resign by
giving written notice of such resignation to the Disfrict. The Dissemination Agent shall not be liable
hereunder except for its negligence or willful misconduct.

P. 110



(c) Responsibilities of Dissemination Agent. In addition of the filing obligations of the
Dissemination Agent set forth in Sections 3(e) and 5, the Dissemination Agent shall be obligated, and
hereby agrees, to provide a request to the District to compile the information required for its Annual
Report at least 30 days prior to the date such information is to be provided to the Dissemination Agent
pursuant to subsection (c) of Section 3. The failure to provide or receive any such request shall not affect
the obligations of the District under Section 3.

SECTION 9. Amendment: Waiver. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Disclosure
Agreement, the District may amend this Disclosure Agreement (and the Dissemination Agent shall agree
to any amendment so requested by the District that does not impose any greater duties or risk of liability
on the Dissemination Agent), and any provision of this Disclosure Agreement may be waived, provided
that all of the following conditions are satisfied:

(a) Change in Circumstances. If the amendment or waiver relates to the provisions
of Sections 3(a), 4 or 5 (a) or (b), it may only be made in connection with a change in ,
circumstances that arises from a change in legal requirements, change in law, or change in the
identity, nature, or status of an obligated person with respect to the Bonds, or the type of
business conducted.

(b)  Compliance as of Issue Date. The undertaking, as amended or taking into
account such waiver, would, in the opinion of a nationally recognized bond counsel, have
complied with the requirements of the Rule at the time of the original issuance of the Bonds,
after taking into account any amendments or interpretations of the Rule, as well as any change
in circumstances.

(c) Consent of Owners; Non-impairment Opinion. The amendment or waiver either
(i) is approved by the Owners in the same manner as provided in the Agreement for
amendments to the Agreement with the consent of Owners, or (ii) does not, in the opinion of
nationally recognized bond counsel, materially impair the interests of the Owners or Beneficial
Owners.

If this Disclosure Agreement is amended or any provision of this Disclosure Agreement
is waived, the District shall describe such amendment or waiver in the next following Annual
Report and shall include, as applicable, a narrative explanation of the reason for the
amendment or waiver and its impact on the type (or in the case of a change of accounting
principles, or. the presentation) of financial information or operating data being presented by
the District. In addition, if the amendment relates tb the accounting principles ta be followed in
preparing financial statements (i) notice of such change shall be given in the same manner as
for a Listed Event under Section SCC). and (ii) the Annual Report for the. year in which the
change is made should present a comparison (in narrative form and also, if feasible, in
quantitative form) between the financial statements as prepared on the basis of the new
accounting principles and those prepared on the basis of the former accounting principles.

SECTION 10. Additional Information. Nothing in this Disclosure Agreement shall be
deemed to prevent the District from disseminating any other information, using the means
of dissemination set forth in this Disclosure Agreement or any other means of
communication or including any other information in any Annual Report or notice of

P. 111



occurrence of a Listed Event in addition to that which is required by this Disclosure
Agreement. If the District chooses to include any information in any Annual Report or
notice of occurrence of a Listed Event, in addition to that which is specifically required by
this Disclosure Agreement the District shall have no obligation under this Disclosure
Agreement to update such information or include it in any future Annual Report or notice
of occurrence of a Listed Event.

SECTION 11. Default. In the event of a failure of the District to comply with any
provision of this Disclosure Agreement any Owner or Beneficial Owner may take such
actions as may be necessary and appropriate, including seeking mandate or specific
performance by court order, to cause the District to comply with its obligations under this
Disclosure Agreement. The sole remedy under this Disclosure Agreement in the event of
any failure of the District to comply with this Disclosure Agreement shall be an action to
compel performance,

SECTION 12. Notices should be sent in writing to the following addresses. The
following information may be conclusively relied upon until changed in writing.

Dissemination Agent: NBS Government Finance Group
32605 Temecula Parkway, STE 100 Temecula
California 92592
1 (800) 676-7516
Email: disclosure@nbsgov.com

District: Pajaro/Sunny Mesa CSD
136 San Juan Road, Watsonville California 95076
Main: (831) 722-1389
Fax: (831) 722-0137

Dated: , 2021

PAJARO/SUNNY MESA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

Don Rosa, General Manager

NBS GOVERNMENT FINANCE GROUP.

Director

P. 112



EXHIBIT A

NOTICE TO REPOSITORIES OF FAILURE TO FILE ANNUAL
REPORT

Name of Obligor: PAJARO/SUNNY MESA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

Name of Obligation: 2021 WATER REVENUE BONDS

Date of Execution and Delivery: , 2021

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the District has not provided an Annual Report with respect
to the above named Bonds as required by the Continuing Disclosure Agreement approved
pursuant to a Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of the District on s 2021,
The District anticipates that the Annual Report will be filed by :

Dated: By

PAJARO/SUNNY MESA
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

P. 113



Law Office of

ROBERT M. HAIGHT
120 Jewell Street
Santa Cruz, CA 95060
rmhaighti@rmhaightlaw.com
831-239-8068

June 24, 2021

Board of Directors

Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Service District
136 San Juan Road

Royal Oaks, California 95076

Re: Fee Arrangement for 2021 Water Revenue Bonds
Dear Honorable Board of Directors:

I am forwarding to you or form of agreement to conduct Water Revenue bond financing proceedings that
are presently being contemplated by your Board (the “2021 Water Revenue Bonds™).

Upon the execution and delivery of 2021 Water Revenue Bonds, we agree to represent and serve you as
herein provided:

1. Consult with you and your staff in order to provide a coordinated financial and legal program for
the proposed proceeding,

2. Attend all meetings of the Board of Directors or other bodies relating to the proceedings
including, at your request, all informal meetings to explain the proposed proceedings, and such
other meetings of the Board of Directors when called upon by you.

3. Prepare all agreements, certificates, resolutions, orders, notices and affidavits necessary in the
conduct of said proceedings and such other reports, documents and correspondence of a legal
nature as may be necessary. During the course of the proceedings, advise your staff by telephone,
correspondence or conference as to legal questions involving the District and relating to said
proceedings.

4. Provide and opinion regarding the legal sufficiency of the proceedings.

5. Prepare a Preliminary Official Statement and Final Official Statement to be used by the
Underwriter to describe the Project.

For those services as set forth above in Sections 1 through 4, inclusive, our fees shall be the sum of
$35,000 plus expenses not to exceed $2,500 based upon the District executing and delivering not to

exceed $2,000,000 of 2021 Water Revenue Bonds. Expenses include telephone, facsimile, express mail or

UPS delivery, travel at $0.32 per mile, lodging and meals (if overnight stay is required), copying costs at
$0.25 per page, and transcript preparation and supplies. Services in representing the District in any
litigation is not included in our fee.

For those services as set forth above in Section 5, our fee shall be the sum of $25,000 plus expenses not to
exceed $2,500.

P. 114




Law Office of
ROBERT M. HAIGHT
120 Jewell Street
Santa Cruz, CA 95060

rmhaight@rmhaightlaw.com
831-239-8068

Our fees shall be paid only if the 2021 Water Revenue Bonds are executed and delivered and not
otherwise. If proceedings are terminated for any reason by your Board at any time prior to said delivery,
then our fees shall not be due or payable.

Very truly yours,

ROBERT M. HAIGHT

The foregoing agreement was accepted by the Board of Directors of the Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community
Service District at a meeting thereof held on the 24" day of June 2021.

Board President

P.115




Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Services District
RESOLUTION NO. 06-03-21

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
PAJARO/SUNNY MESA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
APPROVING, AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING EXECUTION OF
AGREEMENTS AND APPROVAL OF DOCUMENTS IN CONNECTION WITH
THE 2021 WATER REVENUE BONDS AND AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING
CERTAIN ACTIONS WITH RESPECT THERETO

2021 WATER REVENUE BONDS

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors (the "Board") of the Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community
Services District (the "District") proposes to fund the District's 2021 Project , fund a reserve fund
and pay related costs of issuance in the total principal amount of not to exceed $2,000,000 and at
an average coupon rate of not to exceed 4.00% (the "Bonds") (the "Project") and it is in the public
benefit that the Board authorize and direct execution of certain financing documents in connection
therewith;

WHEREAS, the documents below specified have been filed with the District, and the
members of the Board with the aid of its staff, have reviewed said documents.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Pajaro/Sunny
Mesa Community Services District that:

1. The below-enumerated documents are hereby approved, and the President, Vice
President, General Manager, Operations Manager or District Treasurer is hereby authorized and
directed to execute said documents with such changes, insertions and deletions as may be approved
by such official, and the District Secretary is hereby authorized and directed to attest her signature
thereto.

a) the Trust Agreement by and between the District and U.S. Bank Global Corporate Trust
as Trustee;

b) the Bond Purchase Agreement by and between the District and the Underwriter; and

¢) the Continuing Disclosure Agreement by and between NBS Government Finance Group
and the District;

2. The District hereby authorizes the execution of the Indenture of Trust Agreement, the
Bond Purchase Agreement and the Continuing Disclosure Agreement in substantially the form on
file with the District Secretary together with any additions thereto or changes therein approved by
either the General Manager, Operations Manager or the District Treasurer, whose execution
thereof shall be conclusive evidence of such approval, and hereby delegates to the General
Manager, the Operations

P.116



Manager and the District Treasurer, the authority to execute such documents as may be
required for and in the name and on behalf of the District.

The foregoing Resolution was introduced, passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the
Board of Directors of the Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Services District held on the 24 day of
June 2021, by the following vote:

AYES: DIRECTORS:
NOES: DIRECTORS:
ABSENT: DIRECTORS:

APPROVED:

Sanford Coplin President,
Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Services District

ATTEST:

District Secretary,
Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Services District

1, DON ROSA, HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE FOREGOING IS A FULL, CORRECT, AND
TRUE COPY OF RESOLUTION NO. 06-03-21 AS ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS OF THE PAJARO/SUNNY MESA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT, AT
A REGULAR MEETING HELD ON JUNE 24, 2021, AND 1 FURTHER CERTIFY THAT
SAID RESOLUTION HAS NEVER BEEN RESCINDED OR MODIFIED.

DATED: JUNE 24, 2021

DISTRICT SECRETARY

P. 112



STREET MAINTENANCE / SUBDIVISION MAINTENANCE
CONTRACT OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE

FINAL BUDGET

2021-2022

REVENUE

Parcel Assessments through Monterey County Tax Roll

EXPENSE

Monies held in restricted Acct. for street sealing and repairs
Fees for service paid to vendors
Contract fees paid to District

Total Expense

REVENUE

EXPENSE

Notes: Restricted bank account balance as of 5-19-21 is $220,842.12

Monies are held for the following subdivisions:

Stone Ridge Estates, Fair Way, Paris Ct, Rose Ct., Heritage Cr., Golf Cr., Colonial Cr.

63,800

63,800

63,800

District provides services to the seven subdivisions, such as, street maintenance, storm drain

maintenance, landscape maintenance, banking, and bill payments to vendors.

District provides the assessment information to Mo. Co., annually, per data bond capture review.

District charges actual cost of $31,150 to perform these services.

P. 118



PAJARO COMMUNITY PARKS/PUBLIC AREAS
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE BUDGET

Final Budget
2021-2022

REVENUE
(1% Special District Tax-Assessed/ collected by Mo. Co.)

EXPENSE

Tot-Lot (Cayetano Park-Florence @ Cayetano) 2.0 hrs./week
Berlanga Park (Stender Ave.) 1.25 hrs./week
Memorial Park (Salinas Rd. @ Stender Ave.) 1.25 hrs./week
Monument Park (Porter Dr. @ San Juan Rd.) 1.25 hrs./week
Misc.(Pajaro Sign maintenance, curb painting, graffiti .25 hrs/week
Total Labor 4.75 hrs./week

(4.75 hrs./week X 40 wks. X $100./hr)

Groundskeepi_ng Materials and Supplies
Total Expense

REVENUE
EXPENSE

2021-2022

25,000

8,000

5,000

5,000

5,000

1,000

24,000

1,000

25,000

25,000

25,000

Notes: Pro-Rata Tax Assessment (1% Special District Tax) is projected at $25000

for this fiscal year.

P.119



PAJARO STREET LIGHTING ASSESMENT

2021-2022
Final Budget

REVENUE

Parcel Assessments

EXPENSE

Utilities (PG&E)

Maintenance & Administration

Professional Services (Legal & Accounting)

REVENUE
EXPENSE

No Change to budget this year.

2021-2022

41,100.00

28,000.00
12,000.00
1,100.00

41,100.00

41,100.00
41,100.00

0

P.120



Pajaro Park Final Budget
2021-2022

Personnel Costs
Management & Administration
Park Labor

TOTAL PERSONNEL.:

Operating Costs

Sewer

Garbage Service

Electricity - Lights/Special Events - Phone
Alarm Service

Janitorial Supplies

Office Supplies

Building & Grounds Materials

Other Supplies & Materials

Pajaro Water Bond and Property Tax
Gate closing (Security Patrol)

TOTAL OPERATING:
Reserve

ANNUAL OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE

2021-2022

3,000
32,000

35,000

360
4,200
4,200

350
4,200

360
1,500

2,600
6,000

23,770

$ 58,770

P. 121



2021-2022
NOTES TO BUDGET P. 122

Account No: Account Name: Description
Income:
4001-4015 ([Water Rate Revenue

Projected increase of 15% over 2020-2021 actual (thru May)

4110 Hydrant Sales
Increased budget amount, based on consistently higher sales

4140 Connection Fees 2 known connections to be added this year
4350 Interest Revenue Decreased due to re-classification

Expenses: Indirect
5000 Salaries and Wages Increase represents an hourly increase to all employees

based on compensation schedule, approximately 3.8%
average, increased overtime and vacation pay-out
projections, integration of contract labor ($24,000),

5010 Contract Labor Eliminated contract labor, and integrated into salaries and
wages. Determined that we do not necessarily meet the
criteria of "contract labor". Impact: nominal increase in
workers comp., much easier to handle through regular

payroll.
5050 Employee Health Insurance Slight increase expected this year
5070 Employee Retirement Increase follows wages
5140 Building Repair & Maintenance |Decrease: Last year included office exterior paint. ($7000)
5145 District Wide Repair & Maint. Decrease: Last year included security cameras ($4000)
5180 Casualty/Liability Insurance Projected 6.5% increase in premium
5250 Legal Expenses Budget decrease, returning to normal, general business
5260 Accounting & Bookkeeping Slight increase to annual audit expected this year
5266 Engineering Expense Includes Cal OES grant match amount $37,500
Expenses:
Direct
5190 Soil and Water Testing Slightly higher sampling quantity due this year
5325 Permits Anticipation of new generator permits
5360 Fuel-Generator Fuel for new generators
Debt Service
Bond Payments-Generators $97000. Principal and interest
All bonds and Re-Org Loan $283,800/year, $23,650/month

Capital Reserve

[Add to Capital Reserve $150,000 | Expenditures- $116,750
Operating Reserve
]Add surlus funds, end of year




2021-2022

Final Budget
Income 2021-2022

4001| Route 1 |Pajaro 321,000
4002| Route 2 [Pajaro 315,000
4003| Route 3 |Commercial (Pajaro) 292,000
4004| Route 4 |Trailer Park (Pajaro) 16,000
4005| Route 5 |San Juan Apts 13,500
4006| Route 6 [Sunny Mesa 160,000
4007| Route 7 |C.S.A. 73 Hillcrest/Bay Farms 173,000
4008| Route 8 |Vega/Vista Verde 182,000
4010| Route 10 |Springfield 10,200
4011| Route 11 |Moss Landing 310,000
4012 Route 12 |Blackie Road 40,200
4013| Route 13 [Normco 391,000
4014| Route 14 |Vierra Estates 60,700
4015 Route 15 [Langley/Valle Pacifico 37,500
Water Services SubTotal 2,322,100
4100 Late Payment Penalties 5,000
4101 Billing Adjustments 200
4110 Hydrant Sales 10,000
4115 Test Fees (Cross Conn-Yearly-Pajaro) 7,500
4140 Connection Fees/Capacity Fees 7,400
4141 Application Fees 550
4146 Other Fees 400
iStreet Maintenance-Reimbursement 63,800
Vega Bond Assessments 289,000
\Pro Rata Tax Collection 25,000
4285 PVWMA Collection Fee 29,000
4300 Collection Previous w/o account 250
4305 Miscellaneous Revenue 1,000
4340 Utility Reimbursement 28,000
4341 Lighting Admin Reimbursement 12,000

4345 Customer Reimbursements
4346 District 25% Overhead Fee 500
150
4355 Audit/Bookkeeping Re-imbursement 700
4360 Legal Counsel Reimbursement 400
5794 \Pajaro Water Bond 40,500
Other Subtotal 521,350
Total Income 2,843,450

P. 123



2021-2022

Final Budget

Expenses INDIRECT 2020-2021
5000 Salaries and Wages 830,000
5005 Administative Fees 6,000

5010 Contract Labor -
5030 Payroll Tax Expense 16,000
5040 Workers Comp Insurance 20,000
5050 Employee Health Insurance 190,000
5070 Employee Retirement 120,000
5090 Other Employee Expense 3,000
5120 Property Taxes 1,500
5130 Utilities - Office 4,000
5140 Building Repair & Maintenance 7,500
5145 District Wide Repair & Maint 12,000
5150 Garbage Service 4,200
5160 Office Equipment Rental 10,000
5165 Computer Software 10,000
5170 Office Equipment Repair & Maint 3,600
51756 Small Tools - Repair & Maint. 1,000
5180 Casulty Insurance/Liability Insurance 33,000
5200 Billing Supplies 3,700
5240 Office Supplies 3,800
5245 Postage 8,500
5250 Legal Expenses 20,000
' Interest Expense Re Org Loan 11,300
Interest Exp-Financed ltems' 4,000
5260 Accounting & Bookkeeping 38,500
5266 Engineering Expense District Wide 38,500
5270 Automotive - Repair & Maint 10,000
5280 Seminars & Conferences 500
5290 Travel Expenses 500
5300 Books & Subscriptions 1,500
5305 Water Conservation Program 3,000
5320 Membership Fees & Dues 20,000
5326 Licenses and Cetrtifications 2,000
5330 Telephone 17,000
5340 Burglar Alarm Monitoring 800

5350 Cash Over/Short

5370 Fuel - Trucks 26,000
5390 Bank Charges 300
5391 Credit Card Transaction Fees 8,000
5400 Miscellaneous Expense 200

6560 Payroll Processing Expenses -
6577 'COP Debt Service - Interest 75,400
Total Expenses INDIRECT 1,565,300

P. 124



2021-2022

P.125
Final Budget
Expenses DIRECT 2021-2022

5190 Soil and Water Tests 37,500
5220 Water System - Repair & Maint 225,000
Street Maintenance 32,650
Parks - Repair & Maintenance 1,000
5265 Engineering Expenses 1,000
5310 Utilities - Well Site 170,000
5315 Utilities - Street Lighting 28,000
5325 Permits 30,000
5360 Fuel - Generator 3,000
426 ega A Bond DENSE 6,000
428 OP Bona pENSEe 3,500
i ater Bond pense ere 10,600

5660 Freight & Delivery
G ega Debt Service are 137,000
Total Expenses DIRECT 685,250

Total Expenses INDIRECT 1,565,300

Total Expenses 2,250,550

Total Income 2,843,450
Total Expenses 2,250,550

Gross Net 592,900
Debt Service

Alto Lea 12,500
010 COP (P pal o 70,000
Re-0rga atio 03 = nal o 30,000
ega Debt Service (P pal o 145,000
Meeting Stipend (donated to Pajaro Park) 6,000
ater Bond (P pal o 31,000
Bond Payment- Generators 97,000
Total 391,500
Gross Net 592,900
Debt Service 391,500

Reserve Fund 150,000 |-

Debt Service Fund $23,650 per month=$283,800/year
Capital Reserve Fund  $12,500 per month=$150,000/year
Transfer from Reserve 0 -
Capital Outlay-Planned $116,750.




P. 126
RESOLUTION NO. 06-04-21

RESOLUTION ADOPTING 2021 PAJARO SUNNY MESA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
WATER ACQUISITION POLICY

WHEREAS, from time-to-time persons propose the District acquire additional water systems, and

WHEREAS, from time to time the Board and staff must consider the acquisition of new or additional
systems or expansion of existing systems, and

WHEREAS it is in the best interest of the District and ratepayers to have a consistent, thoughtful policy
to consider the merger, acquisition of new or additional systems or expansion of existing systems, and

WHEREAS it is in the best interests of the District and ratepayers to know what the District’s policy is for
new systems be added to the District, and

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS ORDERED that

(A) the 2021 Pajaro Sunny Mesa Community Services District Water System Acquisition Policy
attached hereto and marked Exhibit “A” is adopted and approved; and

(B) the 2021 Pajaro Sunny Mesa Community Services District Water System Acquisition Policy
shall guide the Board and staff in considering the merger, acquisition of new or additional systems
or expansion of existing system

(C) The 2021 Pajaro Sunny Mesa Community Services District Water System Acquisition Policy
shall remain in effect until revoked by the Board.

Adopted, approved, and signed this day of , 2021, by the following vote:
AYES: Directors
NOES: None

ABSENT: Director
ABSTAIN: None

President of the Board of Directors

ATTEST:  None

District Secretary

Pagel



EXHIBIT “A”

2021 PAJARO SUNNY MESA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
WATER ACQUISITION POLICY

It is the policy of the Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Services District that the

policy set forth herein guide the District in considering the merger or acquisition of new or
additional systems or expansion of existing water systems

1.

10.

The system shall be inspected and evaluated by a qualified Water System
Engineer to determine the present condition and any work recommended to meet
the standards of the State Water Resources Control Board ,

Any expense to repair or upgrade the proposed water system to such
recommended standards shall be borne by the proposed water system payers or
outside financial resources, not by Pajaro/Sunny Mesa Community Services
District. i.e.: emergency stand-by generators and automated meter reading
capability.

A physical inspection and evaluation of the supply system (wells, recharge
capacity, storage capacity, water quality and pipes and all appurtenances.

An evaluation of ownership and condition of all wells, pipes and equipment shall
be provided

Determination of status of insurable title to all well sites, pipeline routes, either in
fee or easements shall be provided

A revenue and expense statement describing the revenue and expenses for any
system to be acquired or merged over at least the past three years shall be
provided.

A report satisfactory to the Board from the State Water Resources Board shall be
provided

Approval if required by the California Public Utilities Commission shall be
provided

Approval by Monterey County LAFCO at including annexation costs shall be
considered and shall be a condition precedent to the obligation to acquire or
merge.

Approval by the Monterey County Health officer pursuant to the Monterey County
L.ocal Primacy program requirements pursuant to subdivision (h) of section
116375 of the Health and Safety Code

Page2

P. 127



1l

Any proposed merger or acquisition , shall require no less than two public
meetings for ratepayers and the public to express any concerns on the

acquisition and to offer their suggestions before any contract to merge, expand or
add any water system. '

~ ENLY ~

Page3

P. 128



P. 129

Auadold
LZ0Z aunr 1202-G1-9 Uo Aunog Aslsjuol je Joseg oA] Aq panieoal useq sey 111Ul JO I8y’ s, ousIg sn|ding saloe |/
‘Pepsau se Hodal pue s)Ue)} auj Jo AjiBeiUl sy} JojiuoW 0} Uoloalip USAID sey pleog
‘Buryepdn pasau |m ‘piq 1oy Jno ob 109[01d wswaoe|day
Hoday oN 0} Apeal s j08foiq "e1e|dwod %00 | suBWNI0Qg ‘Bupissuibuz jses A\ Ag paiedaid soop pig MU pesymoily
‘Pepa3U 1l 80UEB)SISSE pue uoiuldo Jisy} 10} m‘o_on_ pue ‘ueaesey ‘lyouelg o} usyods
sey pue ‘Buimairsl Ajusiind si JeIS 0669} '624 IUNOWY-0ZETH 1UN022Y J88yg aoueleyg
Hoday ON | 'slewoisno Jemeg esa|y Auung [euiBlio sy} o] papunjal 2q 0} si Jey} seiuow Buipjoy si 10138Iq Jamag esa Auung
"I81em pajjoq Buinieoal Ajuslino sswoy 6] Buljejo; ‘sdn-ubis siow CEIER
'Speoy uosiaqgi9/ussusr/yng/peubulds 108foid Jayepn
Hoday oN Sed awoH ajiqo|y Buipue ssoly ‘walsAs Jejepn pleubuuds pepog Ajunwwod nnp
SELINVELS
Bulsauibug |euocisssjold Joj [esodold Jo) jsenbay e Buliedeid si Jesulbug ousi] e
epuaby up 'YINZ4 pue Aunod Aaisjuoly 0} uoissiwqgns 4o} Ueld uonebiyyy Jejsesiq e sjelausn ue|d uonebni piezeH
"@|Npayos Uolje|[ejsul pue Japlo ue
epusby up Uo JL08|T |UBA (|31 pue JejjidiaieD uuingd yim Bupiom Ausuing si gejs “eauenssi puog 108014 Jojeisusn)
LZ0Z sunp ‘Panowal useq sey Bujousy Aielodws) ‘pausdo Ajny si yied oleled Mled oJeled
‘uopeo|ddy
uononuIsuo) ayj 83e|dwod U0} 81eis 0} Jwgns o} saunjeubls jem Joy Buiiem
Hodey ON | ‘PBZi[eul usaq sey sissuibug SNIA YIM 10BIUOD — JuelS) Buluue|d pleubulds e
"Lzoz 'Le Repy uo
LZ0z aunp | Aunog Asisjuoly je pspiooal sem uope|dwos 19sfold JO 90JON —jueio) oleled e
‘pleibulds Juels) Buiuue|d 44S 9 oieled JUBID JINAYI SAIJOY SUBOT % SIUEID)
ISNOdS3IH

d3INNVd 40 F1vd

SNLvis

JldO.L

20¢ ‘yz sunp
1d0d3d SNOILVH3dO 1o1¥1SsId




Usage Comparison in Gallons

2013-2021

Water Systems May-18 May-19 May-i(} May-il
Pajaro 9,317,836 6,081,988 6,598,108 6,746,960
Normco 3,308,404 2.331.760 3,187,976 3,365,252
Sunny Mesa 2,640,440 2,302,344 2,873,068 2,482,612
Moss Landing 3,077,272 2,069,716 2,143,020 3,045,108
Vega 1,626,152 1,035,980 1,464,584 1,141,448
Vierra Estates 495,176 329,868 380,732 402,424
Springfield (pumped) 664,972 545,890 560,626 629,068
Langley/Valle Pacifico 414,392 270,776 267,784 252,824
Blackie 331,364 198,968 270,776 240,108
District Total 21,876,008 15,169,290  17,746,674| 18,305,804
Water Systems May-13 May-il Percentage
Pajaro 7,704,512 6,746,960 |\l -12.4%
Normco 3,889,600 3,365,252\ -13.5%
Sunny Mesa 3,348,257 2,482,612\ -25.9%
Moss Landing 1,996,412 3,045,108 (/h 52.5%
Vega 2,090,660 1,141,448( -45.4%
Vierra Estates 522,104 402,424\ -22.9%
Springfield (pumped) 673,948 629,068 |\l -6.7%
Langley/Valle Pacifico 354,552 252,824\ -28.7%
Blackie 290,224 240,108y -17.3%
District Total 20,870,269 18,305,804 |y -12.3%

S:\Admin Files\Usage Comparison Reports\Usage Comp. 2021\Gallons Sold Comparison May 2021

P. 130



